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quarter, was approximately $863.7 million.  

The total number of shares of common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2009, was 16,670,457.  

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE  

Certain portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (which is expected to be filed 
with the Commission within 120 days after the end of the registrant’s 2008 fiscal year) are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Report.  
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PART I  

CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEME NTS  

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not statements of historical fact should be considered forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”). In addition, certain statements in our future 
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), in press releases, and in oral and written statements made by us or with our 
approval that are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Act. Examples of forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding: proposed new programs; regulatory developments; projections, 
predictions, expectations, estimates or forecasts as to our business, financial and operational results and future economic performance; and 
statements of management’s goals and objectives and other similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. Words such as 
“may,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” 
“estimates,” and similar expressions, as well as statements in future tense, are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the 
exclusive means of identifying such statements.  

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those in such statements. 
Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those 
described in “Item 1A—Risk Factors,” below. The performance of our business and our securities may be adversely affected by these factors and 
by other factors common to other businesses and investments, or to the general economy. Forward-looking statements are qualified by some or 
all of these risk factors. Therefore, you should consider these risk factors with caution and form your own critical and independent conclusions 
about the likely effect of these risk factors on our future performance. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which the 
statements are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on 
which such statement is made to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events or circumstances. Readers should carefully review the disclosures 
and the risk factors described in this and other documents we file from time to time with the SEC, including our reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K 
to be filed by the Company in fiscal 2009.  

   

Overview  

We are an exclusively online postsecondary education services company. Through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Capella University, we 
offer a variety of doctoral, master’s and bachelor’s programs in the following markets: health and human services, business management and 
technology, and education. We focus on master’s and doctoral degrees, with over 80% of our learners enrolled in a master’s or doctoral degree 
program. Our academic offerings combine competency-based curricula with the convenience and flexibility of an online learning format. We 
design our offerings to help working adult learners develop specific competencies that they can employ in their workplace. We actively support 
and engage with our learners throughout their programs to enhance their prospects for successful program completion. We believe that the 
relevance and convenience of our programs provide a quality educational experience for our learners. At December 31, 2008, we offered over 
1,020 online courses and 22 academic programs with 111 specializations to more than 26,800 learners.  

In 2008, our end-of-year enrollment and revenues grew by approximately 20.5% and 20.4%, respectively, as compared to 2007. To date, 
our growth has resulted from a combination of: increased demand for our programs; expansion of our program and degree offerings; our ability 
to obtain specialized accreditations, professional licensures and endorsements for certain programs we offer; establishment of relationships with 
large corporate employers, healthcare institutions, the U.S. Armed Forces and various community colleges; and a growing acceptance of online 
education. We seek to achieve growth in a manner that assures continued improvement in educational quality and learner success while 
maintaining compliance with regulatory standards. Additionally,  
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Item 1. Business 
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we seek to enhance our operational and financial performance by tracking and analyzing quantifiable metrics that provide insight as to the 
effectiveness of our business and educational processes.  

Our History  

We were founded in 1991 as a Minnesota corporation. In 1993, we established our wholly-owned university subsidiary, then named The 
Graduate School of America, to offer doctoral and master’s degrees through distance learning programs in management, education, human 
services and interdisciplinary studies. In 1995, we launched our online format for delivery of our doctoral and master’s degree programs over the 
Internet. Through our early entry into online education, we believe we have gained extensive experience in the delivery of effective online 
programs. In 1997, our university subsidiary received accreditation from the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools (later renamed 
The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools). In 1998, we began the expansion of our original 
portfolio of academic programs by introducing doctoral and master’s degrees in psychology and a master of business administration degree. In 
1999, to expand the reach of our brand in anticipation of moving into the bachelor’s degree market, we changed our name to Capella Education 
Company and the name of our university to Capella University. In 2000, we introduced our bachelor’s degree completion program in 
information technology, which provided instruction for the last two years of a four-year bachelor’s degree. In 2004, we expanded our 
addressable market through the introduction of our four-year bachelor’s degree programs in business administration and information technology 
as well as the introduction of three master’s-level specializations in education targeted at K-12 teachers. In November 2006, we completed an 
initial public offering of our common stock. In May 2007, we completed a follow-on offering of our common stock. Additionally, during 2007, 
we introduced six new programs and 31 new specializations, including our first ever specializations in Public Safety and nine new PhD 
specializations. In 2008, we introduced three new programs and 10 new specializations. We implemented an enterprise resource planning (ERP) 
system from 2006 through 2008 in which the final module was implemented in July 2008. During the first half of 2008, we commenced and 
completed a $50.0 million stock repurchase program, and during the third quarter of 2008 we commenced an additional stock repurchase 
program for up to $60.0 million of our common stock. As of December 31, 2008, we had repurchased 0.2 million shares under this program for 
total consideration of $8.3 million.  

Industry  

The U.S. market for postsecondary education is a large, growing market. According to a 2006 publication by the National Center for 
Education Statistics (NCES), the number of postsecondary learners enrolled as of the Fall of 2005 was 17.5 million and is expected to grow to 
20.4 million in 2016. We believe the forecasted growth in postsecondary enrollment is a result of a number of factors, including the significant 
and measurable personal income premium that is attributable to postsecondary education, and an increase in demand by employers for 
professional and skilled workers.  

According to the U.S. Census Bureau’s Current Population Survey 2007 report, 63% of adults (persons 25 years of age or older) did not 
possess a postsecondary degree in 2007. Of the 17.5 million postsecondary learners enrolled as of the Fall of 2005, the NCES estimated that 
6.9 million were adults, representing 39% of total enrollment. We expect that adults will continue to represent a large, growing segment of the 
postsecondary education market as they seek additional education to secure better jobs, or to remain competitive or advance in their current 
careers.  

According to Eduventures, an education consulting and research firm, the revenue growth rate in fully-online education exceeded the 
revenue growth rate in the for-profit segment of the postsecondary market from 2001 to 2006. We believe that the higher growth in demand for 
fully-online education is largely attributable to the flexibility and convenience of this instructional format, as well as the growing recognition of 
its educational efficacy. Additionally, in 2008, Eduventures projected that the number of learners enrolled in fully-online programs at Title IV-
eligible, degree-granting institutions would grow by approximately 13% in 2008 to reach  
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approximately 1.9 million as of December 31, 2008, and would grow to approximately 2.2 million by December 31, 2009.  

Competition  

The postsecondary education market is highly fragmented and competitive, with no private or public institution enjoying a significant 
market share. We compete primarily with public and private degree-granting regionally accredited colleges and universities. Our competitors 
include both traditional colleges and universities, as well as a number of for-profit institutions offering online programs, such as Strayer 
University, the University of Phoenix and Walden University. Many of these colleges and universities enroll working adults in addition to 
traditional 18 to 24 year-old learners. In addition, many of those colleges and universities offer a variety of distance education initiatives.  

We believe that the competitive factors in the postsecondary education market include the following:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Our Competitive Strengths  

We believe we have the following competitive strengths:  

Commitment to Academic Quality.  We are committed to providing our learners with a rewarding and challenging academic experience. 
Our commitment to academic quality is a tenet of our culture, and we believe that quality is an important consideration to those learners who 
choose Capella University. Having originated as an institution exclusively focused on graduate degree education, we have historically promoted 
an educational experience based on high academic standards. We have continued to apply this approach as we have expanded our graduate and 
undergraduate programs. Today, we believe that our commitment to academic quality is reflected in our curricula, faculty, learner support 
services and academic oversight process. The impact of this commitment is evident in the satisfaction of our learners both during their 
educational experience and following graduation.  

Exclusive Focus on Online Education.  In contrast to institutions converting traditional, classroom-based educational offerings to an 
online format, our academic programs have been designed solely for online delivery. Our curriculum design offers flexibility while promoting a 
high level of interaction with other learners and faculty members. Our faculty are specifically trained to deliver online education, and our learner 
support infrastructure was developed to track learner progress and performance to meet the needs of online learners. As a result of our exclusive 
focus on online education, we believe we have developed educational programs that meet the needs of our learners in a convenient and effective 
manner.  

Academic Programs and Specializations Designed for Working Adults.  At December 31, 2008, we offered 22 academic programs with 
111 specializations, each designed to appeal to and meet the educational objectives of working adults. The diversity of our program portfolio 
allows us to target relevant portions of the adult learner population and provide offerings in several of the highest demand areas of study, such as 
health and human  
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  •   relevant, practical and accredited program offerings;  
  •   reputation of the college or university and marketability of the degree;  
  •   convenient, flexible and dependable access to programs and classes;  
  •   regulatory approvals;  
  •   qualified and experienced faculty;  
  •   level of learner support;  
  •   cost of the program;  
  •   relative marketing and selling effectiveness; and  
  •   the time necessary to earn a degree.  
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services, business, information technology and education. Our specializations are designed to attract learners by providing depth within a 
program that is typically unavailable in an unspecialized program and by addressing specific competencies that learners can apply in their 
current workplace.  

Extensive Learner Support Services.  We provide extensive learner support services, both online and telephonically. Our support services 
include: academic services, such as advising, writing and research services; administrative services, such as online class registration and 
transcript requests; library services; financial aid counseling; and career counseling services. We believe our commitment to providing high 
quality, responsive and convenient learner support services encourages course and degree completion and contributes to our high learner 
satisfaction.  

Experienced Management Team with Significant Business, Academic and Marketing Expertise. Our management team possesses 
extensive experience in business, academic and marketing management as well as public company experience, in many cases with organizations 
of much larger scale and operational diversity than our organization. Our management team is led by Stephen G. Shank, our Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer, who founded our company in 1991, and who has over 14 years of experience serving as the Chief Executive Officer of a 
public company. In addition, we recently announced the appointment of J. Kevin Gilligan as our next CEO effective March 2009, who possesses 
over 20 years of executive experience and service on public company boards. Mr. Shank will continue as our Chairman following 
commencement of Mr. Gilligan’s employment. Lois M. Martin, our Chief Financial Officer, serves on two public company boards of directors 
and has held senior financial management positions in public companies for over ten years. Dr. Christopher Cassirer, President of Capella 
University, has over 10 years of experience in academic leadership, including four years with Capella University. We integrate our management 
through cross-functional teams to ensure that business objectives are met while continuing to deliver academic quality.  

Our Operating Strategy  

We intend to pursue the following operating strategies:  

Focus on Select Markets.  We believe that significant growth potential exists within each of the three markets that comprise our existing 
portfolio of academic programs and degree offerings. Within our specified markets, we will continue to develop our existing bachelor’s, master’s 
and doctoral program offerings while selectively adding new programs and specializations for targeted professions within these markets that we 
believe offer significant growth potential. In particular, we intend to emphasize growth in targeted professions by offering specializations in our 
master’s and doctoral programs for which we believe there is significant demand. Examples include our recently launched master’s and doctoral 
specializations targeting P-12 education, community college faculty, public safety officials and healthcare management professionals within our 
education and health and human services market verticals.  

Building Capella Differentiation and Competitive Advantage.  We will continue to focus on enhancing our differentiation as a high 
quality, exclusively online university for working adults in targeted professions within our specified markets through a variety of initiatives. 
These initiatives include the pursuit of specialized accreditations, professional licensure approvals and brand alliances, along with embedding 
specific learning outcomes within our curriculum and communicating our differentiation through advertising and direct marketing. We seek to 
appeal to prospective learners who aspire to obtain a quality postsecondary education, but for whom a traditional, classroom-based educational 
experience is not optimal. To optimize our investments, we regularly perform market tests, analyze the results and refine our approach based on 
the findings. We believe increased differentiation and awareness will contribute to continued enrollment growth in our existing and future 
program offerings and competitive advantage.  

Increasing Enrollment Effectiveness.  We believe that it is important to focus on total enrollment effectiveness across the learner 
lifecycle, from new enrollment through graduation. We have invested substantial resources in performing detailed market research that enables 
us to more effectively segment our target market  
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and identify potential learners best suited for our educational experience. As a result, we will continue to target our marketing and recruiting 
expenditures towards segments of the market that we believe are more likely to result in us enrolling learners who will complete their programs. 
Simultaneously, we intend to increase our enrollment effectiveness through improved enrollment tools and processes, which we believe will 
allow us to better manage the pipeline of potential applicants and help direct the communication and contact plans with our prospective and 
current learners. Finally, to further enhance persistence of our current learners, we seek to deliver an inspiring educational experience that 
motivates our learners throughout the learner lifecycle with regular, proactive communication and support.  

Delivering Both Superior Learning Outcomes and a Superior Learner Experience.  We are committed to helping our learners reach their 
educational and professional goals. This commitment guides the development of our curricula, the recruitment and training of our faculty and 
staff, and the design of our support services. We use the results of internal assessments to develop an understanding of the specific needs and 
readiness of each individual learner at the start of a program. Through the use of competency-based curricula and transparent measurement of 
course and program outcomes, we seek to provide our learners with tangible outcomes, including a portfolio of professional competencies and 
support for career advancement or change as well as the degree itself. In addition, we look for opportunities to improve our learners’ educational 
experience and increase the likelihood of learners successfully completing degree programs. We believe our focus on both superior learning 
outcomes and a superior learner experience complements our differentiation strategy and will continue to enhance learner satisfaction, leading to 
higher levels of engagement, persistence and referrals.  

Drive Successful New Business Development.  We also seek to drive growth through a multifaceted strategy of enhancing existing 
program offerings, developing new programs and specializations within our three current target markets, and pursuing new market and new 
business opportunities. We seek to enhance our existing program offerings by pursuing improvements in course design and technology and 
obtaining specialized accreditation, additional professional licensure approvals and select endorsements. Within our current target markets, we 
seek to expand our program and specialization offerings, while also targeting additional professions. Finally, we are beginning to explore new 
opportunities in new vertical markets that leverage our existing expertise, brand reputation and educational capabilities as well as show strong 
demand potential and growth.  

Capella University  

Capella University is a postsecondary educational institution accredited by The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central 
Association of Colleges and Schools, one of six regional institutional accrediting associations in the United States, and is registered with the 
Minnesota Office of Higher Education.  

Our Approach to Academic Quality  

Some of the critical elements of our university that we believe promote a high level of academic quality include:  
   

   

   
5  

  

•   Curricula. We design the curricula for our programs around professional competencies desired for high performance in each field. 
The particular competencies are identified and validated through a variety of external sources and reviews. There are specific 
learning outcomes for each course as well as for the overall program, and we assess the learner’s achievement of the expected 
learning outcomes during his or her period of enrollment.  

  

•   Faculty.  We select our faculty based on their academic credentials and teaching and practitioner experience. Our faculty members 
tend to be scholars as well as practitioners, and they bring relevant, practical experience from their professional careers into the 
courses they teach. Approximately 82% of our faculty members hold a doctoral degree in their respective fields. We invest in the 
professional development of our faculty members through training in online teaching techniques as well as events and discussions 
designed to foster sharing of best practices and a commitment to academic quality.  



Table of Contents  

   

In addition to these traditional components of academic quality, our approach to teaching and the online format of our programs offers 
several features that enrich the learning experience:  

Low student to faculty ratio.  Our courses average approximately 20 learners, providing each learner the opportunity to interact directly 
with our faculty and to receive individualized feedback and attention. We believe this adds to the academic quality of our programs by ensuring 
that each learner is encouraged to participate actively, thus enabling the instructor to better evaluate the learner’s understanding of course 
material.  

Diverse learner population.  Our online format allows us to focus on adult learners as well as to attract a diverse population of learners 
with a variety of professional backgrounds and life experiences.  

Practitioner-oriented course experience.  Our courses are designed to encourage our learners to incorporate workplace issues or projects 
into their studies, providing relevant context to many of the academic theories covered by our curricula.  

Time efficiency.  While many campus-based learners are required to spend time commuting, parking, or otherwise navigating a large 
campus, our online learning format enables our learners to focus their time on course assignments and discussions.  

Residential colloquia experience.  Our residential colloquia allow doctoral and certain master’s learners to engage in face-to-face 
interaction with other learners and faculty, which provides for a rich learning experience with relevant content. In addition we offer residential 
colloquia for our psychology and counseling learners as a key part of their required learning experience.  
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•   Online Course Design.  We employ a comprehensive design framework to ensure that our online courses offer a consistent learning 

experience, high quality interaction, and the tools required for assessing learning outcomes. We regularly assess course outcomes 
data as well as learner assessments to identify opportunities for course upgrades.  

  

•   Learner Support.  We establish teams comprised of both academic and administrative personnel in areas including advising, 
academic support, administrative, library and career counseling services to serve as important points of contact to learners throughout 
the duration of their studies. Most of our support services are accessible online, allowing users to access these services at a time and 
in a manner that is convenient to them. We believe that a committed support network is as important to maintaining learner 
motivation and commitment as the knowledge and engagement of our faculty.  
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Curricula  
Our program offerings cover three markets: health and human services, business management and technology, and education. At 

December 31, 2008, we offered 22 academic programs with 111 specializations within these markets as follows:  
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Business, Organization and Management   Human Services 
Doctor of Philosophy in Organization and Management  

•        General Organization and Management  
•        Human Resource Management  
•        Information Technology Management  
•        Leadership  
•        Management Education  
•        Project Management  

   

Master of Science in Human Resource Management  
•        General Human Resource Management  
•        Industrial and Labor Relations  
•        Legal Studies  
•        Human Capital Management  

   

Master of Science in Organizational Development  
•        General Organizational Development  

   

Master of Science in Organization and Management  
•        General Business  
•        Leadership  

   

Master of Business Administration  
•        General Business  
•        Information Technology Management  
•        Finance  
•        Health Care Management  
•        Human Resource Management  
•        Accounting  
•        Marketing  
•        Project Management  

   

Bachelor of Science in Business  
•        Accounting  
•        Business Administration  
•        Finance  
•        Human Resource Management  
•        Management and Leadership  
•        Marketing  
•        Project Management  
•        Retail Management    

Doctor of Philosophy in Counselor Education and Supervision  
•        General Counselor Education and Supervision  

   

Doctor of Philosophy in Human Services  
•        General Human Services  
•        Counseling Studies  
•        Health Care Administration  
•        Management of Non-Profit Agencies  
•        Social and Community Services  

   

Doctor of Philosophy in Public Safety  
•        Criminal Justice  
•        Emergency Management  
•        Public Safety Leadership  

   

Master of Science in Human Services  
•        General Human Services  
•        Counseling Studies  
•        Gerontology  
•        Management of Non-Profit Agencies  
•        Health Care Administration  
•        Marital, Couple, and Family Counseling/Therapy  
•        Mental Health Counseling  
•        Social and Community Services  
•        School Counseling  

   

Master of Science in Public Health  
•        Social and Behavioral Sciences  
•        Health Management and Policy  

   

Master of Science in Public Safety  
•        Criminal Justice  
•        Emergency Management  
•        Public Safety Leadership  

   

Bachelor of Science in Public Safety  
•        Criminal Justice  
•        Emergency Management  
•        Homeland Security  
•        Security Management  

   

Education  
   

Doctor of Philosophy in Education  
•        Nursing Education  
•        Leadership in Educational Administration  
•        Leadership for Higher Education  
•        Curriculum and Instruction  
•        Postsecondary and Adult Education  
•        Instructional Design for Online Learning  
•        Training and Performance Improvement  
•        Professional Studies in Education  
•        K-12 Studies in Education  
•        Special Education Leadership  

   

Education Specialist  
•        Leadership in Educational Administration  
•        Curriculum and Instruction  

     

Psychology  
   

Doctor of Psychology  
•        Clinical Psychology  

   

Doctor of Philosophy in Psychology  
•        Industrial/Organizational Psychology  
•        General Psychology  
•        Educational Psychology  

   

Master of Science in Psychology  
•        Child and Adolescent Development  
•        Clinical Psychology  
•        Counseling Psychology  
•        School Psychology  
•        General Psychology  
•        Industrial/Organizational Psychology  
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Courses are offered on a quarterly academic schedule, which generally coincides with calendar quarters. We offer new learners the 
flexibility to begin their introductory first course in their program of study on the first day of classes in any month. Learners then enroll in 
subsequent courses on a regular quarterly course schedule. Depending on the program, learners generally enroll in one to two courses per 
quarter. Each course has a designated start date, and the majority of our courses last for ten weeks.  

To meet course requirements, learners typically need to access the online courseroom multiple times each week. However, there is no set 
class schedule, so learners can attend each class as it fits their weekly schedule. Learners are required to respond to questions posed by the 
instructor, as well as comments made by other learners. This provides for an interactive experience in which each learner is both encouraged and 
required to be actively engaged. Additional learning experiences may include team projects and/or research papers. Our online format provides a 
digital record of learner interactions for the course instructor to assess learners’ levels of engagement and demonstration of required 
competencies. The course design also includes assessment of learning outcomes.  

The only exception to our exclusively online format is for doctoral learners, and for certain master’s degree candidates pursuing 
professional licenses. These learners participate in periodic residential colloquia, supervised practica and internships as a complement to their 
courses. The colloquia typically last two days to two weeks and are required, on average, once per year for learners in applicable programs, 
while the supervised practica and internships vary in length based on the program in which the learner is enrolled.  

We also offer certificate programs, which consist of a series of courses focused on a particular area of study, for learners who seek to 
enhance their skills and knowledge. Online certificate courses can be taken as part of a graduate degree program or on a stand-alone basis. 
Certificate programs generally consist of four courses. The duration of our certificate programs ranges from two quarters to approximately two 
years.  
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Education (continued)  
   

Master of Science in Education  
•        Leadership in Educational Administration  
•        Curriculum and Instruction  
•        Postsecondary and Adult Education  
•        Early Childhood Education  
•        K-12 Studies in Education  
•        Reading and Literacy    

Psychology  
Master of Science in Psychology (continued)  
   

•        Educational Psychology  
•        Evaluation, Research, and Measurement  
•        Leadership Coaching Psychology  
•        Organizational Leader Development  
•        Sport Psychology  

   

•        Enrollment Management  
•        Professional Studies in Education  
•        Leadership for Higher Education  
•        Instructional Design for Online Learning  
•        Training and Performance Improvement    

Information Technology  
   

Doctor of Philosophy in Information Technology  
•        General Information Technology  
•        Information Technology Education  
•        Information Security  
•        Project Management      

  

  

Master of Science in Information Technology  
•        Enterprise Software Architecture  
•        General Information Technology  
•        Health Information Management  
•        Information Security  
•        Network Architecture and Design  
•        Project Management and Leadership  
•        Business Analysis  

  

  

Bachelor of Science in Information Technology  
•        General Information Technology  
•        Network Technology  
•        Information Assurance and Security  
•        Project Management  
•        Software Architecture  
•        Health Informatics  
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Faculty  

We seek to hire faculty who have teaching or practitioner experience in their particular discipline and who possess significant academic 
credentials. Approximately 82% of our faculty members have a doctoral degree. We provide significant training to new faculty members, 
including a five-week online development program focused on effective online teaching methods and our online platform, prior to offering them 
a teaching assignment. In addition, we provide professional development and training for all faculty members on an ongoing basis. To evaluate 
the performance of our faculty members, we periodically monitor courseroom activity and assess learner performance against course outcomes.  

Our faculty consists of full-time academic administrators, faculty chairs and core faculty as well as adjunct faculty. Our full-time academic 
administrators’ primary responsibilities are to monitor the quality and relevance of our curricula, to recruit and manage teaching faculty and to 
ensure that we maintain standards of accreditation. Our full-time faculty chairs supervise the faculty in their respective specializations. Our full-
time core faculty teach courses in their assigned specializations and serve as mentors to, and on comprehensive and dissertation committees for, 
our doctoral learners. Our adjunct faculty typically teach one to three courses per quarter in their specializations. Of our 1,140 faculty members 
as of December 31, 2008, 178 were full-time employees and the remainder were adjunct faculty.  

Learner Support Services  

The learner support services we provide include:  

Academic Services.  We provide learners with a variety of services designed to support their academic studies. These services include new 
learner orientation, technical support, academic advising, research services (particularly for doctoral degree candidates), writing services and 
other online tutoring. We also provide appropriate educational accommodations to learners with documented disabilities through our disability 
support services team.  

Administrative Services.  We provide learners with the ability to access a variety of administrative services both telephonically and via the 
Internet. For example, learners can register for classes, apply for financial aid, pay their tuition and access their billing statements and transcripts 
online. We believe this online accessibility provides the convenience and self-service capabilities that our learners value. Our financial aid 
counselors provide personalized online and telephonic support to our learners.  

Library Services.  We provide learners with online access to the Capella University Library. Our library provides learners with access to a 
comprehensive collection of online journals, eBooks and interlibrary loan services. Our team of librarians is available via e-mail and phone to 
help with research, teaching and learning. They offer tutorials, virtual instruction sessions, consultations on research assignments and online 
research guides. Librarians also attend our residential colloquia to teach library instruction sessions and offer one-on-one research appointments. 
Our interlibrary loan services are provided through our relationship with the University of Michigan.  

Career Counseling Services.  Our staff of professional career counselors use a variety of tools, including individualized phone, e-mail and 
face-to-face communications, online newsletters, online seminars and conference calls to provide career planning services to learners and 
alumni. Our counselors also assist our recruitment staff with prospective learners’ selection of the Capella University program and specialization 
that best suits their professional aspirations.  

Admissions  

Capella University’s admission process is designed to offer access to prospective learners who seek the benefits of a postsecondary 
education while providing realistic feedback to prospects regarding their ability to  
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successfully complete their chosen program. As part of the first course in their program of study, admitted learners are required to complete an 
orientation to online education and a skills assessment, the results of which enable us to develop an understanding of the specific needs and 
readiness of each individual learner. Learners must successfully complete the first course in their program of study to continue their education.  

Learners enrolling in our bachelor’s programs must have a high school diploma or a GED and demonstrate competence in writing and 
logical reasoning during the first course of their program of study. Learners enrolling in our graduate programs must have the requisite academic 
degree from an accredited institution and a specified minimum grade point average. In addition to our standard admission requirements, we 
require applicants to some of our programs to provide additional application material and information, and/or interview with, and be approved 
by, a faculty committee.  

Marketing  

We engage in a range of marketing activities to build the Capella brand, differentiate us from other educational providers, raise levels of 
awareness with prospective learners, generate inquiries about enrollment, remind and motivate existing learners to re-register each quarter, and 
stimulate referrals from existing learners and graduates. These marketing activities include Internet, print and direct mail advertising campaigns, 
participation in seminars and trade shows, and development of marketing channels through our corporate and healthcare, U.S. Armed Forces, 
and educational relationships. Online advertising (targeted, direct and through aggregators) currently generates our largest volume of prospective 
learners.  

Our corporate and healthcare, U.S. Armed Forces and educational relationships are developed and managed by our channel sales teams. 
Our channel sales teams work with representatives in the various organizations to help them understand the quality, impact and value that our 
academic programs can provide, both for the individuals in their organization and for the organization itself. For the year ended December 31, 
2008, approximately 28% of our learners received a discount in connection with one of our marketing relationships or programs described 
below.  
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•   Corporate and Healthcare Relationships.  We developed our corporate and healthcare alliance program to offer education 
opportunities to employees of large companies. Pursuant to these arrangements, program participants make information about 
Capella University available to their employees. In return, we provide a tuition discount to participants’ employees and, in some 
cases, their immediate family members. Through our corporate and healthcare alliance programs, we presently have learners from 
over 150 corporations and healthcare providers.  

  

•   U.S. Armed Forces Relationships and Discount Program.  We offer a discount on tuition to all members of the U.S. Armed Forces, 
including active duty members, veterans, National Guard members, reservists, civilian employees of the Department of Defense and 
immediate family members of active duty personnel. We also have arrangements with various educational institutions of the 
U.S. Armed Forces pursuant to which we have agreed to accept credits from certain military educational programs earned by learners 
who meet our transfer requirements, which they can apply toward a Capella University degree. As part of these arrangements, several 
of these educational institutions make information about Capella University available to their members. In addition, we have 
arrangements with the Army National Guard, the U.S. Coast Guard Institute and several military bases pursuant to which these 
organizations make information about Capella University available to interested service members. For the year ended December 31, 
2008, approximately 14% of our learners received a U.S. Armed Forces tuition discount.  

  

•   Educational Relationships.  We developed our educational alliance program to allow graduates of community colleges to matriculate 
into our programs and to recruit community college faculty to attend our graduate programs. Pursuant to the arrangements between 
us and over 200 community colleges, we provide a tuition discount and an application fee waiver for community college learners, 
alumni, faculty, administrators and staff in exchange for marketing opportunities within each community college.  
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Enrollment  

As of the last day of classes in the quarter ended December 31, 2008, our enrollment was 26,883 learners. Of the learners that responded to 
our demographic survey, as of December 31, 2008, approximately 70% were female and approximately 45% were people of color. Our learner 
population is geographically distributed throughout the United States.  

The following is a summary of our learners as of the last day of classes in the quarter ended December 31, 2008:  
   

Tuition and Fees  

Our tuition rates vary by type and length of program and by degree level, such as doctoral, master’s or bachelor’s. For all master’s and 
bachelor’s programs and for selected doctoral programs, tuition is determined by the number of courses taken by each learner. For the 2007-2008 
academic year (the academic year that began in July 2007), prices per course generally ranged from $1,540 to $2,060. The price of the course 
will vary based upon the number of credit hours, the degree level of the program and the discipline. For the 2007-2008 academic year, the 
majority of doctoral programs were priced at a fixed quarterly amount of $4,176 per learner, regardless of the number of courses in which the 
learner was registered. The fixed quarterly tuition for doctoral learners in their comprehensive exam or dissertation was $3,505. The reduced 
tuition rate for doctoral learners who have paid for 16 quarters, completed all coursework except for their comprehensive exam or dissertation 
and met all colloquia requirements was $875 per quarter.  

Capella University implemented tuition increases generally ranging from 2% to 5% for the 2008-2009 academic year (the academic year 
that began in July 2008). The price increase resulted in prices per course generally ranging from $1,620 to $2,120 for master’s, bachelor’s and 
certificate programs. The majority of doctoral programs were priced at a fixed quarterly amount of $4,335 per learner, regardless of the number 
of courses in which the learner was registered. The fixed quarterly tuition for doctoral learners in their comprehensive exam or dissertation 
increased to $3,690. The reduced tuition rate for doctoral learners who have paid for 16 quarters, completed all coursework except for their 
comprehensive exam or dissertation and met all colloquia requirements increased to $960 per quarter. Tuition increases have not historically 
been, and may not in the future be, consistent across our programs and specializations due to market conditions or changes in operating costs that 
have an impact on price adjustments of individual programs or specializations.  

“Other” in the table above refers primarily to certificate-seeking learners. Certificate programs generally consist of four courses, and the 
price of a course depends on the number of credit hours, the degree level of the program and the discipline. For the 2007-2008 academic year, 
prices per course in certificate programs generally ranged from $1,580 to $2,060. For the 2008-2009 academic year, prices per course in 
certificate programs did not change.  

A large portion of our learners rely on funds received under various government-sponsored student financial aid programs, predominantly 
Title IV programs, to pay a substantial portion of their tuition and other education-related expenses. In the years ended December 31, 2008, 
2007, and 2006, approximately 75%, 74% and 71%, respectively, of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) were attributable to funds derived 
from Title IV  
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   Enrollment   

   

Number of 
 

Learners    
% of  
Total   

Doctoral     9,723    36.2 % 
Master’s     12,388    46.1 % 
Bachelor’s     4,635    17.2 % 
Other     137    0.5 % 

          
  

   26,883    100.0 % 
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programs. In addition to Title IV funding, our learners receive financial aid from other governmental sources, tuition reimbursement from their 
employers or the Department of Defense or finance their education with their own funds or through private financing institutions. For the year 
ended December 31, 2008, less than one percent of our learners utilized private loans, and less than one percent of our revenue was derived from 
learners utilizing private loans.  

Technology  

Capella University provides learners and faculty members a secure web-based portal through which they can access courses and support 
services.  

Online courseroom.  Our online courseroom provides the instructional content of the course, along with tools to facilitate course 
discussions, assessments, grading and submission of assignments. We operate Blackboard Learning System as our courseroom platform. 
Blackboard Learning System provides discussion, testing and grading capabilities for our online courseroom.  

Learner and faculty support.  We rely on an Oracle/Peoplesoft enterprise package to provide support services to our learners and faculty, 
including learner participation monitoring, course registration, transcript requests and financial aid applications. In addition, we offer our 
learners and faculty members online access to our library resources.  

Internal administration.  We use Oracle’s PeopleSoft enterprise software package to perform internal administrative and operational 
functions. Our student information system manages learner academic data and accounts receivable information, and our document management 
system stores and sorts learner applications, academic records and marketing data. We also employ customer relationship management software 
to organize and process prospective learner information.  

Infrastructure.  Our servers are located in a third party hosting facility and at our corporate headquarters. All of our servers are linked and 
we have redundant data backup. We currently use a combination of Microsoft-based software on HP server equipment and Sun Microsystems 
servers.  

Employees and Adjunct Faculty  

As of December 31, 2008, we had a total of 1,140 faculty members, consisting of 178 full-time faculty and faculty administrators and 
962 adjunct faculty. Our adjunct faculty are engaged through independent contractor agreements.  

We engage our adjunct faculty on a course-by-course basis. Adjunct faculty are compensated a fixed amount for a base number of learners 
and a variable rate per learner thereafter, which varies depending on discipline. In addition to teaching assignments, adjunct faculty may be 
asked to serve on learner committees, such as comprehensive examination and dissertation committees, or assist with course development. We 
have the right to cancel any teaching assignment due to low enrollment or to cancel sections to create proper class sizes. If a teaching assignment 
is canceled, we do not compensate the adjunct faculty member for the assignment. Our independent contractor agreements with adjunct faculty 
typically have a one-quarter term, but we are not required to engage them to teach any certain number of courses and have the right to terminate 
their services upon written notice at any time.  

As of December 31, 2008, we also employed 1,243 non-faculty staff in university services, academic advising and academic support, 
enrollment services, university administration, financial aid, information technology, human resources, corporate accounting, finance and other 
administrative functions. None of our employees is a party to any collective bargaining or similar agreement with us. We consider our 
relationships with our employees to be satisfactory.  
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Intellectual Property  

Intellectual property is important to our business. We rely on a combination of copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secrets, domain 
names and agreements with third parties to protect our proprietary rights. In many instances, our course content is produced for us by faculty and 
other content experts under work for hire agreements pursuant to which we own the course content in return for a fixed development fee. In 
certain limited cases, we license course content from a third party on a royalty fee basis.  

We have trademark or service mark registrations and pending applications in the U.S. and select foreign jurisdictions for the words 
“CAPELLA,” “CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY,” and “CAPELLA UNIVERSITY” and distinctive logos, along with various other 
trademarks and service marks related to our specific offerings. We also own domain name rights to “www.capellaeducationcompany.com” , “ 
www.capellaeducation.com ”, “ www.capella.edu “ and “ www.capellauniversity.edu “, as well as other words and phrases important to our 
business.  

Available Information  

Our Internet address is www.capellaeducation.com . We make available, free of charge through our website, our Annual Report on Form 
10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed pursuant to Section 13(a) of 15(d) 
of the Exchange Act, soon after they are electronically filed with the SEC. In addition, our earnings conference calls and presentation to the 
financial community are web cast live via our website. In addition to visiting our website, you may read and copy public reports we file with the 
SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F. Street NE, Washington DC 20549, or at www.sec.gov . You may obtain information on the 
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Information contained on our website is expressly not 
incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.  

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT  

Learners attending Capella University finance their education through a combination of individual resources, corporate reimbursement 
programs and federal financial aid programs. Capella University participates in the federal student financial aid programs authorized under 
Title IV. For the year ended December 31, 2008, approximately 75% of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) were derived from Title IV 
programs. In connection with a learner’s receipt of federal financial aid, we are subject to extensive regulation by the Department of Education, 
state education agencies and our accrediting agency, The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and 
Schools. In particular, the Title IV programs, and the regulations issued thereunder by the Department of Education, subject us to significant 
regulatory scrutiny in the form of numerous standards that we must satisfy to participate in the federal student financial aid programs. To 
participate in Title IV programs, a school must be:  
   

   

   

Our business activities are planned and implemented to achieve compliance with the rules and regulations of the state, regional and federal 
agencies that regulate our activities. We have established regulatory compliance and management systems and processes under the oversight of 
our Chief Financial Officer and our General Counsel that are designed to meet the requirements of this regulatory environment.  
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•   authorized to offer its programs of instruction by the applicable state education agencies in the states in which it is physically located 

(in our case, Minnesota);  
  •   accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the Secretary of the Department of Education; and  
  •   certified as an eligible institution by the Department of Education.  
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Accreditation  

Capella University has been institutionally accredited since 1997 by The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of 
Colleges and Schools, a regional accrediting agency recognized by the Secretary of the Department of Education. In February 2008, Capella 
received a letter of reaffirmation from The Higher Learning Commission, effective through 2015. Accreditation is a non-governmental system 
for recognizing educational institutions and their programs for learner performance, governance, integrity, educational quality, faculty, physical 
resources, administrative capability and resources, and financial stability. In the United States, this recognition comes primarily through private 
voluntary associations that accredit institutions and programs of higher education. To be recognized by the Secretary of the Department of 
Education, accrediting agencies must adopt specific standards for their review of educational institutions. These associations, or accrediting 
agencies, establish criteria for accreditation, conduct peer-review evaluations of institutions and professional programs for accreditation and 
publicly designate those institutions that meet their criteria. Accredited schools are subject to periodic review by accrediting agencies to 
determine whether such schools maintain the performance, integrity and quality required for accreditation.  

The Higher Learning Commission is the same accrediting agency that accredits such universities as Northwestern University, the 
University of Chicago, the University of Minnesota and other degree-granting public and private colleges and universities in its region (namely, 
the States of Arkansas, Arizona, Colorado, Iowa, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, Nebraska, Ohio, 
Oklahoma, New Mexico, South Dakota, Wisconsin, West Virginia and Wyoming).  

Accreditation by The Higher Learning Commission is important to us. Colleges and universities depend, in part, on accreditation in 
evaluating transfers of credit and applications to graduate schools. Employers rely on the accredited status of institutions when evaluating a 
candidate’s credentials, and learners and corporate and government sponsors under tuition reimbursement programs look to accreditation for 
assurance that an institution maintains quality educational standards. Moreover, institutional accreditation by an accrediting agency recognized 
by the Secretary of the Department of Education is necessary for eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.  

State Regulatory Accountability  

We are registered with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education, the regulatory agency governing the State of Minnesota, where Capella 
University is located. We are required by the Higher Education Act to maintain registration with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education to 
participate in Title IV programs.  

The increasing popularity and use of the Internet and other online services for the delivery of education has led and may lead to the 
adoption of new laws and regulatory practices in the United States or foreign countries and new interpretations of existing laws and regulations. 
These new laws, regulations and interpretations may relate to issues such as the requirement that online education institutions be licensed to 
operate in one or more jurisdictions where they have no physical location or other presence. For instance, in some states, we are required to seek 
licensure or authorization because our recruiters meet with prospective learners in the state. In other cases, the state higher educational agency 
has required licensure or authorization because we enroll learners who reside in the state. New laws, regulations or interpretations related to 
doing business over the Internet could increase our cost of doing business and affect our ability to recruit learners in particular states, which 
could, in turn, negatively affect enrollments and revenues and have a material adverse effect on our business.  

In addition to Minnesota, Capella University is licensed or authorized to operate or to offer degree programs in the following states: 
Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Kentucky, Nevada, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Virginia, 
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, and Wyoming. We are licensed or authorized to operate in these states because we have determined that 
our activities in each state constitute a presence requiring licensure or authorization by the state higher educational agency. In some cases, the 
licensure or authorization is only for specific programs or specific activities. In the majority of these  
   

14  



Table of Contents  

states, Capella University has either determined that separate licensure or authorization for its certificate programs is not necessary, or has 
obtained such licensure or authorization. Capella’s certificate programs must be, and have been, approved in Arizona, Florida, Ohio and 
Washington. Because we enroll learners from each of the 50 states, as well as the District of Columbia, and because we may undertake activities 
in other states that constitute a presence or otherwise subject us to the jurisdiction of the respective state educational agency, we may, from time 
to time, need to seek licensure or authorization to operate in additional states.  

We are subject to extensive regulations by the states in which we are authorized or licensed to operate. State laws typically establish 
standards for instruction, qualifications of faculty, administrative procedures, marketing, recruiting, financial operations and other operational 
matters. State laws and regulations may limit our ability to offer educational programs and to award degrees. Some states may also prescribe 
financial regulations that are different from those of the Department of Education. We are required to post surety bonds in several states. If we 
fail to comply with state licensing requirements, we may lose our state licensure or authorizations. Although we believe that the only state 
authorization or licensure necessary for us to participate in Title IV programs is our registration with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education, 
loss of authorization or licensure in other states could restrict our ability to recruit or enroll learners in those and other states. Failure to comply 
with the requirements of the Minnesota Office of Higher Education could result in Capella University losing its registration with the Minnesota 
Office of Higher Education, its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, or its ability to offer certain programs, any of which may force us 
to cease operations.  

State Professional Licensure  

Many states have specific requirements that an individual must satisfy to be licensed as a professional in a specified field. Learners often 
seek to obtain professional licensure in their chosen fields following graduation. Their success in obtaining licensure typically depends on 
several factors, including the individual merits of the graduate, as well as the following, among other factors:  
   

   

   

Due to varying requirements for professional licensure in each state, Capella University’s catalog informs learners of the risks associated 
with obtaining professional licensure and more specifically states that (1) Capella University makes no representation nor guarantees that 
completion of any educational program ensures that the learner will be able to obtain individual professional licensure or certification, and 
(2) that learners are solely responsible for determining and complying with state, local, or professional licensure and certification requirements.  

When we learn that a state has refused to grant licensure to one of our graduates, we take one or more of the following actions. In certain 
instances, where we believe the state’s refusal to license one of our graduates may be incorrect, we assist learners by providing clarifying 
information to the state. In other cases, such as where a state will not license one of our learners because a Capella University program is not 
accredited by a specific third party, we convey that information to prospective learners before they enroll in such program. In all cases, we semi-
annually remind our learners that they need to communicate directly with the state in which they intend to seek licensure to fully understand the 
licensing requirements of that state.  

Nature of Federal, State and Private Financial Support for Postsecondary Education  

The federal government provides a substantial part of its support for postsecondary education through Title IV programs, in the form of 
grants and loans to learners who can use those funds at any institution that has been certified as eligible by the Department of Education. Aid 
under Title IV programs is primarily awarded on  
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•   whether the institution and the program were approved by the state in which the graduate seeks licensure, or by a professional 

association;  
  •   whether the program from which the learner graduated meets all state requirements for professional licensure; and  
  •   whether the institution is accredited.  
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the basis of financial need, generally defined as the difference between the cost of attending the institution and the amount a learner can 
reasonably contribute to that cost. All recipients of Title IV program funds must maintain satisfactory academic progress and must also progress 
in a timely manner toward completion of their program of study. In addition, each school must ensure that Title IV program funds are properly 
accounted for and disbursed in the correct amounts to eligible learners.  

Capella University learners receive loans and grants to fund their education under the following Title IV programs: (1) the Federal Family 
Education Loan (FFEL) program and (2) the Federal Pell Grant, or Pell, program. In 2008, approximately 75% of our revenues (calculated on a 
cash basis) were derived from tuition financed under Title IV programs.  

1) FFEL.  Under the FFEL program, banks and other lending institutions make loans to learners. If a learner defaults on a loan, payment is 
guaranteed by a federally recognized guaranty agency, which is then reimbursed by the Department of Education. Learners with financial need 
qualify for interest subsidies while in school and during grace periods. In 2008, we derived approximately 74.5% of our revenues (calculated on 
a cash basis) from the FFEL program.  

2) Pell.  Under the Pell program, the Department of Education makes grants to learners who demonstrate financial need. In 2008, we 
derived approximately 0.5% of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) from the Pell program.  

In addition to the programs stated above, eligible learners at Capella University may participate in several other financial aid programs or 
receive support from other governmental and private sources. Certain learners are eligible to receive funds from educational assistance programs 
administered by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs through the Minnesota Department of Veterans Affairs. Some Capella University 
learners finance all or a portion of their own education or receive full or partial tuition reimbursement from their employers. Finally, eligible 
learners can also access private loans through a number of different lenders for funding at current market interest rates. For the year ended 
December 31, 2008, less than one percent of our learners utilized private loans, and less than one percent of our revenue was derived from 
learners utilizing private loans.  

Capella University obtained Department of Education approval in 2006 to be a School as Lender (School Lender). As a School Lender, 
Capella University can issue FFEL loans directly to learners in the same manner as banks and other financial institutions that originate FFEL 
loans and Capella University is subject to certain additional regulatory requirements that pertain solely to School Lenders and FFEL program 
lenders. Shortly after receiving approval, Capella University issued two loans in its capacity as a School Lender; these loans were subsequently 
repaid. Capella University does not have any immediate plans to issue additional loans as a School Lender. Accordingly, for the foreseeable 
future, learners who receive FFEL loans will obtain such loans from FFEL program lenders other than Capella University.  

We have been approved by the Department of Education to participate in the Federal Direct Loan Program (FDLP), under which the 
Department of Education rather than a private lender makes the loans to learners, and we have completed a pilot program in which certain of our 
learners received loans under the FDLP. We are prepared for additional learners to begin receiving loans under that program if we determine that 
such lending is necessary to continue our learners’ access to Title IV loans.  

In November 2007, the U.S. Department of Education enacted final regulations that largely restrict gifts and incentives that lenders can 
provide to colleges, closely regulate the manner in which colleges select preferred lenders, and require greater disclosure to learners about any 
preferred lender relationships. The Secretary of the Department of Education had previously formed an internal Task Force on Student 
Loans that examined and recommended regulations pertaining to lender issues. Those recommendations were incorporated in the final 
regulations released by the Department of Education in November 2007. We believe we are in compliance with these regulations.  
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Regulation of Federal Student Financial Aid Programs  

To be eligible to participate in Title IV programs, an institution must comply with specific standards and procedures set forth in the Higher 
Education Act and the regulations issued thereunder by the Department of Education. An institution must, among other things, be licensed or 
authorized to offer its educational programs by the state within which it is physically located (in our case, Minnesota) and maintain institutional 
accreditation by a recognized accrediting agency. Capella University’s current certification to participate in Title IV programs expired 
December 31, 2008. However, in September 2008, Capella University timely submitted its Title IV program participation recertification 
application to the Department of Education, and we have been collaborating with the Department of Education regarding this recertification 
application. Our eligibility continues until the Department of Education issues its decision on the application. Our current eligibility status is not 
unusual considering the process is multi-faceted and iterative. We have no reason to believe that the application will not be renewed and expect 
that the renewal process will be completed satisfactorily.  

The substantial amount of federal funds disbursed through Title IV programs, the large number of learners and institutions participating in 
these programs and allegations of fraud and abuse by certain for-profit institutions have caused Congress to require the Department of Education 
to exercise considerable regulatory oversight over for-profit institutions of higher learning. Accrediting agencies and state education agencies 
also have responsibilities for overseeing compliance of institutions with Title IV program requirements. As a result, our institution is subject to 
extensive oversight and review. Because the Department of Education periodically revises its regulations and changes its interpretations of 
existing laws and regulations, we cannot predict with certainty how the Title IV program requirements will be applied in all circumstances.  

Significant factors relating to Title IV programs that could adversely affect us include the following:  

Congressional Action.  In May 2008, Congress enacted legislation in addition to the Higher Education Act to attempt to ensure that all 
eligible learners will be able to obtain Title IV loans in the future, and that a sufficient number of lenders will continue to provide Title IV loans. 
Congress reauthorizes the Higher Education Act approximately every five to eight years. Congress most recently reauthorized the Higher 
Education Act in August 2008. The reauthorized Higher Education Act continued all of the Title IV programs in which we participate, but made 
numerous revisions to the requirements governing the Title IV programs, including provisions relating to the relationships between institutions 
and lenders that make student loans, student loan default rates, and the formula for revenue that institutions are permitted to derive from the 
Title IV programs.  

Administrative Capability.  Department of Education regulations specify extensive criteria by which an institution must establish that it has 
the requisite “administrative capability” to participate in Title IV programs. Failure to satisfy any of the standards may lead the Department of 
Education to find the institution ineligible to participate in Title IV programs or to place the institution on provisional certification as a condition 
of its participation. To meet the administrative capability standards, an institution must, among other things:  
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  •   comply with all applicable Title IV program regulations;  
  •   have capable and sufficient personnel to administer the federal student financial aid programs;  
  •   have acceptable methods of defining and measuring the satisfactory academic progress of its learners;  
  •   not have cohort default debt rates above specified levels;  
  •   have various procedures in place for safeguarding federal funds;  

  
•   not be, and not have any principal or affiliate who is, debarred or suspended from federal contracting or engaging in activity that is 

cause for debarment or suspension;  
  •   provide financial aid counseling to its learners;  

  
•   refer to the Department of Education’s Office of Inspector General any credible information indicating that any applicant, learner, 

employee, or agent of the institution, has been engaged in any fraud or other illegal conduct involving Title IV programs;  
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If an institution fails to satisfy any of these criteria or any other Department of Education regulation, the Department of Education may:  
   

   

   

   

If we are found not to have satisfied the Department of Education’s “administrative capability” requirements, we could lose, or be limited 
in our access to, Title IV program funding.  

Financial Responsibility.  The Higher Education Act and Department of Education regulations establish extensive standards of financial 
responsibility that institutions such as Capella University must satisfy to participate in Title IV programs. These standards generally require that 
an institution provide the resources necessary to comply with Title IV program requirements and meet all of its financial obligations, including 
required refunds and any repayments to the Department of Education for liabilities incurred in programs administered by the Department of 
Education.  

The Department of Education evaluates institutions on an annual basis for compliance with specified financial responsibility standards 
utilizing a complex formula that uses line items from the institution’s audited financial statements. The standards focus on three financial ratios: 
(1) equity ratio (which measures the institution’s capital resources, financial viability and ability to borrow); (2) primary reserve ratio (which 
measures the institution’s ability to support current operations from expendable resources); and (3) net income ratio (which measures the 
institution’s ability to operate at a profit or within its means). An institution’s financial ratios must yield a composite score of at least 1.5 for the 
institution to be deemed financially responsible without the need for further federal oversight. We have applied the financial responsibility 
standards to our audited financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and calculated a composite score of 3.0 
for both years, which is the maximum score attainable. We therefore believe that we meet the Department of Education’s financial responsibility 
standards. If the Department of Education were to determine that we did not meet the financial responsibility standards due to a failure to meet 
the composite score or other factors, we could establish financial responsibility on an alternative basis by, among other things:  
   

   

   

Failure to meet the Department of Education’s “financial responsibility” requirements, either because we do not meet the Department of 
Education’s minimum composite score to establish financial responsibility or are unable to establish financial responsibility on an alternative 
basis, would cause us to lose access to Title IV program funding.  
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  •   submit in a timely manner all reports and financial statements required by the regulations; and  
  •   not otherwise appear to lack administrative capability.  

  •   require the repayment of Title IV funds;  

  
•   transfer the institution from the “advance” system of payment of Title IV funds to cash monitoring status or to the “reimbursement” 

system of payment;  
  •   place the institution on provisional certification status; or  
  •   commence a proceeding to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate the participation of the institution in Title IV programs.  

  
•   posting a letter of credit in an amount equal to at least 50% of the total Title IV program funds received by the institution during the 

institution’s most recently completed fiscal year;  

  
•   posting a letter of credit in an amount equal to at least 10% of such prior year’s Title IV program funds received by us, accepting 

provisional certification, complying with additional Department of Education monitoring requirements and agreeing to receive Title 
IV program funds under an arrangement other than the Department of Education’s standard advance funding arrangement; or  

  
•   complying with additional Department of Education monitoring requirements and agreeing to receive Title IV program funds under 

an arrangement other than the Department of Education’s standard advance funding arrangement such as the “reimbursement” 
system of payment or cash monitoring.  
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Title IV Return of Funds.  Under the Department of Education’s return of funds regulations, an institution must first determine the amount 
of Title IV program funds that a learner “earned.” If the learner withdraws during the first 60% of any period of enrollment or payment period, 
the amount of Title IV program funds that the learner earned is equal to a pro rata portion of the funds for which the learner would otherwise be 
eligible. If the learner withdraws after the 60% threshold, then the learner has earned 100% of the Title IV program funds. The institution must 
return to the appropriate Title IV programs, in a specified order, the lesser of (i) the unearned Title IV program funds and (ii) the institutional 
charges incurred by the learner for the period multiplied by the percentage of unearned Title IV program funds. An institution must return the 
funds no later than 45 days after the date of the institution’s determination that a learner withdrew. If such payments are not timely made, an 
institution may be subject to adverse action, including being required to submit a letter of credit equal to 25% of the refunds the institution 
should have made in its most recently completed year. Under Department of Education regulations, late returns of Title IV program funds for 5% 
or more of learners sampled in the institution’s annual compliance audit constitutes material non-compliance. In September 2008, Capella 
University issued the Department of Education an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $1.1 million, which expires July 31 2009, in 
connection with this regulation.  

The “90/10 Rule.”  A requirement of the Higher Education Act, commonly referred to as the “90/10 Rule,” applies only to “proprietary 
institutions of higher education,” which includes Capella University. Under this rule, for periods prior to the August 2008 reauthorization of the 
Higher Education Act, an institution loses its eligibility to participate in the Title IV programs, if, on a cash accounting basis, it derives more 
than 90% of its revenues for any fiscal year from Title IV program funds. Any institution that violates the rule becomes ineligible to participate 
in the Title IV programs as of the first day of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in which it exceeds 90%, and it is unable to apply to regain 
its eligibility until the next fiscal year. The August 2008 reauthorization of the Higher Education Act included significant revisions to the “90/10 
Rule,” effective upon the date of the law’s enactment. Under the revised law, an institution is subject to loss of eligibility to participate in the 
Title IV programs only if it exceeds the 90% threshold for two consecutive fiscal years, the period of ineligibility is extended to at least two 
fiscal years, and an institution whose rate exceeds 90% for any single fiscal year will be placed on provisional certification and may be subject to 
other conditions specified by the Secretary of Education. However, the provisions of the recent Higher Education Act reauthorization allow 
institutions, when calculating their compliance with this revenue test, to exclude from their Title IV revenues for a three-year period the 
additional federal student loan amounts that became available starting in July 2008, and to include more non-Title IV revenues, such as revenues 
from institutional loans under certain circumstances. For the year ended December 31, 2008, we derived approximately 75% of our revenues 
(calculated on a cash basis) from Title IV program funds.  

Student Loan Defaults.  Under the Higher Education Act, an educational institution may lose its eligibility to participate in some or all of 
the Title IV programs if defaults on the repayment of federally guaranteed student loans by its learners exceed certain levels. For each federal 
fiscal year, a rate of student defaults (known as a “cohort default rate”) is calculated for each institution with 30 or more borrowers entering 
repayment in a given federal fiscal year by determining the rate at which borrowers who become subject to their repayment obligation in that 
federal fiscal year default by the end of the following federal fiscal year. For such institutions, the Department of Education calculates a single 
cohort default rate for each federal fiscal year that includes in the cohort all current or former student borrowers at the institution who entered 
repayment on any FFEL program Stafford loan during that year.  

If the Department of Education notifies an institution that its cohort default rates for each of the three most recent federal fiscal years are 
25% or greater, the institution’s participation in the FFEL program and Pell program ends 30 days after the notification, unless the institution 
appeals in a timely manner that determination on specified grounds and according to specified procedures. In addition, an institution’s 
participation in the FFEL program ends 30 days after notification that its most recent fiscal year cohort default rate is greater than 40%, unless 
the institution timely appeals that determination on specified grounds and according to specified procedures. An institution whose participation 
ends under these provisions may not participate in the relevant programs for the remainder of the fiscal year in which the institution receives the 
notification, as well as for the next two fiscal years.  
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If an institution’s cohort default rate equals or exceeds 25% in any single year, the institution may be placed on provisional certification 
status. Provisional certification does not limit an institution’s access to Title IV program funds; however, an institution with provisional status is 
subject to closer review by the Department of Education and may be subject to summary adverse action if it violates Title IV program 
requirements. If an institution’s default rate exceeds 40%, the institution may lose eligibility to participate in some or all Title IV programs. 
Capella University’s cohort default rates on FFEL program loans for the 2006, 2005 and 2004 federal fiscal years, the three most recent years for 
which information is available, were 1.5%, 2.3% and 2.2%, respectively. The average cohort default rates for four-year proprietary institutions 
nationally were 8.4%, 7.2% and 7.3% in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

The August 2008 reauthorization of the Higher Education Act included significant revisions to the requirements concerning FFEL cohort 
default rates. Under the revised law, the period for which learners’ defaults on their loans are included in the calculation of an institution’s cohort 
default rate has been extended by one additional year, which is expected to increase the cohort default rates for most institutions. That change 
will be effective with the calculation of institutions’ cohort default rates for federal fiscal year 2009, which are expected to be calculated and 
issued by the Department of Education in 2012. The revised law also increased the threshold for ending an institution’s participation in the 
relevant Title IV programs from 25% to 30%, effective in 2012.  

If our learners obtain loans under the Federal Direct Loan Program, those loans will be combined with our learners’ FFEL loans in 
calculating our annual student loan cohort default rate. In such case, the potential sanctions discussed in this section would be based on the 
combined cohort default rate.  

Incentive Compensation Rules.  As a part of an institution’s program participation agreement with the Department of Education and in 
accordance with the Higher Education Act, the institution may not provide any commission, bonus or other incentive payment to any person or 
entity engaged in any learner recruitment, admissions or financial aid awarding activity based directly or indirectly on success in securing 
enrollments or financial aid. Certain Department of Education regulations clarify the incentive payment rule. The regulations set forth 12 “safe 
harbors,” which describe payments or arrangements that do not violate the incentive payment rule. Failure to comply with the incentive 
compensation rules could result in loss of eligibility to participate in federal student financial aid programs or financial penalties. Although there 
can be no assurance that the Department of Education would not find deficiencies in Capella University’s present or former employee 
compensation and third-party contractual arrangements, we believe that our employee compensation and third-party contractual arrangements 
comply with the incentive compensation provisions of the Higher Education Act and Department of Education regulations thereunder.  

Compliance Reviews.  We are subject to announced and unannounced compliance reviews and audits by various external agencies, 
including the Department of Education, its Office of Inspector General (“OIG”), state licensing agencies, agencies that guarantee FFEL loans, 
the Department of Veterans Affairs and accrediting agencies. As part of the Department of Education’s ongoing monitoring of institutions’ 
administration of Title IV programs, The Higher Education Act and Department of Education regulations also require institutions to annually 
submit a compliance audit conducted by an independent certified public accountant in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
applicable audit standards of the Department of Education. In addition, to enable the Secretary of Education to make a determination of financial 
responsibility, institutions must annually submit audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Department of Education regulations.  

The OIG is responsible for, among other things, promoting the effectiveness and integrity of the Department of Education’s programs and 
operations. With respect to educational institutions that participate in Title IV funding programs, the OIG conducts its work primarily through 
compliance audits and investigations. An OIG compliance audit typically focuses on whether an institution administers federal funds in 
accordance with applicable rules and regulations, whereas an investigation typically indicates a concern regarding potential fraud or abuse 
involving federal funds. We perform periodic reviews of our compliance with the various applicable  
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regulatory requirements. We have not been notified by any of the various regulatory agencies of any significant noncompliance matters that 
would adversely impact our ability to participate in Title IV programs, however, the OIG has conducted a compliance audit of Capella 
University. The audit commenced on April 10, 2006 and we subsequently provided the OIG with periodic information, responded to follow up 
inquiries and facilitated site visits and access to our records. The OIG completed its field work in January 2007 and the University received a 
draft audit report on August 23, 2007. Capella University provided written comments on the draft audit report to the OIG on September 25, 
2007. On March 7, 2008, the OIG’s final report was issued to the Acting Chief Operating Officer (COO) for Federal Student Aid (FSA), which 
is responsible for primary oversight of the Title IV funding programs. Capella University responded to the final report on April 8, 2008. 
Recently, Capella University provided FSA staff with certain additional requested information for financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2006-
2007. The FSA will subsequently issue final findings and requirements for Capella University. The FSA may take certain actions, including 
requiring that we refund certain federal student aid funds, requiring us to modify our Title IV administration procedures, and/or requiring us to 
pay fines or penalties. The possible effects of a finding of a regulatory violation are described in additional detail below in “—Potential Effect of 
Regulatory Violations.”  

Based on the final audit report for the financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2004-2005, the most significant potential financial exposure 
from the audit pertains to repayments to the Department of Education that could be required if the OIG concludes that Capella University did not 
properly calculate the amount of Title IV funds required to be returned for learners that withdrew without providing an official notification of 
such withdrawal and without engaging in academic activity prior to such withdrawal. If it is determined that Capella University improperly 
withheld any portion of these funds, Capella University would be required to return the improperly withheld funds. Capella University and the 
OIG have differing interpretations of the relevant regulations regarding what constitutes engagement in the unofficial withdrawal context. As the 
Company interprets the engagement requirement, it currently estimates that for the three year audit period, and for the subsequent aid years 
through 2007-2008, the total amount of Title IV funds not returned—for learners who withdrew without providing official notification and 
without engaging as required in the relevant regulations—was approximately $1.0 million including interest, but not including fines and 
penalties. If this difference of interpretation is ultimately resolved in a manner adverse to the Company, then the total amount of Title IV funds 
not returned for learners who withdrew without providing official notification would be greater than the amount the Company has currently 
estimated.  

Potential Effect of Regulatory Violations.  If Capella University fails to comply with the regulatory standards governing Title IV 
programs, the Department of Education could impose one or more sanctions, including transferring Capella University to the reimbursement or 
cash monitoring system of payment, seeking to require repayment of certain Title IV program funds, requiring Capella University to post a letter 
of credit in favor of the Department of Education as a condition for continued Title IV certification, taking emergency action against Capella 
University, referring the matter for criminal prosecution or initiating proceedings to impose a fine or to limit, condition, suspend or terminate the 
participation of Capella University in Title IV programs. In addition, the agencies that guarantee FFEL loans for Capella University learners 
could initiate proceedings to limit, suspend or terminate Capella University’s eligibility to provide guaranteed student loans in the event of 
certain regulatory violations.  

If Capella University lost its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs, or if the amount of available federal student financial aid were 
reduced, we would seek to arrange or provide alternative sources of revenue or financial aid for learners. Although we believe that one or more 
private organizations would be willing to provide financial assistance to learners attending Capella University, there is no assurance that this 
would be the case, and the interest rate and other terms of such financial aid might not be as favorable as those for Title IV program funds. We 
may be required to guarantee all or part of such alternative assistance or might incur other additional costs in connection with securing 
alternative sources of financial aid.  
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Capella University also may be subject, from time to time, to complaints and lawsuits relating to regulatory compliance brought not only 
by our regulatory agencies, but also by other government agencies and third parties, such as present or former learners or employees and other 
members of the public.  

Restrictions on Adding Educational Programs.  State requirements and accrediting agency standards may, in certain instances, limit our 
ability to establish additional programs. Many states require approval before institutions can add new programs under specified conditions. The 
Higher Learning Commission, the Minnesota Office of Higher Education, and other state educational regulatory agencies that license or 
authorize us and our programs, require institutions to notify them in advance of implementing new programs, and upon notification may 
undertake a review of the institution’s licensure, authorization or accreditation.  

Generally, if an institution eligible to participate in Title IV programs adds an educational program after it has been designated as an 
eligible institution, the institution must apply to the Department of Education to have the additional program designated as eligible. However, a 
degree-granting institution is not obligated to obtain the Department of Education’s approval of additional programs that lead to an associate, 
bachelor’s, professional or graduate degree at the same degree level(s) previously approved by the Department of Education. Similarly, an 
institution is not required to obtain advance approval for new programs that both prepare learners for gainful employment in the same or related 
recognized occupation as an educational program that has previously been designated as an eligible program at that institution and meet certain 
minimum-length requirements. However, the Department of Education, as a condition of certification to participate in Title IV programs, can 
require prior approval of such programs or otherwise restrict the number of programs an institution may add. In the event that an institution that 
is required to obtain the Department of Education’s express approval for the addition of a new program fails to do so, and erroneously 
determines that the new educational program is eligible for Title IV program funds, the institution may be liable for repayment of Title IV 
program funds received by the institution or learners in connection with that program.  

Eligibility and Certification Procedures.  Each institution must apply to the Department of Education for continued certification to 
participate in Title IV programs at least every six years, or when it undergoes a change of control, and an institution may come under the 
Department of Education’s review when it expands its activities in certain ways, such as opening an additional location or, in certain cases, when 
it modifies academic credentials that it offers. Capella University’s current certification to participate in Title IV programs expired December 31, 
2008. However, in September 2008, Capella University timely submitted its Title IV program participation recertification application to the 
Department of Education. Our recertification process is described more fully in “Regulatory Environment–Regulation of Federal Student 
Financial Aid Programs.”  

The Department of Education may place an institution on provisional certification status if it finds that the institution does not fully satisfy 
all of the eligibility and certification standards. The Department of Education may withdraw an institution’s provisional certification without 
advance notice if the Department of Education determines that the institution is not fulfilling all material requirements. In addition, the 
Department of Education may more closely review an institution that is provisionally certified if it applies for approval to open a new location, 
add an educational program, acquire another school or make any other significant change.  

During the period of provisional certification, the institution must comply with any additional conditions included in its program 
participation agreement. If the Department of Education determines that a provisionally certified institution is unable to meet its responsibilities 
under its program participation agreement, it may seek to revoke the institution’s certification to participate in Title IV programs with fewer due 
process protections for the institution than if it were fully certified. Learners attending provisionally certified institutions remain eligible to 
receive Title IV program funds.  

School Acquisitions.  When a company, partnership or any other entity or individual acquires a school that is eligible to participate in 
Title IV programs, that school undergoes a change of ownership resulting in a change of control as defined by the Department of Education. 
Upon such a change of control, a school’s eligibility to  
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participate in Title IV programs is generally suspended until it has applied for recertification by the Department of Education as an eligible 
school under its new ownership, which requires that the school also re-establish its state authorization and accreditation. The Department of 
Education may temporarily and provisionally certify an institution seeking approval of a change of ownership under certain circumstances while 
the Department of Education reviews the institution’s application. The time required for the Department of Education to act on such an 
application may vary substantially. The Department of Education’s recertification of an institution following a change of control will be on a 
provisional basis.  

Change in Ownership Resulting in a Change of Control.  In addition to school acquisitions, other types of transactions can also cause a 
change of control. The Department of Education, most state education agencies and our accrediting agency all have standards pertaining to the 
change of control of schools, but these standards are not uniform. Department of Education regulations describe some transactions that constitute 
a change of control, including the transfer of a controlling interest in the voting stock of an institution or the institution’s parent corporation. 
With respect to a publicly traded corporation, Department of Education regulations provide that a change of control occurs in one of two ways: 
(i) if there is an event that would obligate the corporation to file a Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC disclosing a change of control or 
(ii) if the corporation has a shareholder that owns at least 25% of the total outstanding voting stock of the corporation and is the largest 
shareholder of the corporation, and that shareholder ceases to own at least 25% of such stock or ceases to be the largest shareholder. These 
standards are subject to interpretation by the Department of Education. A significant purchase or disposition of our voting stock could be 
determined by the Department of Education to be a change of control under this standard. Many states include the sale of a controlling interest of 
common stock in the definition of a change of control requiring approval. A change of control under the definition of one of these agencies 
would require us to seek approval of the change in ownership and control to maintain our accreditation, state authorization or licensure. The 
requirements to obtain such approval from the states and our accrediting commission vary widely. In some cases, approval of the change of 
ownership and control cannot be obtained until after the transaction has occurred.  

When a change of ownership resulting in a change of control occurs at a for-profit institution, the Department of Education applies a 
different set of financial tests to determine the financial responsibility of the institution in conjunction with its review and approval of the change 
of ownership. The institution is required to submit a same-day audited balance sheet reflecting the financial condition of the institution 
immediately following the change in ownership. The institution’s same-day balance sheet must demonstrate an acid test ratio of at least 1:1, 
which is calculated by adding cash and cash equivalents to current accounts receivable and dividing the sum by total current liabilities (and 
excluding all unsecured or uncollateralized related party receivables). In addition, the same-day balance sheet must demonstrate positive tangible 
net worth. If the institution does not satisfy these requirements, the Department of Education may condition its approval of the change of 
ownership on the institution’s agreeing to letters of credit, provisional certification, and/or additional monitoring requirements, as described in 
the above section on Financial Responsibility.  

A change of control also could occur as a result of future transactions in which Capella Education Company or Capella University is 
involved. Some corporate reorganizations and some changes in the board of directors are examples of such transactions.  
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Risks Related to the Extensive Regulation of Our Business  

If we fail to comply with the extensive regulatory requirements for our business, we could face significant restrictions on our operations and 
monetary penalties, including loss of access to federal loans and grants for our learners on which we are substantially dependent.  

In 2008, we derived approximately 75% of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) from federal student financial aid programs, referred 
to in this report as Title IV programs, administered by the U.S. Department of Education. A significant percentage of our learners rely on the 
availability of Title IV program funds to cover their cost of attendance at Capella University and related educational expenses. Title IV programs 
include educational loans for our learners from both private lenders and the federal government at below-market interest rates that are guaranteed 
by the federal government in the event of default. Title IV programs also include several income-based grant programs for learners with the 
greatest economic need as determined in accordance with Department of Education regulations. To participate in Title IV programs, a school 
must receive and maintain authorization by the appropriate state higher education agencies, be accredited by an accrediting agency recognized 
by the Secretary of the Department of Education and be certified as an eligible institution by the Department of Education. As a result, we are 
subject to extensive regulation by state higher education agencies, our accrediting agency, and the Department of Education. These regulatory 
requirements cover the vast majority of our operations, including our educational programs, facilities, instructional and administrative staff, 
administrative procedures, marketing, recruiting, financial operations and financial condition. These regulatory requirements can also affect our 
ability to acquire or open additional schools, to add new or expand existing educational programs and to change our corporate structure and 
ownership. The state higher education agencies, our accrediting agency and the Department of Education periodically revise their requirements 
and modify their interpretations of existing requirements.  

If we fail to comply with any of these regulatory requirements, our regulatory agencies could impose monetary penalties, place limitations 
on our operations, terminate our ability to grant degrees and certificates, revoke our accreditation and/or terminate our eligibility to receive 
Title IV program funds, each of which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, should we fail to 
properly comply with the regulatory requirements set forth in the following risk factors, and as a result be charged, sanctioned, subjected to loss 
of a federal, state or agency approval or authorization, or otherwise be penalized in some way, our reputation could be damaged and such 
damage could have a negative impact on our stock price. We cannot predict with certainty how all of these regulatory requirements will be 
applied or whether we will be able to comply with all of the requirements in the future. We have described some of the most significant 
regulatory risks that apply to us in the following paragraphs.  

If we are not recertified to participate in Title IV programs by the Department of Education or if the Department otherwise suspends or 
terminates our certification, we would lose eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.  

Capella University’s current certification to participate in Title IV programs expired on December 31, 2008. We timely submitted our Title 
IV recertification application to the Department of Education in September 2008 and our eligibility continues on a month-to-month basis until 
the Department of Education issues its decision on the application. Generally, the recertification process includes a review by the Department of 
Education of an institution’s educational programs and locations, administrative capability, financial responsibility, and other oversight 
categories.  

The Department of Education may also review our continued certification to participate in Title IV programs in the event we expand our 
activities in certain ways, such as opening an additional location or, in certain cases, if we modify the academic credentials that we offer. The 
Department of Education could limit, suspend or terminate our participation in Title IV programs for violations of the Higher Education Act or 
Title IV regulations. Title IV eligibility is critical to the continued operation of our business. If Capella University is not recertified, it would 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  
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Congress may change the law or reduce funding for Title IV programs, which could reduce our learner population, revenues and profit 
margin.  

Congress reauthorizes the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (the Higher Education Act) and other laws governing Title IV 
programs approximately every five to eight years. The last reauthorization of the Higher Education Act was completed in August 2008, which 
extends authorization through September 2013. Additionally, Congress reviews and determines appropriations for Title IV programs on an 
annual basis through the budget and appropriations process. Any action by Congress that significantly reduces funding for Title IV programs or 
the ability of our school or learners to participate in these programs could reduce the ability of certain of our learners to finance their education, 
and could thereby have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Congressional action may also 
require us to modify our practices in ways that could increase our administrative costs and reduce our profit margin, which could also have a 
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

If the U.S. Congress significantly reduced the amount of available Title IV program funding, we would attempt to arrange for alternative 
sources of financial aid for our learners. We cannot assure that one or more private organizations would be willing or able to provide loans to 
learners attending Capella University, or that the interest rate and other terms of such loans would be as favorable as for Title IV program loans 
or acceptable to our learners, and therefore our enrollment could be materially impacted. In addition, private organizations could require us to 
guarantee all or part of this assistance and we might incur other additional costs. If we provided more direct financial assistance to our learners, 
we would incur additional costs and assume increased credit risks, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

The Office of Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Education has an ongoing compliance audit of Capella University which may 
result in repayment of Title IV funds, interest, fines, penalties, remedial action and damage to our reputation in the industry.  

The Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) of the U.S. Department of Education is responsible for, among other things, promoting the 
effectiveness and integrity of the Department of Education’s programs and operations. With respect to educational institutions that participate in 
the Title IV funding programs, the OIG conducts its work primarily through compliance audits and investigations. An OIG compliance audit 
typically focuses upon whether an institution administers federal funds in accordance with applicable rules and regulations, whereas an 
investigation typically indicates a concern regarding potential fraud or abuse involving federal funds. In our case, the OIG has conducted a 
compliance audit (and not an investigation) of Capella University. The period under audit is the Title IV award years of 2002-2003, 2003-2004 
and 2004-2005 (with each award year commencing on July 1st).  

The audit commenced on April 10, 2006 and we subsequently provided the OIG with periodic information, responded to follow up 
inquiries and facilitated site visits and access to our records. The OIG completed its field work in January 2007 and we received a draft audit 
report on August 23, 2007. Capella University provided written comments on the draft audit report to the OIG on September 25, 2007. On 
March 7, 2008, the OIG’s final report was issued to the Acting Chief Operating Officer (COO) for Federal Student Aid (FSA), which is 
responsible for primary oversight of the Title IV funding programs. The Company responded to the final report on April 8, 2008. Recently, the 
Company provided FSA staff with certain requested information for financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2006-2007. The FSA will 
subsequently issue final findings and requirements for Capella University. The FSA may take certain actions, including that we refund certain 
federal student aid funds, modify our Title IV administration procedures and pay fines or penalties.  

The audit primarily focused on whether we properly calculated the amount of Title IV funds required to be returned for learners who 
withdrew from Capella University without providing an official notification of withdrawal and without engaging in the course room prior to such 
withdrawal. In its final report, the OIG  
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identified several such learners for whom it believes proper returns of Title IV funds were not made. Based on the final audit report, the most 
significant potential financial exposure from the audit relates to repayments to the Department of Education that could be required if the FSA 
concludes that the Company did not properly calculate the amount of Title IV funds required to be returned for learners that withdrew from 
Capella University without providing an official notification of such withdrawal and without engaging in the course room prior to such 
withdrawal. If the FSA determines that Capella University improperly withheld any portion of these funds, Capella University would be required 
to return the improperly withheld funds. We and the OIG have differing interpretations of the relevant regulations regarding what constitutes 
engagement in the unofficial withdrawal context. As we interpret the engagement requirement, we currently estimate that for the three year audit 
period, and for the subsequent aid years through 2007-2008, the total amount of Title IV funds not returned—for learners who withdrew without 
providing official notification and without engaging as required by the relevant regulations—was approximately $1.0 million including interest, 
but not including fines and penalties.  

As part of our internal process of continuously evaluating and attempting to improve our policies and procedures, prior to the initiation of 
the OIG audit we had already begun modifying our policies and procedures for determining whether a learner is engaged in course room activity. 
We developed these policies and procedures during spring 2006 and fully implemented them for the 2006-2007 financial aid year. Based on our 
review and interpretation of the applicable regulations, we believe that these revised policies and procedures appropriately measure whether or 
not a learner has engaged prior to withdrawal without providing official notification. However, the OIG is currently interpreting the relevant 
regulations to require a different measure of engagement in academic activity in such circumstances. If this difference of interpretation is 
ultimately resolved in a manner adverse to us, then the total amount of Title IV funds not returned for learners who withdrew without providing 
official notification would be greater than the amount we have currently estimated.  

The audit also focused on our policies and procedures for disbursing Title IV funding to learners, and to a lesser extent on our 
communication to our learners of our satisfactory academic progress policy, our exit counseling for federal student loan recipients, and our 
review of learners’ financial aid histories prior to disbursing Title IV funding. See “Regulatory Environment—Regulation of Federal Student 
Financial Aid Programs—Compliance Reviews” for information about the OIG audit staff’s inquiries.  

Because of the ongoing nature of the OIG audit process, we can neither know nor predict with certainty the ultimate extent of the final 
audit findings, or the potential liability or remedial actions that might result. Such findings and related remedial action may have an adverse 
impact on our reputation in the industry, our cash flows and results of operations and our ability to recruit learners, and may have an adverse 
effect on our stock price. The possible effects of a finding of a regulatory violation (including refunds, fines, penalties and limitations, 
conditions, suspension or termination of our participation in Title IV programs) are described more fully in “Regulatory Environment—
Regulation of Federal Student Financial Aid Programs—Potential Effect of Regulatory Violations.”  

If we fail to maintain our institutional accreditation, we would lose our ability to participate in Title IV programs and lose our authorization 
to operate in a number of states.  

Capella University is accredited by The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, one of six 
regional accrediting agencies recognized by the Secretary of the Department of Education as a reliable indicator of educational quality. 
Accreditation by a recognized accrediting agency is required for an institution to become and remain eligible to participate in Title IV programs. 
In February 2008, we received a letter of reaffirmation from The Higher Learning Commission, effective through 2015. To remain accredited we 
must continuously meet certain criteria and standards relating to, among other things, performance, governance, institutional integrity, 
educational quality, faculty, administrative capability, resources and financial stability. Failure to meet any of these criteria or standards could 
result in the loss of accreditation at the discretion of The Higher Learning Commission. The loss of accreditation would, among other things, 
render our learners and us ineligible to participate in Title IV programs, reduce the marketability of a Capella degree and have a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  
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If Capella University does not maintain its registration in Minnesota, it may not operate or participate in Title IV programs or operate a 
number of other states.  

A school that grants degrees, diplomas or certificates must be authorized by the relevant education agency of the state in which it is 
located. Capella University is deemed to be located in the State of Minnesota and is registered with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education. 
State registration is also required for our learners to be eligible to receive funding under Title IV programs. Such registration may be lost or 
withdrawn if Capella University fails to submit renewal applications and other required submissions to the state in a timely manner, or if Capella 
University fails to comply with material requirements under Minnesota statutes and rules for continued registration. Loss of state registration of 
Capella University from the Minnesota Office of Higher Education would terminate our ability to provide educational services as well as our 
eligibility to participate in Title IV programs. Capella must also remain in good standing with the Minnesota Office of Higher Education to 
obtain and maintain authorization or licensure to operate in states outside of Minnesota. Should our registration with the Minnesota Office of 
Higher Education be terminated, our ability to operate in other states would also cease.  

Increased oversight and changes in student loan environment may negatively impact our business.  

As a result of increased scrutiny on student loan programs, including the Title IV programs, Congress has passed new laws, the 
Department of Education has enacted stricter regulations, and several states have adopted codes of conduct or enacted state laws that regulate the 
conduct of lenders, schools, and school personnel. These new laws and regulations, among other things, limit schools’ relationships with lenders, 
restrict the types of services that schools may receive from lenders, prohibit lenders from providing other types of funding to schools in exchange 
for Title IV loan volume, require schools to provide additional information to learners concerning institutionally preferred lenders, and 
significantly reduce the amount of federal payments to lenders who participate in the Title IV loan programs. In addition, recent adverse market 
conditions for consumer loans in general have affected the student lending marketplace. The cumulative impact of these developments and 
conditions has caused some lenders to cease providing Title IV loans to learners, including some lenders that have previously provided Title IV 
loans to our learners.  

Other lenders have reduced the benefits and increased the fees associated with the Title IV loans they do provide. These actions by lenders 
have required some institutions to modify student loan practices in ways that result in higher administrative costs. If the costs of their Title IV 
loans increase, some learners may decide not to take out loans and not enroll in a postsecondary institution. In May 2008, new federal legislation 
was enacted to attempt to ensure that all eligible learners will be able to obtain Title IV loans in the future and that a sufficient number of lenders 
will continue to provide Title IV loans. Among other things, the new legislation:  
   

   

Capella University cannot predict whether this legislation and related actions by the Department of Education will be effective in ensuring 
our learners’ access to Title IV loan funding. The uncertainty surrounding these issues, and any resolution of these issues that increases loan 
costs or reduces learners’ access to Title IV loans, may adversely affect our enrollments. If our learners and potential learners are unable to 
receive loans on acceptable terms, they may not be able to, or might choose not to, enroll, which could materially and adversely affect our 
enrollment, revenues and results of operations.  

We are subject to sanctions if we fail to correctly calculate and timely return Title IV program funds for learners who withdraw before 
completing their educational program.  

A school participating in Title IV programs must correctly calculate the amount of unearned Title IV program funds that have been 
disbursed to learners who withdraw from their educational programs before completion and  
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•   authorizes the Department of Education to purchase Title IV loans from lenders, thereby providing capital to the lenders to enable 

them to continue making Title IV loans to learners; and  

  
•   permits the Department of Education to designate institutions eligible to participate in a “ lender of last resort”  program, under which 

federally recognized student loan guaranty agencies will be required to make Title IV loans to all otherwise eligible learners at those 
institutions.  
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must return those unearned funds in a timely manner, generally within 45 days of the date the school determines that the learner has withdrawn. 
Under Department of Education regulations, late returns of Title IV program funds for 5% or more of learners sampled on the institution’s 
annual compliance audit constitutes material non-compliance. If unearned funds are not properly calculated and timely returned, an institution 
may have to post a letter of credit in favor of the Department of Education or otherwise be sanctioned by the Department of Education. In 
September 2008, Capella University issued the Department of Education an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $1.1 million, which 
expires July 31, 2009, in connection with the amount of Title IV program funds that we returned for learners who withdrew from their 
educational programs before completion and without providing official notification of such withdrawal. While issuance of this letter of credit did 
not have a significant impact on our cost of regulatory compliance, any future violations or sanctions could materially and adversely impact our 
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.  

A failure to demonstrate “financial responsibility” may result in the loss of eligibility by Capella University to participate in Title IV 
programs or require the posting of a letter of credit to maintain eligibility to participate in Title IV programs.  

To participate in Title IV programs, an eligible institution must satisfy specific measures of financial responsibility prescribed by the 
Department of Education, or post a letter of credit in favor of the Department of Education and possibly accept other conditions on its 
participation in Title IV programs. The Department of Education may also apply such measures of financial responsibility to the operating 
company and ownership entities of an eligible institution and, if such measures are not satisfied by the operating company or ownership entities, 
require the institution to post a letter of credit in favor of the Department of Education and possibly accept other conditions on its participation in 
Title IV programs. Any obligation to post a significant letter of credit could increase our costs of regulatory compliance. If Capella University is 
unable to secure a letter of credit, it would lose its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs. In addition to the obligation to post a letter of 
credit, an institution that is determined by the Department of Education not to be financially responsible can be transferred from the “advance” 
system of payment of Title IV funds to cash monitoring status or to the “reimbursement” system of payment. Limitations on, or termination of, 
Capella University’s participation in Title IV programs as a result of its failure to demonstrate financial responsibility would limit Capella 
University’s learners’ access to Title IV program funds, which could significantly reduce our enrollments and revenues and materially and 
adversely affect our results of operations.  

A failure to demonstrate “administrative capability” may result in the loss of Capella University’s eligibility to participate in Title IV 
programs.  

Department of Education regulations specify extensive criteria an institution must satisfy to establish that it has the requisite 
“administrative capability” to participate in Title IV programs. These criteria require, among other things, that the institution:  
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  •   comply with all applicable Title IV program regulations;  
  •   have capable and sufficient personnel to administer the federal student financial aid programs;  
  •   have acceptable methods of defining and measuring the satisfactory academic progress of its learners;  
  •   not have cohort default debt rates above specified levels;  
  •   have various procedures in place for safeguarding federal funds;  

  
•   not be, and not have any principal or affiliate who is, debarred or suspended from federal contracting or engaging in activity that is 

cause for debarment or suspension;  
  •   provide financial aid counseling to its learners;  

  
•   refer to the Department of Education’s Office of Inspector General any credible information indicating that any applicant, learner, 

employee or agent of the institution has been engaged in any fraud or other illegal conduct involving Title IV programs;  
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If an institution fails to satisfy any of these criteria or comply with any other Department of Education regulations, the Department of 
Education may:  
   

   

   

   

If we are found not to have satisfied the Department of Education’s “administrative capability” requirements we could be limited in our 
access to, or lose, Title IV program funding, which would significantly reduce our enrollment and revenues and materially and adversely affect 
our results of operations.  

We are subject to sanctions if we pay impermissible commissions, bonuses or other incentive payments to individuals involved in certain 
recruiting, admissions or financial aid activities.  

A school participating in Title IV programs may not provide any commission, bonus or other incentive payment to any person involved in 
learner recruiting or admission activities or in making decisions regarding the awarding of Title IV program funds based on success in enrolling 
learners or securing financial aid. If we violate this law, we could be fined or otherwise sanctioned by the Department of Education. Any such 
fines or sanctions could harm our reputation, impose significant costs on us, and have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.  

Our failure to comply with regulations of various states could result in actions taken by those states that would have a material adverse effect 
on our enrollments, revenues and results of operations.  

Various states impose regulatory requirements on educational institutions operating within their boundaries. Several states have sought to 
assert jurisdiction over online educational institutions that have no physical location or other presence in the state but offer educational services 
to learners who reside in the state, or that advertise to or recruit prospective learners in the state. State regulatory requirements for online 
education are inconsistent between states and not well developed in many jurisdictions. As such, these requirements change frequently and, in 
some instances, are not clear or are left to the discretion of state employees or agents. Our changing business and the constantly changing 
regulatory environment require us to continually evaluate our state regulatory compliance activities. In the event we are found not to be in 
compliance, and a state seeks to restrict one or more of our business activities within its boundaries, we may not be able to recruit learners from 
that state and may have to cease providing service to learners in that state.  
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  •   submit in a timely manner all reports and financial statements required by the regulations; and  
  •   not otherwise appear to lack administrative capability.  

  •   require the repayment of Title IV funds;  

  
•   transfer the institution from the “advance” system of payment of Title IV funds to cash monitoring status or to the “reimbursement” 

system of payment;  
  •   place the institution on provisional certification status; or  
  •   commence a proceeding to impose a fine or to limit, suspend or terminate the participation of the institution in Title IV programs.  
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Capella University is subject to extensive regulations by the states in which it is authorized or licensed to operate. In addition to Minnesota, 
Capella University is authorized or licensed in the following 17 states for all or some of its programs because we have determined that our 
activities in these states constitute a physical presence or otherwise require authorization or licensure by the respective state higher educational 
agencies:  
   

As of the last day of classes for the quarter ended December 31, 2008, the number of learners living in each of these states (other than 
Minnesota, North Carolina, Florida and Georgia) was less than 5% of our total enrollment. As of the last day of classes for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2008, approximately 5% of our learners lived in Minnesota and North Carolina, respectively, approximately 7% lived in Florida 
and approximately 9% lived in Georgia.  

In some cases, the licensure or authorization to operate is only for specific programs. In the majority of these states, Capella University has 
determined that separate licensure or authorization for its certificate programs is not necessary, although approval of certificate programs is 
required and has been obtained from the States of Arizona, Florida, Ohio and Washington. State laws typically establish standards for 
instruction, qualifications of faculty, administrative procedures, marketing, recruiting, financial operations and other operational matters. State 
laws and regulations may limit our ability to offer educational programs and award degrees. Some states may also prescribe financial regulations 
that are different from those of the Department of Education. Capella University is required to post surety bonds in several states. If we fail to 
comply with state licensing or authorization requirements, we may be subject to the loss of state licensure or authorization. Although we believe 
that the only state licensure or authorization that is necessary for Capella University to participate in Title IV programs is our registration with 
the Minnesota Office of Higher Education, loss of licensure or authorization to operate in other states could prohibit us from recruiting or 
enrolling learners in those and other states, reduce significantly our enrollments and revenues and have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations.  

The inability of our graduates to obtain licensure in their chosen professional fields of study could reduce our enrollments and revenues, and 
potentially lead to litigation that could be costly to us.  

Certain of our graduates seek professional licensure in their chosen fields following graduation. Their success in obtaining licensure 
depends on several factors, including the individual merits of the learner, but also  
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State    Capella University Activity Constituting Presence Requiring Licensure or Authorization 

Alabama    Agreement with a former provider of library services to Capella learners. 
Arizona    Capella conducts activities in the state that constitutes physical presence. 
Arkansas    Agreement with WalMart Stores, Inc. constitutes physical presence. 
Florida    Recruiting activities in the state. 
Georgia    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state. 
Illinois    State agency broadly interprets licensure requirements to cover all institutions serving residents of the state. 
Kentucky    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state. 
Nevada    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state. 
North Carolina    Learners participating in practica and internships triggers physical presence 
Ohio    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state for select programs. 
Pennsylvania    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state 
South Carolina    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state 
Virginia    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state; agreements with community colleges. 
Washington    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state 
West Virginia    Direct marketing and recruiting activities in the state. 
Wisconsin    State agency broadly interprets licensure requirements to cover all institutions serving residents of the state. 
Wyoming    State agency interprets registration requirements to cover all institutions who have faculty residing in their state 
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may depend on whether the institution and the program were approved by the state or by a professional association, whether the program from 
which the learner graduated meets all state requirements and whether the institution is accredited. Certain states have refused to license learners 
who graduate from programs that do not meet specific types of accreditation, residency or other state requirements. Specifically, certain states 
have refused to license learners from particular Capella University programs due to the fact that the program did not meet one or more of the 
state’s specific licensure requirements or were not approved by the state for purposes of professional licensure. We have had to respond to claims 
brought against us by former learners as a result of such refusal. Certain states have denied our graduates professional licensure because the 
Capella University program from which they graduated did not have a sufficient number of residency hours, did not include a state-approved 
clinical program, did not satisfy state coursework requirements, or was not accredited by a specific third party (such as the American 
Psychological Association). The state requirements for licensure are subject to change, and we may not immediately become aware of changes 
that may impact our learners in certain states. In the event that one or more states refuses to recognize our learners for professional licensure in 
the future based on factors relating to our institution or programs, the potential growth of our programs would be negatively impacted, which 
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, we could be exposed to litigation that would force us to incur legal 
and other expenses that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.  

We may lose eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if the percentage of our revenue derived from those programs is too high, which 
would significantly reduce our learner population.  

Under a provision o f the Higher Education Act commonly referred to as the “90/10 Rule,” as revised by the August 2008 reauthorization 
of the Higher Education Act, a for-profit institution loses its eligibility to participate in Title IV programs if, on a cash accounting basis, it 
derives more than 90% of its revenue, as defined by the Higher Education Act and Department of Education Regulations, from Title IV 
programs in two consecutive fiscal years. An institution that violates this 90/10 Rule for two consecutive fiscal years becomes ineligible to 
participate in Title IV programs for a period of not less than two institutional fiscal years. An institution that derived more than 90% of its 
revenue from Title IV programs for any single fiscal year will be placed on provisional certification and will be subject to possible additional 
sanctions by the Department of Education. If an institution violated the 90/10 Rule and became ineligible to participate in Title IV programs but 
continued to disburse Title IV program funds, the Department of Education would require the institution to repay all Title IV program funds 
received by the institution after the effective date of the loss of eligibility. In 2008, under the regulatory formula prescribed by the Department of 
Education, we derived approximately 75% of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) from Title IV programs.  

Recent changes in federal law that increased Title IV grant and loan limits, and any additional increases in the future, may result in an 
increase in the revenues we receive from the Title IV programs, which could make it more difficult for us to satisfy the “90/10 Rule.” In 
addition, economic downturns that adversely affect our learners’ employment circumstances could also increase their reliance on Title IV 
programs. If we lose our eligibility to participate in Title IV programs because more than 90% of our revenues are derived from Title IV program 
funds in any year, our learners would no longer be eligible to receive Title IV program funds under various government-sponsored financial aid 
programs, which would significantly reduce our enrollments and revenues and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

Risks Related to Our Business  

Our financial performance depends in part on our ability to update and expand the content of existing programs and develop new programs 
and specializations on a timely basis and in a cost-effective manner.  

The updates and expansions of our existing programs and the development of new programs and specializations may not be accepted by 
existing or prospective learners or the employers of our graduates. If we cannot respond to changes in market requirements, our business may be 
adversely affected. Even if we are able  
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to develop acceptable new programs, we may not be able to introduce these new programs as quickly as learners require or as quickly as our 
competitors introduce competing programs. In addition, we may be unable to obtain specialized accreditations or licensures that may make 
certain programs desirable to learners. To offer a new academic program, we may be required to obtain appropriate federal, state and accrediting 
agency approvals, which may be conditioned or delayed in a manner that could significantly affect our growth plans. In addition, to be eligible 
for federal student financial aid programs, a new academic program may need to be certified by the Department of Education. If we are unable to 
respond adequately to changes in market requirements due to regulatory or financial constraints, rapid technological changes or other factors, our 
ability to attract and retain learners could be impaired, the rates at which our graduates obtain jobs involving their fields of study could suffer, 
and our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected.  

Establishing new academic programs or modifying existing programs requires us to make investments in management and capital 
expenditures, incur marketing expenses and reallocate other resources. We may have limited experience with the courses in new areas and may 
need to modify our systems and strategy or enter into arrangements with other educational institutions to provide new programs effectively and 
profitably. If we are unable to increase the number of learners, or offer new programs in a cost-effective manner, or are otherwise unable to 
manage effectively the operations of newly established academic programs, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely 
affected.  

Our financial performance depends on our ability to continue to develop awareness among, and attract and retain, working adult learners.  

Building awareness of Capella University and the programs we offer among working adult learners is critical to our ability to attract 
prospective learners. If we are unable to successfully market and advertise our educational programs, Capella University’s ability to attract and 
enroll prospective learners in such programs could be adversely affected, and consequently, our ability to increase revenue or maintain 
profitability could be impaired. It is also critical to our success that we convert these prospective learners to enrolled learners in a cost-effective 
manner and that these enrolled learners remain active in our programs. Some of the factors that could prevent us from successfully enrolling and 
retaining learners in our programs include:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

If we are unable to continue to develop awareness of Capella University and the programs we offer, and to enroll and retain learners, our 
enrollments would suffer and our ability to increase revenues and maintain profitability would be significantly impaired.  
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  •   the emergence of more successful competitors;  
  •   factors related to our marketing, including the costs of Internet advertising and broad-based branding campaigns;  
  •   performance problems with our online systems;  
  •   failure to maintain accreditation;  
  •   learner dissatisfaction with our services and programs, including with our customer service and responsiveness;  
  •   adverse publicity regarding us, our competitors or online or for-profit education generally;  
  •   price reductions by competitors that we are unwilling or unable to match;  
  •   a decline in the acceptance of online education or our degree offerings by learners or current and prospective employers;  
  •   increased regulation of online education, including in states in which we do not have a physical presence;  
  •   a decrease in the perceived or actual economic benefits that learners derive from our programs; and  
  •   litigation or regulatory investigations that may damage our reputation.  
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Strong competition in the postsecondary education market, especially in the online education market, could decrease our market share, 
increase our cost of acquiring learners and put downward pressure on our tuition rates.  

Postsecondary education, especially in the online market, is highly competitive. We compete with traditional public and private two-year 
and four-year colleges and other for-profit schools, as well as corporate universities and software companies providing online education and 
training software. Each of these competitors may offer programs similar to ours at lower tuition levels as a result of government subsidies, 
government and foundation grants, tax-deductible contributions and other financial sources not available to for-profit institutions. In addition, 
some of our competitors, including both traditional colleges and universities and other for-profit schools, have substantially greater name 
recognition and financial and other resources than we have, which may enable them to compete more effectively for potential learners and 
decrease our market share. It is also possible that some of our competitors may develop platforms or other technologies that are superior to the 
platform and technology we use and we may not have the resources necessary to acquire or compete with these technologies. We also expect to 
face increased competition as a result of new entrants to the online education market, including established colleges and universities that had not 
previously offered online education programs. Moreover, one or more of our competitors may obtain specialized accreditations that improve 
their competitive positions against us.  

We may not be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors and may face competitive pressures that could adversely 
affect our business or results of operations. For example, as the market continues to mature, certain of our competitors have begun to reduce 
tuition rates. We may therefore be required to reduce our tuition or increase spending in response to competition to retain or attract learners or 
pursue new market opportunities. We may also face increased competition in maintaining and developing new marketing relationships with 
corporations, particularly as corporations become more selective as to which online universities they will encourage their current employees to 
attend and from which online universities they will hire prospective employees. These competitive factors could cause our enrollments, revenues 
and profitability to significantly decrease.  

System disruptions and vulnerability from security risks to our online computer networks could impact our ability to generate revenue and 
damage the reputation of Capella University, limiting our ability to attract and retain learners.  

The performance and reliability of our technology infrastructure is critical to our reputation and ability to attract and retain learners. Any 
system error or failure, or a sudden and significant increase in bandwidth usage, could result in the unavailability of our courseroom platform, 
damaging our ability to generate revenue. Our technology infrastructure could be vulnerable to interruption or malfunction due to events beyond 
our control, including natural disasters, terrorist activities and telecommunications failures. We currently use the Blackboard Learning System 
courseroom platform and Oracle’s PeopleSoft enterprise resource planning system.  

We may experience interruptions or failures in our computer systems as a result of ongoing maintenance of and enhancements to our 
enterprise resource planning system, courseroom platform, and/or server system. Any interruption to our technology infrastructure could have a 
material adverse effect on our ability to attract and retain learners and could require us to incur additional expenses to correct or mitigate the 
interruption.  

Our computer networks may also be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer hackers, computer viruses and other security problems 
and system disruptions. We engage with multiple security assessment providers on a periodic basis to review and assess our security. We utilize 
this information to audit ourselves to ensure that we are continually monitoring the security of our technology infrastructure, but it may still be 
vulnerable to threats. A user who circumvents security measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions or 
malfunctions in operations. As a result, we may be required to expend significant resources to protect against the threat of these security 
breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows.  
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A failure of our information systems to properly store, process and report relevant data may reduce our management’s effectiveness, 
interfere with our regulatory compliance and increase our operating expenses.  

We are heavily dependent on the integrity of our data management systems. If these systems do not effectively collect, store, process and 
report relevant data for the operation of our business, whether due to equipment malfunction or constraints, software deficiencies, or human 
error, our ability to effectively plan, forecast and execute our business plan and comply with applicable laws and regulations, including the 
Higher Education Act and the regulations thereunder, will be impaired, perhaps materially. Any such impairment could materially and adversely 
affect our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.  

The personal information that we collect may be vulnerable to breach, theft or loss that could adversely affect our reputation and operations.  

Possession and use of personal information in our operations subjects us to risks and costs that could harm our business. Capella University 
collects, uses and retains large amounts of personal information regarding our learners and their families, including social security numbers, tax 
return information, personal and family financial data and credit card numbers. We also collect and maintain personal information of our 
employees in the ordinary course of our business. Some of this personal information is held and managed by certain of our vendors. Although we 
use security and business controls to limit access and use of personal information, a third party may be able to circumvent those security and 
business controls, which could result in a breach of student or employee privacy. In addition, errors in the storage, use or transmission of 
personal information could result in a breach of student or employee privacy. Possession and use of personal information in our operations also 
subjects us to legislative and regulatory burdens that could require notification of data breaches and restrict our use of personal information. We 
cannot assure you that a breach, loss or theft of personal information will not occur. A breach, theft or loss of personal information regarding our 
learners and their families or our employees that is held by us or our vendors could have a material adverse effect on our reputation and results of 
operations and result in liability under state and federal privacy statutes and legal actions by state attorneys, general and private litigants, and any 
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

If the proportion of our students who are enrolled in our bachelor’s degree programs continues to increase, we may experience increased 
cost and reduced margins.  

Our bachelor’s degree programs are currently growing at a faster rate than our doctoral or master’s degree programs. This bachelor’s 
degree growth has caused the proportion of our learners enrolled in bachelor’s degree programs to increase, while the proportion enrolled in our 
doctoral programs has decreased. This mix shift may continue in the future, and we may experience certain negative consequences, such as 
decreased revenue per learner, higher cost per new enrollment, lower retention rates and/or higher student services costs, higher default rates, an 
increase in the percentage of our revenue derived from Title IV funding under the 90/10 Rules, more limited ability to implement tuition price 
increases and other effects that may adversely affect our operating results.  

We may experience declines in our revenue and enrollment growth rates, and we may not be able to maintain current operating margin 
improvements.  

We have experienced significant growth since we established our university in 1993. However, while we have continued to achieve growth 
in revenues and enrollment year-over-year, these growth rates have declined in some recent periods and may continue to decline in the future. In 
addition, if we are not able to achieve growth in revenues and enrollment, we may not be able to maintain current operating margin 
improvements. Specifically, we expect additional competitors to enter the online educational market and increased competition for online 
education offerings, including from colleges and universities that provide blended educational programs involving both classroom and online 
components.  
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We rely on exclusive proprietary rights and intellectual property that may not be adequately protected under current laws, and we encounter 
disputes from time to time relating to our use of intellectual property of third parties.  

Our success depends in part on our ability to protect our proprietary rights. We rely on a combination of copyrights, trademarks, service 
marks, trade secrets, domain names and agreements to protect our proprietary rights. We rely on service mark and trademark protection in the 
United States and select foreign jurisdictions to protect our rights to the marks “CAPELLA,” “CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY,” and 
“CAPELLA UNIVERSITY,” as well as distinctive logos and other marks associated with our services. We rely on agreements under which we 
obtain rights to use course content developed by faculty members and other third-party content experts. We cannot assure you that these 
measures will be adequate, that we have secured, or will be able to secure, appropriate protections for all of our proprietary rights in the United 
States or select foreign jurisdictions, or that third parties will not infringe upon or violate our proprietary rights. Despite our efforts to protect 
these rights, unauthorized third parties may attempt to duplicate or copy the proprietary aspects of our curricula, online resource material and 
other content. Our management’s attention may be diverted by these attempts and we may need to use funds in litigation to protect our 
proprietary rights against any infringement or violation.  

We may encounter disputes from time to time over rights and obligations concerning intellectual property, and we may not prevail in these 
disputes. In certain instances, we may not have obtained sufficient rights in the content of a course. Third parties may raise a claim against us 
alleging an infringement or violation of the intellectual property of that third party. Some third party intellectual property rights may be 
extremely broad, and it may not be possible for us to conduct our operations in such a way as to avoid those intellectual property rights. Any 
such intellectual property claim could subject us to costly litigation and impose a significant strain on our financial resources and management 
personnel regardless of whether such claim has merit. Our general liability and cyber liability insurance may not cover potential claims of this 
type adequately or at all, and we may be required to alter the content of our classes or pay monetary damages or license fees to third parties, 
which could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

We may incur liability for the unauthorized duplication or distribution of class materials posted online for class discussions.  

In some instances, our faculty members or our learners may post various articles or other third-party content on class discussion boards. 
We may incur liability for the unauthorized duplication or distribution of this material posted online for class discussions. Third parties may raise 
claims against us for the unauthorized duplication of this material. Any such claims could subject us to costly litigation and impose a significant 
strain on our financial resources and management personnel regardless of whether the claims have merit. Our general liability insurance may not 
cover potential claims of this type adequately or at all, and we may be required to alter the content of our courses or pay monetary damages, 
which could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

A reclassification of our adjunct faculty may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.  

Adjunct faculty comprised approximately 84% of our faculty population at December 31, 2008. We classify our adjunct faculty as 
independent contractors, as opposed to employees. Because we classify our adjunct faculty as independent contractors, with respect to these 
individuals we do not withhold federal or state income or other employment-related taxes, make federal or state unemployment tax or Federal 
Insurance Contributions Act, or FICA, payments, provide workers’ compensation insurance or provide certain benefits available to our 
employees. The determination of whether adjunct faculty members are properly classified as independent contractors or as employees is based 
upon the facts and circumstances of our relationship with our adjunct faculty members. Federal or state authorities or current or former adjunct 
faculty members may challenge our classification as incorrect and assert that our adjunct faculty members must be classified as employees. 
During 2008, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) commenced an employment tax audit of Capella University. As part of  
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that audit, the IRS has requested information about our adjunct faculty. During 2008, the IRS issued determination letters to two former adjunct 
faculty members determining that they were employees, rather than independent contractors. While these determinations were fact specific and 
did not require us to take further action, it is possible that the IRS could challenge our adjunct faculty classification as part of the employment 
tax audit.  

In the event that we were to reclassify our adjunct faculty as employees, we would be required to withhold the appropriate taxes, make 
unemployment tax and FICA payments and pay for workers’ compensation insurance and additional payroll processing costs. If we had 
reclassified our adjunct faculty members as employees for 2008, we estimate our additional tax, workers’ compensation insurance and payroll 
processing payments would have been approximately $2.5 million. The amount of additional tax and insurance payments would increase in the 
future as the total amount we pay to adjunct faculty increases. In addition to these known costs, we could be subject to retroactive taxes and 
penalties, which may be significant, by federal and state authorities, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows. In the event that we were to reclassify our adjunct faculty as employees, we could also be required to permit these 
individuals to participate in certain of our employee benefit plans, perhaps retroactively.  

Legislation pending before Congress may make it easier and more desirable for employees to form unions, which may increase our costs.  

The Employee Free Choice Act is currently pending before Congress. If passed into law, this Act would make it easier for employees to 
organize unions and force companies to submit to binding arbitration for first contracts with newly formed unions. In addition, penalties for 
firing union backers would be significantly increased. Any efforts by our employees or faculty to form a union, whether or not successful, could 
increase our costs, which could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

We have recently named a new Chief Executive Officer, and any challenges during this transition may adversely impact our organization.  

Our success to date has depended, and will continue to depend, largely on the skills, efforts and motivation of our executive officers. Our 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Stephen Shank, has been our Chief Executive Officer since he founded Capella in 1991. We have 
announced that J. Kevin Gilligan will succeed Mr. Shank as CEO in early March 2009. Transitioning leadership of our company from the 
founder to a new CEO may cause strategic or operational challenges for our organization, the impact of which could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

Our learner population and revenues could decrease if the government tuition assistance offered to U.S. Armed Forces personnel is reduced 
or eliminated, if the tuition discounts which we offer to U.S. Armed Forces personnel are reduced or eliminated, or if our informal 
arrangements with any military bases deteriorate.  

Active duty members of the U.S. Armed Forces are eligible to receive tuition assistance from the government, which they may use to 
pursue postsecondary degrees. We offer tuition discounts generally ranging from 10% to 15% to all members of the U.S. Armed Forces and 
immediate family members of active duty U.S. Armed Forces personnel. During 2008, we provided approximately $4.9 million of such 
discounts. We also have non-exclusive agreements with various educational institutions of the U.S. Armed Forces pursuant to which we have 
agreed to accept credits toward a Capella University degree from certain military educational programs. These agreements generally may be 
terminated by either party upon 30 to 45 days’ notice. Additionally, we have informal arrangements with several military bases pursuant to 
which the bases make information about Capella University available to interested service members. Each of these informal arrangements is not 
binding on either party and either party could end the arrangement at any time. If our informal arrangement with any military base  
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deteriorates or ends, our efforts to recruit learners from that base will be impaired. In the event that governmental tuition assistance programs to 
active duty members of the U.S. Armed Forces are reduced or eliminated, if our tuition discount program which we offer U.S. Armed Forces 
personnel and their immediate family members is reduced or eliminated, or if our informal arrangements with any military base deteriorates, this 
could materially and adversely affect our revenues and results of operations.  

If we do not maintain existing, and develop additional, relationships with employers, our future growth may be impaired.  

We currently have relationships with large employers to provide their employees with the opportunity to obtain degrees through us while 
continuing their employment. These relationships are an important part of our strategy as they provide us with a steady source of potential 
working adult learners for particular programs and also serve to increase our reputation among high-profile employers. If we are unable to 
develop new relationships, or if our existing relationships deteriorate or end, our efforts to seek these sources of potential working adult learners 
will be impaired, and this could materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

Our business may be adversely affected by a general economic slowdown or recession in the U.S. or abroad.  

The U.S. economy and the economies of other key industrialized countries currently are characterized by reduced economic activity, 
increased unemployment and substantial uncertainty about their financial services markets. The U.S. economy is in a recession and other key 
economies either are in or may be heading toward recession. In addition, homeowners in the U.S. have experienced an unprecedented reduction 
in wealth due to the decline in residential real estate values across much of the country. These events, particularly unemployment and residential 
real estate financing challenges, may reduce the number of courses taken simultaneously by each of our learners or otherwise reduce the demand 
for our programs and colloquia among learners, including among learners who receive financial aid and determine they are unwilling to incur 
additional debt during current economic conditions, regardless of financial aid availability. Further, these events may reduce the willingness of 
employers to sponsor educational opportunities for their employees. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our business, 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, these events could adversely affect the ability or willingness of our former 
learners to repay student loans, which could increase our student loan cohort default rate and require increased time, attention and resources to 
manage these defaults.  

An increase in interest rates or other decrease in loan availability could adversely affect our ability to attract and retain learners.  

Approximately 75% of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) for the year ended December 31, 2008, were derived from Title IV 
programs, which involve subsidized student borrowing. Additionally, some of our learners finance a portion of their education through private, 
unsubsidized borrowing. In addition, in the event Congress decreases the amount available for federal student aid, our learners may have to pay 
higher, unsubsidized interest rates. Any future increase in interest rates or other decrease in loan availability (whether as a result of government 
action or credit market conditions) will result in a corresponding increase in educational costs to our existing and prospective learners, which 
could result in a significant reduction in our learner population and revenues.  

Disruptions in FFELP or other changes in the federal student lending environment could restrict or limit our learners’ access to federal 
student loans, thereby materially impacting our enrollment and revenue.  

The Title IV federal financial aid received by our learners is administered through the Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP), 
which enables private sector lenders to make federally guaranteed student loans. In response to both Congressional subsidy cuts and instability in 
the credit markets, a certain number of FFELP lenders have recently either withdrawn from the program or limited the borrowers to whom they 
will make student loans. Some of the lenders who have withdrawn from or limited access to FFELP loans had  
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previously made loans to certain of our learners. To date, our learners have been able to continue to access FFELP loans through other program 
participants; however, there is no assurance that they will be able to continue to do so if additional disruptions occur in FFELP or other federal 
student lending options, such as the Federal Direct Lending Program (FDLP). If our learners are unable to utilize FFELP or FDLP loans, either 
through lack of accessibility, system overload or disruptions, or prohibitive cost increases, our enrollment and revenue would be materially 
reduced.  

The significant uncertainty about the asset portfolios of companies in both the U.S. and worldwide financial services sector, dramatic 
volatility in trading markets and recent failures and near failures of financial institutions may adversely impact our investment portfolio and 
investment returns.  

The recent failures, bankruptcies, rescues and distressed acquisitions of previously highly rated financial institutions such as Federal 
National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), American International Group, Inc., 
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., The Bear Stearns Companies Inc., Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc., Washington Mutual Savings Bank and Wachovia 
Corporation, indicate a possibly dramatic realignment of companies in the financial services sector and reflect the market’s lack of a clear 
understanding of the financial health of financial institutions. Many widely-held investments previously rated investment grade have declined in 
value precipitously and unexpectedly within the past year, resulting in substantial trading and investment losses for corporate and other investors. 
To avoid these risks, investors have favored securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, which has resulted in reduced yields on 
these and other investments considered to be lower risk. Although we generally employ a conservative investment strategy, we may incur 
investment losses as a result of these unusual and unpredictable market developments and we may experience reduced investment earnings if the 
yields on investments deemed to be low risk remain low or decline further in this time of economic uncertainty. In addition, these unusual and 
unpredictable market developments may also create liquidity challenges for certain of the assets in our investment portfolio.  

   

None.  

   

Our corporate headquarters occupies approximately 349,400 square feet in Minneapolis, Minnesota, under a lease which expires in 
October 2015. Renewal terms under this lease allow for us to extend the current lease for up to two additional five-year terms. We also lease 
approximately 91,500 square feet in a second facility in Minneapolis that previously housed our enrollment services and learner services 
functions. That lease expires in February 2009 and will not be renewed. We believe our existing facilities are adequate for current requirements 
and that additional space can be obtained on commercially reasonable terms to meet future requirements.  

   

From time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. 
We are not at this time a party, as plaintiff or defendant, to any legal proceedings which, individually or in the aggregate, would be expected to 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.  

   

No matters were voted upon by shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2008.  
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT  

Set forth below is certain information concerning our executive officers as of February 24, 2009 and persons chosen to become executive 
officers:  
   

Stephen G. Shank founded our company in 1991 and has been serving as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since that time. We 
have announced that Mr. Shank will be retiring from his role as CEO in early March 2009, at which time he will be succeeded by J. Kevin 
Gilligan. Mr. Shank will remain as Chairman of our Board of Directors. Mr. Shank also has been serving as Chancellor of Capella University 
since 2001. Mr. Shank has been a director of Capella University from 2006 until the present and from 1993 through 2003. Mr. Shank served as 
emeritus director of Capella University from 2003 to 2006. From 1979 to 1991, Mr. Shank was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Tonka 
Corporation, an NYSE-listed manufacturer of toys and games. Mr. Shank is a member of the board of directors of Tennant Company, an NYSE-
listed manufacturer of cleaning solutions. Mr. Shank earned a B.A. from the University of Iowa, an M.A. from the Fletcher School, a joint 
program of Tufts and Harvard Universities, and a J.D. from Harvard Law School.  

Dr. Michael J. Offerman joined our company in 2001 and has been serving as our Senior Vice President since that time. Dr. Offerman 
currently is our Vice Chairman—External University Initiatives, and he served as President of Capella University from 2001 to 2007. 
Dr. Offerman was also a director of Capella University from 2001 to 2006. From 1994 to 2001, Dr. Offerman served as Dean of the Division of 
Continuing Education at the University of Wisconsin-Extension, the University of Wisconsin’s institution dedicated to the development and 
delivery of continuing education and online programs. Dr. Offerman also has served on a number of national boards, including the American 
Council on Education, Capella University Continuing Education Association, and the National Technology Advisory Board. Dr. Offerman 
earned a B.A. from the University of Iowa, an M.S. from the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee and an Ed.D. from Northern Illinois 
University.  

Lois M. Martin joined our company in 2004 and has been serving as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since that time. 
From 2002 to 2004, Ms. Martin served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at World Data Products, and from 1993 to 2001, 
Ms. Martin served in a number of executive positions, including Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, at Deluxe Corporation. 
Ms. Martin is a member of the board of directors of ADC, Inc., a publicly held global supplier of network infrastructure, and MTS Systems 
Corporation, a publicly held global manufacturer of mechanical testing solutions. She was also a member of the board of directors of eFunds 
Corporation, an NYSE-listed company offering integrated information, payment and technology solutions, in 2000. From 1996 to 2001, 
Ms. Martin also served as Secretary/Treasurer for the Deluxe Corporation Foundation and the W.R. Hotchkiss Foundation, a provider of 
education and other grant funding to non-profit organizations. Ms. Martin began her career at Coopers and Lybrand (now 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP), where she earned her C.P.A. designation. Ms. Martin earned a B.A. from Augustana College, where she 
currently serves on the Board of Trustees.  

Scott M. Henkel joined our company in 2004 and since February 2008 he has been serving as our Senior Vice President, Operations and 
Chief Information Officer. Prior to that time, he served as our Vice President and  
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Name    Age    Position 

Stephen G. Shank 
   

65 
   

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Mr. Shank also serves as Chancellor and as a director of Capella 
University) 

Michael J. Offerman    61    Senior Vice President and Vice Chair of External Initiatives 
Lois M. Martin    46    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Scott M. Henkel    54    Senior Vice President, Operations and Chief Information Officer 
Gregory W. Thom    52    Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
Sally B. Chial    48    Senior Vice President, Human Resources 
Christopher Cassirer 

   

44 
   

Senior Vice President (Dr. Cassirer also serves as President  
of Capella University) 

J. Kevin Gilligan    54    Appointed Chief Executive Officer, effective March 2, 2009 
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Chief Information Officer. From 1994 to 2003, Mr. Henkel served as Chief Information Officer and Vice President of Software Engineering at 
Datacard Group. Mr. Henkel earned a B.A. from Metropolitan State University and an M.B.A. in finance from the College of St. Thomas.  

Gregory W. Thom joined our company in 2003 and has been serving as Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary since that time. 
From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Thom served as Senior Vice President, Global Sales and Distribution at Datacard Group. From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Thom 
served as Vice President, Government Solutions at Datacard Group. From 1994 to 2000, Mr. Thom served as Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary at Datacard Group. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Thom was an attorney with Dorsey & Whitney LLP, a Minneapolis-based law firm. 
Mr. Thom earned a B.A. from Bethel College, an M.B.A. from the University of Connecticut and a J.D. from William Mitchell College of Law.  

Sally B. Chial joined our company in 2007 and currently serves as our Senior Vice President of Human Resources. From 2007 to February 
2009, Ms. Chial was our Vice President of Human Resources. She was previously a member of the Senior Leadership Teams for Organizational 
Effectiveness and Human Resources at Cargill from 2004 to 2007 and served as one of the company’s lead human resource managers from 2001 
to 2004. Ms. Chial earned a Bachelor of Arts with an emphasis on human resources and finance from Metropolitan State University, and a 
Master of Arts in public administration, with an emphasis on human resources and organizational development, from Hamline University.  

Dr. Christopher Cassirer joined our company in 2005 and currently serves as Senior Vice President. Dr. Cassirer is also president of 
Capella University, a position he assumed in February 2009. From May 2008 to February 2009, Dr. Cassirer served as acting president of 
Capella University. He was also elected to Capella University’s Board of Directors in October 2008. He joined Capella University’s School of 
Human Services as a faculty director in 2005 and was appointed dean of the school in 2006. Previously, Dr. Cassirer was an associate professor 
and director in the Department of Health Services Management and Leadership at The George Washington University from 2003 to 2005; chair 
of executive studies and associate professor of healthcare management at the University of Minnesota’s Carlson School of Management from 
1999 to 2003; co-founder and former CEO of the Partnership for Patient Safety in Chicago from 1999 to 2000; and assistant vice president for 
knowledge services with MMI Companies Inc. from 1998 to 1999. Dr. Cassirer earned his Doctor of Science in Health Policy and Management 
and completed his post-doctoral training at Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health. He earned a Master of Public Health in Health 
Policy from the Yale University School of Medicine and a Bachelor of Arts in Psychology from Rutgers University.  

J. Kevin Gilligan will be joining our company in March 2009 to serve as our Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our board of 
directors. He was previously the Chief Executive Officer of United Subcontractors, Inc., a nationwide construction services company, from 2004 
until February 2009. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Gilligan served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Automation and Control Solutions 
Group of Honeywell International, a diversified technology and manufacturing company. From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Gilligan served as President of 
the Home and Building Control Division of Honeywell International. He also served as president of the Solutions and Services Division of 
Honeywell International from 1997 to 1999 and as Vice President and General Manager of the North American Region of the Home and 
Building Control Division from 1994 to 1997. Mr. Gilligan is a member of the board of directors for Graco Inc., a publicly held manufacturer 
and supplier of fluid handling equipment, and until February 2009 was a member of the board and the lead independent director for ADC, Inc., a 
publicly held global supplier of network infrastructure . Mr. Gilligan earned a B.A. from Boston College.  
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PART II  
   

Market Information  

Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “CPLA.” The following table sets forth, for the periods 
indicated, the high and low sales price of the Company’s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Market.  
   

Holders  

As of January 31, 2009, there were approximately 35 holders of record of our common stock.  

Dividends  

Except for the special distribution paid in connection with our IPO in 2006, we have not declared or paid, and do not anticipate declaring 
or paying, any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. The payment of any dividends in the future will be at the 
discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, earnings, capital requirements, 
contractual restrictions, outstanding indebtedness and other factors deemed relevant by our board.  
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Item 5. Market for Registrant ’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

     High    Low 

2008        

First Quarter (January 1, 2008 – March 31, 2008)     $ 69.81    $ 50.82 
Second Quarter (April 1, 2008 – June 30, 2008)     $ 66.85    $ 54.28 
Third Quarter (July 1, 2008 – September 30, 2008)     $ 63.14    $ 41.00 
Fourth Quarter (October 1, 2008 – December 31, 2008)     $ 61.17    $ 34.78 

2007        

First Quarter (January 1, 2007 – March 31, 2007)     $ 35.70    $ 24.46 
Second Quarter (April 1, 2007 – June 30, 2007)     $ 47.33    $ 31.42 
Third Quarter (July 1, 2007 – September 30, 2007)     $ 57.99    $ 38.25 
Fourth Quarter (October 1, 2007 – December 31, 2007)     $ 75.38    $ 55.03 
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Performance Graph  

The following graph shows a comparison from November 10, 2006 (the date our common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq Global 
Market) through December 31, 2008 of cumulative total return for our common stock, companies we deem to be in our industry peer group, and 
the Nasdaq Composite Index. The companies included in the industry peer group consist of American Public Education, Inc. (APEI), Apollo 
Group, Inc. (APOL), ITT Education Services, Inc. (ESI), and Strayer Education, Inc. (STRA). There were no changes to our industry peer group 
in 2008. APEI became a public company and commenced trading their common stock on November 9, 2007; therefore, we commenced 
including them in our peer group as of that date. The returns set forth on the following graph are based on historical results and are not intended 
to suggest future performance. The performance graph assumes $100 was invested on November 10, 2006 in either our common stock, the 
companies in our peer group, or the Nasdaq Composite Index. Data for the Nasdaq Composite and our peer group assume reinvestment of 
dividends. There has not been a record date for dividends to be paid on our common stock since it commenced trading on the Nasdaq Global 
Market, and we have no present plans to declare any dividends.  

  

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities  

None.  

Use of Proceeds  

Not applicable.  
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers  

During the three months ended December 31, 2008, the Company used $4.1 million to repurchase shares of common stock under its 
repurchase program. The Company’s repurchase program was announced on July 30, 2008 for repurchases up to an aggregate amount of $60.0 
million in value of common stock with no expiration date. As of December 31, 2008, we had purchased 0.2 million shares under this program at 
an average price of $46.03 totaling $8.3 million. The Company’s remaining authorization for common stock repurchases was $51.7 million at 
December 31, 2008.  

A summary of the Company’s share repurchases during the quarter is set forth below:  
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Period    
Total Number of 
Shares Purchased    

Average Price Paid 
 

per Share    

Total Number of  
Shares Purchased as 

 
Part of Publicly  

Announced Plans or 
 

Programs    

Approximate Dollar 
Value of Shares  

That May Yet Be  
Purchased Under the 

 
Plans or Programs 

10/1/2008 to 10/31/2008     68,304    $ 39.73    68,304    $ 53,088,581 
11/1/2008 to 11/30/2008     24,588    $ 48.63    24,588    $ 51,892,856 
12/1/2008 to 12/31/2008     3,485    $ 52.42    3,485    $ 51,710,164 

                        

Total     96,377    $ 42.46    96,377    $ 51,710,164 
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The following table sets forth our selected consolidated financial and operating data as of the dates and for the periods indicated. You 
should read this data together with “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our 
consolidated financial statements and related notes, included elsewhere in this Annual Report of Form 10-K. The selected consolidated statement 
of operations data for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008, and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, and 
selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, have been derived from our audited consolidated financial 
statements not included in this Annual Report of Form 10-K. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be 
expected for future periods.  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

     Year Ended December 31,   

     2008 (a) 
  2007 (a) 

  2006 (a) 
  2005   2004   

     (In thousands, except per share and enrollment data)   

Statement of Operations Data:             

Revenues     $ 272,295   $ 226,236   $ 179,881   $ 149,240   $ 117,689   
Costs and expenses:             

Instructional costs and services       120,347     100,129     83,627     71,243     58,850   
Marketing and promotional       82,733     69,779     56,646     45,623     35,089   
General and administrative       29,113     26,378     21,765     17,501     13,885   

                               
  

Total costs and expenses       232,193     196,286     162,038     134,367     107,824   
                               

  

Operating income       40,102     29,950     17,843     14,873     9,865   
Other income, net       4,061     4,903     4,472     2,306     724   

                               
  

Income before income taxes       44,163     34,853     22,315     17,179     10,589   
Income tax expense (benefit)       15,375     12,069     8,904     6,929     (8,196 ) 

                               
  

Net income     $ 28,788   $ 22,784   $ 13,411   $ 10,250   $ 18,785   
                               

  

Net income per common share:             

Basic     $ 1.71   $ 1.39   $ 1.09   $ 0.89   $ 1.68   
Diluted     $ 1.66   $ 1.33   $ 1.06   $ 0.86   $ 1.62   

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:          

Basic       16,835     16,396     12,271     11,476     11,189   
Diluted       17,322     17,141     12,629     11,975     11,599   

Other Data:             

Depreciation and amortization (b)     $ 12,246   $ 9,772   $ 8,195   $ 6,474   $ 5,454   
Net cash provided by operating activities     $ 44,836   $ 37,179   $ 28,901   $ 28,940   $ 16,049   
Capital expenditures     $ 14,375   $ 16,061   $ 15,354   $ 9,079   $ 7,541   
EBITDA (c)     $ 52,348   $ 39,722   $ 26,038   $ 21,347   $ 15,319   
Enrollment (d)       26,883     22,316     17,976     14,613     12,252   

     As of December 31,   
     2008   2007   2006   2005   2004   
     (In thousands)   

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:             

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities     $ 123,597   $ 143,767   $ 87,661   $ 72,133   $ 49,980   
Working capital (e)       113,409     129,422     69,147     53,718     37,935   
Total assets       179,556     200,275     129,314     106,562     80,026   
Long term liabilities       7,921     7,010     4,151     2,366     8   
Total redeemable preferred stock       —       —       —       57,646     57,646   
Shareholders’  equity (deficit)       140,837     156,874     93,745     14,414     (5 ) 
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We believe EBITDA is useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance and liquidity because it is widely used to measure a 
company’s operating performance without regard to items such as depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization can vary 
depending upon accounting methods and the book value of assets. We believe EBITDA presents a meaningful measure of corporate 
performance exclusive of our capital structure and the method by which assets were acquired. Our management uses EBITDA:  

   

   

The following table provides a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA:  
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(a) Operating income, income before income taxes and EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 included $4.3 

million, $3.4 million and $4.2 million of stock-based compensation expense recognized under FAS 123(R). Net income and net income per 
common share for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 included $3.0 million, $2.6 million and $3.1 million of stock-based 
compensation expense recognized under FAS 123(R). In accordance with the modified prospective transition method provided under FAS 
123(R), our consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of FAS 123
(R). 

(b) Depreciation and amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Amortization 
includes amounts related to purchased software, capitalized website development costs and internally developed software. 

(c) EBITDA consists of net income minus other income, net plus income tax expense (benefit) and plus depreciation and amortization. Other 
income, net consists primarily of interest income earned on marketable securities, net of any interest expense for capital leases and notes 
payable. We use EBITDA as a measure of operating performance. However, EBITDA is not a recognized measurement under U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, and when analyzing our operating performance, investors should use EBITDA in 
addition to, and not as an alternative for, net income as determined in accordance with GAAP. Because not all companies use identical 
calculations, our presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. Furthermore, EBITDA 
is not intended to be a measure of free cash flow, as it does not consider certain cash requirements such as tax payments. 

  
•   as a measurement of operating performance, because it assists us in comparing our performance on a consistent basis, as it removes 

depreciation, amortization, interest and taxes; and  

  
•   in presentations to the members of our board of directors to enable our board to have the same measurement basis of operating 

performance as is used by management to compare our current operating results with corresponding prior periods and with the results 
of other companies in our industry.  

     Year Ended December 31,   
     2008     2007     2006     2005     2004   
     (In thousands)   

Net income     $ 28,788     $ 22,784     $ 13,411     $ 10,250     $ 18,785   
Other income, net       (4,061 )     (4,903 )     (4,472 )     (2,306 )     (724 ) 
Income tax expense (benefit)       15,375       12,069       8,904       6,929       (8,196 ) 
Depreciation and amortization       12,246       9,772       8,195       6,474       5,454   

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

EBITDA     $ 52,348     $ 39,722     $ 26,038     $ 21,347     $ 15,319   
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

(d) Enrollment reflects the total number of learners registered in a course as of the last day of classes for such periods. 

(e) Working capital is calculated by subtracting total current liabilities from total current assets. 
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You should read the following discussion together with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in 
this report.  

Overview  

Background  

We are an exclusively online postsecondary education services company. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Capella University, is a regionally 
accredited university that offers a variety of undergraduate and graduate degree programs primarily for working adults.  

We were founded in 1991, and in 1993 we established our wholly owned university subsidiary, then named The Graduate School of 
America, to offer doctoral and master’s degrees through distance learning programs in management, education, human services and 
interdisciplinary studies. In 1995, we launched our online format for delivery of our doctoral and master’s degree programs over the Internet. In 
1997, our university subsidiary received accreditation from the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools (later renamed The Higher 
Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools). In 1998, we began the expansion of our original portfolio of 
academic programs by introducing doctoral and master’s degrees in psychology and a master of business administration degree. In 1999, to 
expand the reach of our brand in anticipation of moving into the bachelor’s degree market, we changed our name to Capella Education Company 
and the name of our university to Capella University. In 2000, we introduced our bachelor’s degree completion program in information 
technology, which provided instruction for the last two years of a four-year bachelor’s degree. In 2001, we introduced our bachelor’s degree 
completion program in business. In 2004, we introduced our four-year bachelor’s degree programs in business and information technology, as 
well as three master’s-level specializations in education targeted at K-12 teachers. At December 31, 2008, we offered over 1,020 courses and 22 
degree programs with 111 specializations at the undergraduate and graduate levels to more than 26,800 learners.  

In November 2006, we completed an initial public offering of our common stock. In May 2007, we completed a follow-on offering of our 
common stock. We implemented an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system from 2006 through 2008 in which the final module was 
implemented in July 2008. During the first half of 2008 we commenced and completed a $50.0 million stock repurchase program, and during the 
second half of 2008 we commenced an additional stock repurchase program for up to $60.0 million of our common stock.  

Our key financial results metrics  

Revenues . Revenues consist principally of tuition, application and graduation fees, and commissions we earn from bookstore and 
publication sales. During each of 2008, 2007 and 2006 tuition represented approximately 98.5% of our revenues. Factors affecting our revenues 
include: (i) the number of enrollments; (ii) the number of courses per learner; (iii) our degree and program mix; (iv) the number of programs and 
specializations we offer; (v) annual tuition adjustments; and (vi) the number of colloquia events and enrollments at each event.  

Enrollments for a particular time period are defined as the number of learners registered in a course on the last day of classes within that 
period. We offer monthly start options for newly enrolled learners. Learners who start their program in the second or third month of a quarter 
transition to a quarterly schedule beginning in their second quarter. Enrollments are a function of the number of continuing learners at the 
beginning of each period and new enrollments during the period, which are offset by graduations, withdrawals and inactive learners during the 
period. Inactive learners for a particular period include learners who are not registered in a class and, therefore, are not generating revenues for 
that period, but who have not withdrawn from Capella University. We believe that our enrollments are influenced by the attractiveness of our 
program offerings and learning experience, the effectiveness of our marketing and recruiting efforts, the quality of our instructors, the number of  
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programs and specializations we offer, the availability of federal and other funding, the length of our educational programs, the seasonality of 
our enrollments and general economic conditions. The bachelor’s program is currently our fastest growing program and we believe demand 
dynamics for the bachelor’s program may be strengthened by the current economic environment.  

The following is a summary of our learners as of the last day of classes for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:  
   

Tuition and Fees . Our tuition rates vary by type and length of program and by degree level, such as doctoral, master’s or bachelor’s. For 
all master’s and bachelor’s programs and for selected doctoral programs, tuition is determined by the number of courses taken by each learner. 
For the 2007-2008 academic year (the academic year that began in July 2007), prices per course generally ranged from $1,540 to $2,060. The 
price of the course will vary based upon the number of credit hours, the degree level of the program and the discipline. For the 2007-2008 
academic year, the majority of doctoral programs were priced at a fixed quarterly amount of $4,176 per learner, regardless of the number of 
courses in which the learner was registered. The fixed quarterly tuition for doctoral learners in their comprehensive exam or dissertation was 
$3,505. The reduced tuition rate for doctoral learners who have paid for 16 quarters, completed all coursework except for their comprehensive 
exam or dissertation and met all colloquia requirements was $875 per quarter. Based on prices from the 2007-2008 academic year, we estimate 
that tuition is in the mid $50,000 range for a full four-year bachelor’s program, from approximately $18,000 to $36,000 for a master’s program, 
and from approximately $38,000 to $61,000 for a doctoral program. These amounts and ranges assume no reductions for transfer credits. Many 
of our learners reduce their total program costs at Capella University by transferring credits earned at other institutions.  

Tuition increases generally ranged from 3% to 8% in the 2007-2008 academic year as compared to the prior academic year. Tuition 
increases have not historically been, and may not in the future be, consistent across our programs and specializations due to market conditions or 
changes in operating costs that have an impact on price adjustments of individual programs or specializations.  

Capella University implemented a tuition increase generally ranging from 2% to 5% for the 2008-2009 academic year (the academic year 
that began in July 2008). The price increase resulted in prices per course generally ranging from $1,620 to $2,120 for master’s, bachelor’s and 
certificate programs. The majority of doctoral programs were priced at a fixed quarterly amount of $4,335 per learner, regardless of the number 
of courses in which the learner was registered. The fixed quarterly tuition for doctoral learners in their comprehensive exam or dissertation 
increased to $3,690. The reduced tuition rate for doctoral learners who have paid for 16 quarters, completed all coursework except for their 
comprehensive exam or dissertation and met all colloquia requirements increased to $960 per quarter. Based on prices from the 2008-2009 
academic year, we estimate that tuition is in the mid $50,000 range for a full four-year bachelor’s program, from approximately $20,000 to 
$41,000 for a master’s program, and from approximately $42,000 to $63,000 for a doctoral program. These amounts and ranges assume no 
reductions for transfer credits. Many of our learners reduce their total program costs at Capella University by transferring credits earned at other 
institutions.  

“Other” in the table above refers primarily to certificate-seeking learners. Certificate programs generally consist of four courses, and the 
price of a course depends on the number of credit hours, the degree level of the  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 

Doctoral     9,723    8,573    7,473 
Master’s     12,388    10,032    7,685 
Bachelor’s     4,635    3,595    2,729 
Other     137    116    89 

               

Total     26,883    22,316    17,976 
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program and the discipline. For the 2007-2008 academic year, prices per course in certificate programs generally ranged from $1,580 to $2,060. 
For the 2008-2009 academic year, prices per course in certificate programs did not change.  

A large portion of our learners rely on funds received under various government-sponsored student financial aid programs, predominantly 
Title IV programs, to pay a substantial portion of their tuition and other education-related expenses. In the years ended December 31, 2008, 
2007, and 2006, approximately 75%, 74% and 71%, respectively, of our revenues (calculated on a cash basis) were attributable to funds derived 
from Title IV programs. In addition to Title IV funding, our learners receive financial aid from other governmental sources, tuition 
reimbursement from their employers or the Department of Defense or finance their education with their own funds or through private financing 
institutions.  

Costs and expenses . We categorize our costs and expenses as (i) instructional costs and services expenses, (ii) marketing and promotional 
expenses and (iii) general and administrative expenses.  

Instructional costs and services expenses are items of expense directly attributable to the educational services we provide our learners. This 
expense category includes salaries and benefits of full-time faculty, administrators and academic advisors, and costs associated with adjunct 
faculty. Instructional pay for adjunct faculty varies across programs and is primarily dependent on the number of learners taught. Instructional 
costs and services expenses also include costs of educational supplies, costs associated with academic records and other university services, and 
an allocation of facility, admissions and human resources costs, stock-based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization and 
information technology costs that are attributable to providing educational services to our learners.  

Marketing and promotional expenses include salaries and benefits of personnel engaged in recruitment and promotion, as well as costs 
associated with advertising and the production of marketing materials related to new enrollments and current learners. Our marketing and 
promotional expenses are generally affected by the cost of advertising media, the efficiency of our marketing efforts, salaries and benefits for our 
sales personnel, and the number of advertising initiatives for new and existing academic programs. Marketing and promotional expenses also 
include an allocation of facility, admissions and human resources costs, stock-based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization and 
information technology costs that are attributable to marketing and promotional efforts.  

General and administrative expenses include salaries and benefits of employees engaged in corporate management, finance, compliance 
and other corporate functions, together with an allocation of facility and human resources costs, stock-based compensation expense, depreciation 
and amortization and information technology costs attributable to such functions. General and administrative expenses also include bad debt 
expense and any charges associated with asset impairments.  

Other income, net . Other income, net consists primarily of interest income earned on cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities.  

Factors affecting comparability  

We set forth below selected factors that we believe have had, or are expected to have, a significant effect on the comparability of recent or 
future results of operations:  

Introduction of new programs and specializations . At December 31, 2005, learners seeking doctoral degrees represented approximately 
44% of our enrollment, while learners seeking master’s and bachelor’s degrees represented approximately 39% and 16% of our enrollment, 
respectively. The higher concentration of learners in doctoral programs reflects our early emphasis on these programs. In 2006, we introduced 
three specializations in master’s in business administration, including healthcare management, two bachelor’s level  
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specializations in accounting and information assurance and security, and two doctoral specializations in education servicing K-12 teachers. In 
2007, we launched six new degree programs and 31 new specializations across our three vertical markets, including doctoral, master’s, and 
bachelor’s level programs in Public Safety and nine PhD specializations. At December 31, 2007, learners seeking doctoral, master’s and 
bachelor’s degrees represented approximately 38%, 45% and 16%, respectively, of our enrollment. In 2008, we launched three new degree 
programs including a PhD in Counselor Education and Supervision and a Master’s degree in both Human Resource Management and 
Organizational Development. We also introduced 10 new specializations across our three vertical markets. We continue to see a slight mix shift 
in our enrollments from doctoral programs to master’s and bachelor’s programs. Relative to our doctoral programs, our master’s and bachelor’s 
programs have lower revenue per learner and higher marketing and promotional, learner recruitment and support costs. At December 31, 2008, 
learners seeking doctoral, master’s and bachelor’s degrees represented approximately 36%, 46% and 17%, respectively, of our enrollment.  

We expect to introduce additional degree programs and specializations in the future. We make investments in program and specialization 
development, support infrastructure and marketing and selling when introducing new programs and specializations, while associated revenues 
are dependent upon enrollment, which in many cases is lower during the period of new program and specialization introduction and 
development. During the period of new program and specialization introduction and development, the rate of growth of revenues and operating 
income has been, and may be, adversely affected in part due to these factors. As our newer programs and specializations develop, we anticipate 
increases in enrollment, more cost-effective delivery of instructional and support services and more efficient marketing and promotional 
processes.  

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates  

The discussion of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. During the preparation of these financial statements, we are required 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses and related disclosures. On 
an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, 
contingencies, stock-based compensation expense, other than temporary impairments and income taxes. We base our estimates on historical 
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The results of our analysis form the basis 
for making assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, and the impact of such differences may be material to our consolidated 
financial statements.  

We believe that the following critical accounting policies involve our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of 
our consolidated financial statements:  

Revenue recognition . Tuition revenue represented approximately 98.5% of our revenues recognized for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. Course tuition revenue is deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over the period of instruction, which is 
generally from one and a half to three months. Colloquia tuition revenue is recognized over the length of the colloquia, which ranges from two 
days to two weeks. Deferred revenue in any period represents the excess of tuition and fees received as compared to tuition and fees recognized 
in revenue on the consolidated statement of operations and is reflected as a current liability on our consolidated balance sheet.  

Allowance for doubtful accounts . We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability, 
failure or refusal of our learners to make required payments. We determine the allowance for doubtful accounts amount based on an analysis of 
the accounts receivable detail and historical write-off experience.  
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In establishing our credit practices, we seek to strike an appropriate balance between prudent learner credit policies and learner retention. 
Accordingly, we periodically review and alter learner credit policies to achieve that objective by restricting or expanding the availability of credit 
we extend. Changes to credit practices may impact enrollments, revenues, accounts receivables, our allowance for doubtful accounts and bad 
debt expense. If changes in credit practices result in higher receivable balances, if the financial condition of our learners deteriorates resulting in 
an impairment of their ability to pay, or if we underestimate the allowances required, additions to our allowance for doubtful accounts may be 
necessary, which will result in increased general and administrative expenses in the period such determination is made.  

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $1.4 million, and $1.0 million respectively. 
During 2008, 2007, and 2006, we recognized bad debt expense of $5.2 million, $3.6 million and $2.9 million, respectively.  

Contingencies . We accrue for costs associated with contingencies including, but not limited to, regulatory compliance and legal matters 
when such costs are probable and reasonably estimable. Liabilities established to provide for contingencies are adjusted as further information 
develops, circumstances change, or contingencies are resolved. We base these accruals on management’s estimate of such costs, which may vary 
from the ultimate cost and expenses associated with any such contingency.  

Stock-based compensation . On January 1, 2006, we adopted FAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method, which requires the 
measurement and recognition of compensation expense for stock-based payment awards made to employees and directors, including employee 
stock options, based on estimated fair values of the share award on the date of grant. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission 
issued SAB 107, relating to FAS 123(R). We have applied the provisions of SAB 107 in our adoption of FAS 123(R). Under FAS 123(R), the 
amount of compensation expense will vary depending on numerous factors, including the number and vesting period of option grants, the 
expected life of the grants, the publicly traded stock price of the security underlying the options, the volatility of the stock price and the 
estimated forfeiture rate.  

Prior to our initial public offering in November 2006, the valuation used to determine the fair market value of our common stock at each 
grant date was performed internally and contemporaneously with the issuance of the stock options. We issued options in January 2006 through 
September 30, 2006 that were priced at $20.00 per share of common stock.  

The fair value of our service-based stock options was estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with 
the following assumptions:  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 

Expected life (in years) (1)     4.75    4.25-4.75    4.25-6.25 
Expected volatility (2)     43.8%    45.3%-46.6%    45.6% 
Risk-free interest rate (3)     2.9-3.2%    4.0-4.7%    4.4-5.1% 
Dividend yield (4)     0.0%    0.0%    0.0% 
Weighted-average fair value of options granted     $23.85    $20.72    $9.84 

  
(1) For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the expected option life was determined using the simplified method for 

estimating expected option life for service-based stock options. 

(2) As our stock had not been publicly traded prior to November 2006, the expected volatility assumption for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007 and 2006 reflects a detailed evaluation of the stock price of our peer group of public postsecondary education companies for a 
period equal to the expected life of the options, starting from the date they went public. 

(3) The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon the U.S. Treasury zero coupon yield curve on the grant date for a maturity similar to 
the expected life of the options. 



Table of Contents  

The assumptions discussed above were also used to value the performance-based stock options granted during the year ended 
December 31, 2006 except for the expected life, which was four years. The expected option life for performance-based stock options was 
determined based on the evaluation of certain qualitative factors including our historical experience and our competitors’ historical experience. 
The weighted-average fair value of performance-based stock options granted was $8.22.  

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 included compensation expense 
for stock-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, December 31, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in 
accordance with the pro forma provisions of FAS 123 and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to 
December 31, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123(R). As stock-based compensation 
expense is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. FAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be 
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.  

In determining stock-based compensation expense, FAS 123(R) will continue to require significant management judgment and 
assumptions concerning such factors as expected term, expected volatility and forfeitures.  

Marketable Securities—Other than temporary impairments. Available-for-sale marketable securities are carried at fair value as 
determined by quoted market prices or other observable inputs that are either directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace for identical or 
similar assets, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Management reviews the 
fair value of the portfolio at least monthly, and evaluates individual securities for declines in fair value that may be other-than-temporary, 
considering factors such as current and expected future interest rates, external credit ratings, interest and dividend payments, the performance of 
underlying collateral, if any, the financial health of the issuer and other pertinent information, including current developments with respect to the 
issuer, as well as the duration of the decline and management’s intent and ability to hold the security. If declines are deemed other-than-
temporary, an impairment loss is recognized and the current fair value becomes the new cost basis. Unrealized losses considered to be other-
than-temporary are recognized in earnings.  

Accounting for income taxes . We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an 
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48) on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized no 
adjustment in the liability for unrecognized income tax benefits. At both the adoption date of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, we had 
$0.3 million of total gross unrecognized tax benefits. Of this total, $0.2 million (net of the federal benefit on state issues), represents the amount 
of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in future periods. As of December 31, 2008, 
we had $0.4 million of total gross unrecognized tax benefits. Of this total, $0.3 million (net of the federal benefit on state issues), represents the 
amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in future periods.  

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple state jurisdictions. During 2008, the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) commenced an income tax audit as well as an employment tax audit of Capella University. In addition, several states have 
commenced income tax audits.  

The Company continues to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. Upon adoption of FIN 
48, the Company had less than $1 thousand of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions. The Company recognized $0.1 million and $21 
thousand in interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  
   

51  

(4) The dividend yield assumption is based on our history and expectation of regular dividend payments. 



Table of Contents  

For federal purposes, the statute of limitations remains open on tax years 2005-2007. In addition, for federal purposes, tax years 2000-2002 
remain open to examination as a result of earlier net operating losses being utilized in recent years. The statute of limitations remains open on the 
earlier years for three years subsequent to the utilization of net operating losses. For state purposes, the statute of limitations remains open in a 
similar manner for states that have generated net operating losses.  

The Company does not anticipate any significant increases or decreases in unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months. In 
September 2008, the statute of limitations expired on federal issues related to tax years 1998-1999 and tax years 2003-2004 with no material 
impact on the unrecognized tax benefits. In September 2009, the statute of limitations will expire on federal issues related to tax years 2000-2001 
and tax year 2005 with no material impact expected on the unrecognized tax benefits.  

We account for income taxes utilizing FAS 109, which prescribes the use of the asset and liability method to compute the differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the related financial amounts, using currently enacted tax laws. Valuation allowances are 
established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that more likely than not will be realized. Realization of the deferred tax 
assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, is principally dependent upon achievement of projected future taxable income offset by deferred tax 
liabilities. We exercise significant judgment in determining our provisions for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and our future 
taxable income for purposes of assessing our ability to utilize any future tax benefit from our deferred tax assets or other elements of the tax 
provision. Although we believe that our tax estimates are reasonable, the ultimate tax determination involves significant judgments that could 
become subject to examination by tax authorities in the ordinary course of business. We periodically assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes 
resulting from these examinations to determine the impact on our deferred taxes and income tax liabilities and the adequacy of our provision for 
income taxes. Changes in income tax legislation, statutory income tax rates, or future taxable income levels, among other things, could 
materially impact our valuation of income tax assets and liabilities and could cause our income tax provision to vary significantly among 
financial reporting periods.  

Results of Operations  

The following table sets forth statements of operations data as a percentage of revenues for each of the periods indicated:  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2008     2007     2006   
Revenues     100.0 %   100.0 %   100.0 % 
Costs and expenses         

Instructional costs and services     44.2     44.3     46.5   
Marketing and promotional     30.4     30.8     31.5   
General and administrative     10.7     11.7     12.1   

     
  

    
  

    
  

Total costs and expenses     85.3     86.8     90.1   
     

  
    

  
    

  

Operating income     14.7     13.2     9.9   
Other income, net     1.5     2.2     2.5   

     
  

    
  

    
  

Income before income taxes     16.2     15.4     12.4   
Income tax expense     5.6     5.3     4.9   

     
  

    
  

    
  

Net income     10.6 %   10.1 %   7.5 % 
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Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2007  

Revenues . Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $272.3 million, representing an increase of $46.1 million, or 20.4%, 
as compared to revenues of $226.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Of this increase, 16.9 percentage points were due to increased 
enrollments and 4.2 percentage points were due to tuition increases, which was partially offset by a 0.7 percentage point decrease due to a larger 
proportion of master’s and bachelor’s learners, who generated less revenue per learner than our doctoral learners. End-of-period enrollment 
increased 20.5% in 2008 compared to 2007. Tuition increases in 2008 generally ranged from 2% to 5% and were implemented during July 2008. 
Tuition increases in 2007 generally ranged from 3% to 8% and were implemented during July 2007.  

Instructional costs and services expenses . Our instructional costs and services expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were 
$120.3 million, representing an increase of $20.2 million, or 20.2%, as compared to instructional costs and services expenses of $100.1 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2007. This increase was primarily due to higher instructional pay and learner support services resulting from 
increased enrollments. In addition, there were greater depreciation and learner support services expenses related to our ERP implementation and 
greater information technology expenses as a result of the mix of projects which resulted in higher expense versus capital ratios in 2008 
compared to 2007.  

Our instructional costs and services expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased by 0.1 percentage points to 44.2% for the year ended 
December 31, 2008, as compared to 44.3% for the year ended December 31, 2007. This improvement in 2008 was driven by a decrease in 
accrued bonus expense and a decrease in the ratio between faculty compensation and revenue, offset by higher financial aid support, learner 
support services, and depreciation expenses related to the ERP implementation.  

Marketing and promotional expenses . Our marketing and promotional expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $82.7 
million, representing an increase of $13.0 million, or 18.6%, as compared to marketing and promotional expenses of $69.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. This increase was primarily attributable to greater spending in online media and recruitment staffing. Our marketing 
and promotional expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased by 0.4 percentage points to 30.4% for the year ended December 31, 2008, from 
30.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to improved efficiencies in inquiry spending and a decrease in accrued bonus 
expense, partially offset by inefficiencies we experienced in the selling process earlier in the year as we implemented the ERP system.  

General and administrative expenses . Our general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $29.1 
million, representing an increase of $2.7 million, or 10.4%, as compared to general and administrative expenses of $26.4 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. This increase was primarily attributable to an increase in bad debt expense due to higher credit limits granted to 
learners in 2008 in recognition of inconveniences associated with the implementation of the ERP system and increased expense for certain other 
contingencies, offset by a decrease in accrued bonus expense.  

Our general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased by 1.0 percentage point to 10.7% for the year ended 
December 31, 2008, from 11.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007, due to a decrease in accrued bonus expense and information technology 
expenses as there were fewer employees dedicated to the ERP system implementation, partially offset by increased expense for certain other 
contingencies and an increase in bad debt expense due to higher credit limits granted to learners earlier in 2008 in recognition of inconveniences 
associated with the implementation of the ERP system.  

Other income, net . Other income, net decreased by $0.8 million, or 17.2%, to $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, from 
$4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease was principally due to lower interest rates partially offset by interest income 
on higher average cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances during 2008.  
   

53  



Table of Contents  

Income tax expense . We recognized tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 of $15.4 million and $12.1 million, 
respectively, resulting in effective tax rates of 34.8% and 34.6%, respectively. The slight increase in our effective tax rate from 2007 to 2008 was 
primarily due to a decrease in the favorable impact of tax-exempt interest offset by a decrease in the impact of non-deductible FAS 123R 
expense related to incentive stock options.  

Net income . Net income was $28.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to net income of $22.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2007, an increase of $6.0 million, because of the factors discussed above.  

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006  

Revenues . Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $226.2 million, representing an increase of $46.3 million, or 25.8%, 
as compared to revenues of $179.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Of this increase, 22.7 percentage points were due to increased 
enrollments and 3.7 percentage points were due to tuition increases, which were partially offset by a 1.1 percentage point decrease due to a larger 
proportion of master’s and bachelor’s learners, who generated less revenue per learner than our doctoral learners. End-of-period enrollment 
increased 24.1% in 2007 compared to 2006. Tuition increases in 2006 generally ranged from 2% to 6% and were implemented during July 2006. 
Tuition increases in 2007 generally ranged from 3% to 8% and were implemented during July 2007.  

Instructional costs and services expenses . Our instructional costs and services expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were 
$100.1 million, representing an increase of $16.5 million, or 19.7%, as compared to instructional costs and services expenses of $83.6 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2006. This increase was primarily due to an increase in learner support services and increases in instructional pay 
as a result of the increase in enrollments, as well as an increase in information technology expenses and depreciation due to the implementation 
of additional modules of our enterprise resource planning system, and an increase in bonus expense due to higher amounts earned in 2007 than in 
2006. Our instructional costs and services expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased by 2.2 percentage points to 44.3% for the year ended 
December 31, 2007, as compared to 46.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006. This decrease in 2007 was driven by improvements in our 
variable cost structure due to ongoing work on process improvements, including more efficient course scheduling and use of faculty and the 
termination of our relationship with a third-party service provider, a decrease in the ratio between faculty pay and revenue and increased 
efficiencies in our information technology department.  

Marketing and promotional expenses . Our marketing and promotional expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $69.8 
million, representing an increase of $13.2 million, or 23.2%, as compared to marketing and promotional expenses of $56.6 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. This increase was driven by greater spending in online media, an increase in recruitment and marketing staffing, and 
an increase in bonus expense due to a higher expected payout in 2007 than in 2006. Our marketing and promotional expenses as a percentage of 
revenues decreased by 0.7 percentage points to 30.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007, from 31.5% for the year ended December 31, 
2006, due to efficiency improvements across marketing enrollment spending, partially offset by an increase in recruitment and marketing 
staffing and an increase in bonus expense due to higher amounts earned in 2007 than in 2006.  

General and administrative expenses . Our general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $26.4 
million, representing an increase of $4.6 million, or 21.2%, as compared to general and administrative expenses of $21.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. This increase was primarily attributable to an increase in costs related to being a public company, higher legal costs, 
and an increase in bonus expense due to higher amounts earned in 2007 than 2006. Our year-over-year legal costs increased, in part, due to 
activity in an on-going litigation matter initiated by a former learner, which litigation included both his claims against us and our counterclaims 
against him. In November 2007, the trial court granted  
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a directed verdict in our favor on all claims against us. Our insurance carrier had denied coverage of the legal costs for this matter, and we have 
been in litigation with the carrier to require coverage under our insurance policy. On January 29, 2008, we received a lower court ruling 
requiring that the insurance carrier cover our defense costs for this litigation matter. The court has not yet determined the specific dollar amount 
that we will receive to cover defense costs already incurred. Our general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues decreased by 
0.4 percentage points to 11.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007, from 12.1% for the year ended December 31, 2006, due to a decrease in 
certain contingency expenses.  

Other income, net . Other income, net increased by $0.4 million, or 9.6%, to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, from 
$4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to increased levels of interest income on higher average 
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances, partially offset by lower levels of interest income from the higher proportion of tax-
exempt investments in 2007.  

Income tax expense . We recognized tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 of $12.1 million and $8.9 million, 
respectively, resulting in effective tax rates of 34.6% and 39.9%, respectively. The decrease in our effective tax rate in 2007 from 2006 was 
primarily due to the increased use of tax-exempt investments, a decrease in the impact of non-deductible FAS 123(R) stock-based compensation 
expense for incentive stock options and a decrease in the amount of non-deductible meals and entertainment expenses.  

Net income . Net income was $22.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to net income of $13.4 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $9.4 million, because of the factors discussed above.  

Quarterly Results and Seasonality  

The following tables set forth certain unaudited financial and operating data each quarter during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007. The unaudited information reflects all adjustments, which include only normal and recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the 
information shown.  
   

Our revenues and operating results normally fluctuate as a result of seasonal variations in our business, principally due to changes in 
enrollment. Learner population varies as a result of new enrollments, graduations  
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First  

Quarter    
Second  
Quarter    

Third  
Quarter    

Fourth  
Quarter 

     
(In thousands, except for per share and  

enrollment data) 
2008              

Revenues     $ 65,251    $ 66,049    $ 65,239    $ 75,756 
Operating income       7,112      8,664      7,936      16,390 
Net income       5,488      6,358      5,776      11,166 
Net income per common share:              

Basic     $ 0.32    $ 0.38    $ 0.35    $ 0.67 
Diluted     $ 0.31    $ 0.37    $ 0.34    $ 0.66 

Enrollment       23,496      23,733      24,063      26,883 

2007              

Revenues     $ 52,824    $ 53,918    $ 55,530    $ 63,964 
Operating income       5,000      5,963      6,323      12,664 
Net income       3,844      4,783      5,062      9,095 
Net income per common share:              

Basic     $ 0.24    $ 0.29    $ 0.30    $ 0.53 
Diluted     $ 0.23    $ 0.28    $ 0.29    $ 0.51 

Enrollment       19,151      19,942      20,268      22,316 
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and learner attrition. While the number of enrollments has grown in each sequential quarter over these periods, the sequential quarterly increase 
in enrollments has been the greatest in the fourth quarter of each respective year, which corresponds with a traditional Fall school start. The 
larger relative increases in enrollments in the fourth quarter have resulted in larger sequential increases in revenue during the fourth quarter than 
in other quarters. A significant portion of our general and administrative expenses does not vary proportionately with fluctuations in revenues, 
resulting in larger relative increases in operating income in the fourth quarter relative to increases between other quarters. In addition, we 
typically implement tuition increases at the beginning of an academic year, which coincides with the start of the third quarter of each fiscal year. 
We expect quarterly fluctuations in operating results to continue as a result of these seasonal patterns.  

In addition to our recurring seasonal patterns described above, our quarterly revenue may be impacted by the timing of our colloquia 
tuition revenue, as evidenced in the first and second quarters of 2008, resulting from two days to two week long gatherings of our doctoral 
learners for in-depth, face-to-face instruction. We typically have eight to ten colloquia per year. Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate in 
the future based on the timing and number of our colloquia.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

Liquidity  

We financed our operating activities and capital expenditures during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 primarily through 
cash provided by operating activities. Our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities were $123.6 million and $143.8 million at 
December 31, 2008 and 2007 respectively.  

We maintain an unsecured $10.0 million line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The line of credit expires on June 30, 2009. There have 
been no borrowings to date under this line of credit. Any borrowings would bear interest at a rate of either LIBOR plus 2.5% or the bank’s prime 
rate, at our discretion on the borrowing date. An unsecured letter of credit in the amount of $1.1 million, which expires on July 31, 2009, was 
issued under the $10.0 million line of credit in favor of the Department of Education in connection with its annual review of student lending 
activities.  

A significant portion of our revenues are derived from Title IV programs. Federal regulations dictate the timing of disbursements under 
Title IV programs. Learners must apply for new loans and grants each academic year, which starts July 1. Loan funds are generally provided by 
lenders in multiple disbursements for each academic year. The disbursements are usually received by the start of the second week of the term. 
These factors, together with the timing of our learners beginning their programs, affect our operating cash flow. Based on current market 
conditions and recent regulatory or legislative actions, we do not anticipate any significant disruptions in the availability of Title IV funding for 
our learners.  

Based on our current level of operations and anticipated growth, we believe that our cash flow from operations and other sources of 
liquidity, including cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, will provide adequate funds for ongoing operations and planned capital 
expenditures for the foreseeable future. If needed, to fund our operations or to fund strategic investments, we also believe that we could further 
supplement our liquidity position with debt.  

Operating Activities  

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $44.8 million, compared to $37.2 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily due to increased net income of $6.0 million, $4.0 million increase in deferred revenue due 
to higher revenue year over year and an increase in new enrollments during the fourth quarter 2008, increased cash flow from the change in 
prepaid expenses due to a large prepaid marketing invoice at the end of 2007, increased depreciation expense due to the ERP implementation of 
$2.5 million, and $6.6 million fewer excess tax benefits from stock option exercises due to fewer stock option  
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exercises in 2008 than in 2007. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, which was 
comprised primarily of an $8.0 million decrease in cash flows from the change in amounts and components of accrued bonus expense, $3.9 
million decrease from timing of accounts payable and a $1.8 million decrease in accrued instructional payments related to a change in payment 
timing.  

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $37.2 million, compared to $28.9 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to the $9.4 million increase in net income, a $2.2 million increase in 2007 related to 
various working capital items, and a $1.6 million increase in depreciation expense. This was offset by a $4.8 million decrease in income taxes 
payable related primarily to excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation due to an increase in stock option exercises in 2007 compared to 
2006.  

Investing Activities  

Our cash used in investing activities is primarily related to the purchase of property and equipment and investment in marketable securities. 
Net cash used in investing activities was $24.6 million, $34.1 million and $22.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, 
respectively. Investment in marketable securities at December 31, 2008 consisted of purchases, sales and maturities of tax-exempt municipal 
securities. Net purchases of these securities were $10.2 million $18.0 million, and $6.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 
and 2006, respectively. We believe that the credit quality and liquidity of our investment portfolio is currently strong. Due to current market 
conditions, the unrealized gains and losses of the portfolio may remain volatile as supply/demand fluctuations impact daily market valuations. To 
mitigate the risk associated with this market volatility, we deploy a relatively conservative investment strategy focused on capital preservation 
and liquidity. But even with this approach, we may incur investment losses as a result of unusual and unpredictable market developments and we 
may experience reduced investment earnings if the yields on investments deemed to be low risk remain low or decline further in this time of 
economic uncertainty. In addition, these unusual and unpredictable market developments may also create liquidity challenges for certain of the 
assets in our investment portfolio.  

Capital expenditures were $14.4 million, $16.1 million, and $15.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, 
respectively. The decrease in 2008 was primarily due to the mix of projects as a result of the completion of the ERP implementation in 2008. The 
increase from 2006 to 2007 was due to the investments in integrating most of our business systems with our ERP system. We expect 2009 capital 
expenditures to decrease from 2008 levels to approximately 4 to 5 percent of revenue, as our heavy capital investment period in our systems 
infrastructure was completed in 2008.  

We lease all of our facilities. We expect to make future payments on existing leases from cash generated from operations.  

Financing Activities  

Net cash used in financing activities was $49.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and net cash provided by financing activities 
was $35.0 million and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Financing activities during 2008 were 
primarily related to the repurchase of common stock in the amount of $58.3 million, partially offset by $6.2 million in proceeds from stock 
option exercises and $2.5 million in excess tax benefits from stock option exercises. Financing activities during 2007 were primarily related to 
proceeds of $15.0 million from stock option exercises and the related excess tax benefits of $9.1 million, and net cash proceeds from our follow-
on offering of common stock of $10.9 million, after deducting underwriter commissions and offering expenses. Financing activities during 2006 
were primarily related to net cash proceeds from our initial public offering, after deducting underwriter commissions and offering expenses, of  
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$76.5 million and net proceeds of $0.4 million from stock option exercises. Net proceeds from the initial public offering were largely offset by 
the special distribution paid in November 2006 of $72.6 million and $2.7 million of payments on two notes payable, which we entered into in 
2005 to finance asset purchases related to our enterprise resource planning system.  

Contractual Obligations  

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2008, the aggregate amounts of our significant contractual obligations and commitments 
with definitive payment terms due in each of the periods presented:  
   

Due to the uncertainty with respect to the timing of future cash flows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2008, 
we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement with the respective taxing authority. Therefore, $0.4 million 
of unrecognized tax benefits have been excluded from the Contractual Obligations table above. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for a discussion of income taxes.  

Regulation and Oversight  

We perform periodic reviews of our compliance with the various applicable regulatory requirements. We have not been notified by any of 
the various regulatory agencies of any significant noncompliance matters that would adversely impact its ability to participate in Title IV 
programs, however, the Office of Inspector General (OIG) has conducted a compliance audit of Capella University for the three financial aid 
years 2002-2003 through 2004-2005. The audit commenced on April 10, 2006 and we subsequently provided the OIG with periodic information, 
responded to follow up inquiries and facilitated site visits and access to the Company’s records. The OIG completed its field work in January 
2007 and the Company received a draft audit report on August 23, 2007. Capella University provided written comments on the draft audit report 
to the OIG on September 25, 2007. On March 7, 2008, the OIG’s final report was issued to the Acting Chief Operating Officer (COO) for 
Federal Student Aid (FSA), which is responsible for primary oversight of the Title IV funding programs. We responded to the final report on 
April 8, 2008. Recently, the Company provided FSA staff with certain requested information for financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2006-
2007. The FSA will subsequently issue final findings and requirements for Capella University. The FSA may take certain actions, including 
requiring that we refund certain federal student aid funds, requiring us to modify our Title IV administration procedures, and/or requiring us to 
pay fines or penalties.  

Based on the final audit report for the financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2004-2005, the most significant potential financial exposure 
pertains to repayments to the Department of Education that could be required if the FSA concludes that Capella University did not properly 
calculate the amount of Title IV funds required to be returned for learners that withdrew without providing an official notification of such 
withdrawal and without engaging in the course room prior to such withdrawal. If the FSA determines that Capella University improperly 
withheld any portion of these funds, Capella University would be required to return the improperly withheld funds. We and the OIG have 
differing interpretations of the relevant regulations regarding what constitutes engagement in the unofficial withdrawal context. As we interpret 
the engagement requirement, the Company currently estimates that for the three year audit period, and for the subsequent aid years through 
2007-2008, the  
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     Payments Due by Period 

     Total    

Less than 
 

1 Year    
1-

3 Years    3-5 Years    

More than 
 

5 Years 
     (in thousands) 

Operating leases (a)     $ 34,698    $ 4,023    $ 9,690    $ 10,658    $ 10,327 
                                   

Total contractual obligations     $ 34,698    $ 4,023    $ 9,690    $ 10,658    $ 10,327 
                                   

  
(a) Minimum lease commitments for our headquarters and miscellaneous office equipment. 
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total amount of Title IV funds not returned—for learners who withdrew without providing official notification and without engaging as required 
in the relevant regulations—was approximately $1.0 million including interest, but not including fines and penalties. If this difference of 
interpretation is ultimately resolved in a manner adverse to us, then the total amount of Title IV funds not returned for learners who withdrew 
without providing official notification would be greater than the amount we have currently estimated.  

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is 
material to investors.  

Impact of Inflation  

We believe that inflation has not had a material impact on our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, or 2006. 
There can be no assurance that future inflation will not have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

In June 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-
Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities” (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”). FSP EITF 03-6-1 clarifies unvested share-based payment 
awards that entitle holders to receive nonforfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are considered participating 
securities and should be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class method of computing EPS is an 
earnings allocation formula that determines EPS for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared (or 
accumulated) and participation rights in undistributed earnings. FSP EITF 03-6-1 requires retrospective application and is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those years. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for us on January 1, 2009. We do 
not expect that the adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have a material impact on our calculation of EPS and related disclosures.  

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-2. This FSP defers the effective date in FASB Statement 
No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or 
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP FAS 157-2 will be effective for us beginning 
January 1, 2009. We do not expect that the adoption of FSP FAS 157-2 will have a material impact on our financial statements.  

In October 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for 
That Asset is Not Active” (FSP 157-3). FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS 157, which we adopted as of January 1, 2008, in cases 
where a market is not active. We have considered the guidance provided by FSP 157-3 in its determination of estimated fair values as of 
December 31, 2008, and the impact was not material as we do not hold securities in inactive markets.  

   

Market Risk  

We have no derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments. We believe the risk related to cash equivalents and 
marketable securities is limited due to the adherence to our investment policy which focuses on capital preservation and liquidity. In addition, all 
investments must have a minimum Standard & Poor’s rating of A minus (or equivalent). All of our cash equivalents and marketable securities as 
of December 31, 2008 and 2007 were rated A minus or higher. In addition, we utilize money managers who conduct  
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initial and ongoing credit analysis on our investment portfolio to monitor and minimize the potential impact of market risk associated with our 
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. Despite the investment risk mitigation strategies we employ, we may incur investment losses as 
a result of these unusual and unpredictable market developments and we may experience reduced investment earnings if the yields on 
investments deemed to be low risk remain low or decline further in this time of economic uncertainty. In addition, these unusual and 
unpredictable market developments may also create liquidity challenges for certain of the assets in our investment portfolio.  

Interest Rate Risk  

We manage interest rate risk by investing excess funds in cash equivalents and marketable securities bearing a combination of fixed and 
variable interest rates. Our future investment income may fall short of expectations due to changes in interest rates or we may suffer losses in 
principal if we are forced to sell securities that have declined in market value due to changes in interest rates and other market dynamics. At 
December 31, 2008, a 10% increase or decrease in interest rates would not have a material impact on our future earnings, fair values, or cash 
flows.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of  
Capella Education Company  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Capella Education Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and 
the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on 
our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
Capella Education Company at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the 
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material 
respects, the information set forth therein.  

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB 
Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes .  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Capella 
Education Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 23, 
2009, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  
   

Minneapolis, Minnesota  
February 23, 2009  
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Balance Sheets  
   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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     As of December 31,   
     2008     2007   

     
(In thousands, except  

par value)   

ASSETS      

Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 31,225     $ 60,600   
Marketable securities       92,372       83,167   
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,419 in 2008 and $951 in 2007       11,949       7,557   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       5,184       12,593   
Deferred income taxes       3,477       1,896   

       
  

      
  

Total current assets       144,207       165,813   
Property and equipment, net       35,349       34,462   

       
  

      
  

Total assets     $ 179,556     $ 200,275   
       

  

      

  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’  EQUITY      

Current liabilities:       

Accounts payable     $ 2,227     $ 6,089   
Accrued liabilities       18,926       23,826   
Income taxes payable       150       —     
Deferred revenue       9,495       6,476   

       
  

      
  

Total current liabilities       30,798       36,391   
Deferred rent       1,321       1,167   
Other liabilities       531       335   
Deferred income taxes       6,069       5,508   

       
  

      
  

Total liabilities       38,719       43,401   
Shareholders’  equity:       

Common stock, $0.01 par value:       

Authorized shares—100,000       

Issued and outstanding shares—16,666 in 2008 and 17,363 in 2007       166       173   
Additional paid-in capital       151,445       196,643   
Accumulated other comprehensive income       575       195   
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)       (11,349 )     (40,137 ) 

       
  

      
  

Total shareholders’  equity       140,837       156,874   
       

  
      

  

Total liabilities and shareholders’  equity     $ 179,556     $ 200,275   
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Consolidated Statements of Income  
   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 

     
(In thousands, except per share  

amounts) 
Revenues     $ 272,295    $ 226,236    $ 179,881 
Costs and expenses:           

Instructional costs and services       120,347      100,129      83,627 
Marketing and promotional       82,733      69,779      56,646 
General and administrative       29,113      26,378      21,765 

                     

Total costs and expenses       232,193      196,286      162,038 
                     

Operating income       40,102      29,950      17,843 
Other income, net       4,061      4,903      4,472 

                     

Income before income taxes       44,163      34,853      22,315 
Income tax expense       15,375      12,069      8,904 

                     

Net income     $ 28,788    $ 22,784    $ 13,411 
                     

Net income per common share:           

Basic     $ 1.71    $ 1.39    $ 1.09 
                     

Diluted     $ 1.66    $ 1.33    $ 1.06 
                     

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:           

Basic       16,835      16,396      12,271 
                     

Diluted       17,322      17,141      12,629 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity  
   

    

Class A  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock     

Class B  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock     

Class D  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock     Common Stock   
Additional 

Paid-In  
Capital   

  

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive 
 

Income (Loss)   
  

Retained  
Earnings/  

(Accumulated 
 

Deficit)   
  

Total   
  
Comprehensive 

 
Income     Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount     Shares   Amount           

    (In thousands) 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2005    2,810     $ 2,810     460     $ 1,150     1,022     $ 4,600     2,431   $ 24   $ 9,527     $ (8 )   $ (3,689 )   $ 14,414     

Exercise of stock 
options    —         —       —         —       —         —       99     1     797       —         —         798     

Repurchase of stock 
options    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       (412 )     —         —         (412 )   

Stock-based 
compensation    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       4,179       —         —         4,179     

Income tax benefits 
associated with 
stock-based 
compensation    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       166       —         —         166     

Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan 
contribution    —         —       —         —       —         —       62     1     1,240       —         —         1,241     

Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan 
distribution    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       (6 )     —         —         (6 )   

Issuance of common 
stock, net of 
underwriters’ 
commissions and 
offering costs    —         —       —         —       —         —       4,232     42     74,908       —         —         74,950     

Conversion of 
convertible 
preferred stock    (2,810 )     (2,810 )   (460 )     (1,150 )   (1,022 )     (4,600 )   4,292     43     8,517       —         —         —       

Conversion of 
redeemable 
convertible 
preferred stock    —         —       —         —       —         —       4,886     49     57,597       —         —         57,646     

Payment of special 
distribution    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       —         —         (72,643 )     (72,643 )   

Net income    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       —         —         13,411       13,411     $ 13,411 
Unrealized gain on 

marketable 
securities    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       —         1       —         1       1 

    
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

    
  

      
  

                
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

Balance at 
December 31, 
2006    —       $ —       —       $ —       —       $ —       16,002   $ 160   $ 156,513     $ (7 )   $ (62,921 )   $ 93,745     $ 13,412 

                              

Exercise of stock 
options    —         —       —         —       —         —       1,017     10     15,012       —         —         15,022     

Stock-based 
compensation    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       3,392       —         —         3,392     

Income tax benefits 
associated with 
stock-based 
compensation    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       10,813       —         —         10,813     

Issuance of common 
stock, net of 
underwriters’ 
commissions and 
offering costs    —         —       —         —       —         —       344     3     10,913       —         —         10,916     

Net income    —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       —         —         22,784       22,784     $ 22,784 
Unrealized gain on 
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marketable securities   —         —       —         —       —         —       —       —       —         202       —         202       202 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity—(Continued)  
   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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Class A  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock   

Class B  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock   

Class D  
Convertible  
Preferred  

Stock   Common Stock     
Additional 

Paid-In  
Capital   

  

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive 
 

Income (Loss) 
  

Retained  
Earnings/  

(Accumulated 
 

Deficit)   
  

Total   
  

Comprehensive 
 

Income     Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares     Amount             
    (In thousands) 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2007    —     $ —     —     $ —     —     $ —     17,363     $ 173     $ 196,643     $ 195   $ (40,137 )   $ 156,874     $ 22,986 

                              

Exercise of stock 
options    —       —     —       —     —       —     342       3       6,153       —       —         6,156     

Stock-based 
compensation    —       —     —       —     —       —     —         —         4,298       —       —         4,298     

Income tax benefits 
associated with 
stock-based 
compensation    —       —     —       —     —       —     —         —         2,647       —       —         2,647     

Issuance of restricted 
stock, net    —       —     —       —     —       —     —         —         (9 )     —       —         (9 )   

Repurchase of 
common stock    —       —     —       —     —       —     (1,039 )     (10 )     (58,287 )     —       —         (58,297 )   

Net income    —       —     —       —     —       —     —         —         —         —       28,788       28,788     $ 28,788 
Unrealized gain on 

marketable 
securities    —       —     —       —     —       —     —         —         —         380     —         380       380 

                                  
  

      
  

      
  

            
  

      
  

      

Balance at 
December 31, 
2008    —     $ —     —     $ —     —     $ —     16,666     $ 166     $ 151,445     $ 575   $ (11,349 )   $ 140,837     $ 29,168 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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     Year Ended December 31,   
     2008     2007     2006   
     (In thousands)   

Operating activities         

Net income     $ 28,788     $ 22,784     $ 13,411   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:         

Provision for bad debts       5,225       3,604       2,855   
Depreciation and amortization       12,246       9,772       8,195   
Amortization of investment discount/premium       1,807       330       (365 ) 
(Gain)/loss realized on sale of marketable securities       (225 )     14       (1 ) 
Asset impairment       46       33       63   
Stock-based compensation       4,298       3,392       4,179   
Noncash equity-related expense       —         —         169   
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation       (2,506 )     (9,067 )     (79 ) 
Deferred income taxes       (1,226 )     2,955       2,926   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         

Accounts receivable       (9,617 )     (3,760 )     (2,536 ) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       1,214       (2,695 )     (627 ) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities       (7,575 )     6,736       1,274   
Income tax payable       9,188       4,739       546   
Deferred rent       154       (646 )     (553 ) 
Deferred revenue       3,019       (1,012 )     (556 ) 

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by operating activities       44,836       37,179       28,901   
Investing activities         

Capital expenditures       (14,375 )     (16,061 )     (15,354 ) 
Purchases of marketable securities       (74,707 )     (248,275 )     (181,980 ) 
Sales and maturities of marketable securities       64,506       230,262       175,340   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash used in investing activities       (24,576 )     (34,074 )     (21,994 ) 
Financing activities         

Payments of capital lease obligations and notes payable       —         (1 )     (2,666 ) 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation       2,506       9,067       79   
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options       6,156       15,022       386   
Employee Stock Ownership Plan distributions       —         —         (6 ) 
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock       —         10,916       76,462   
Payment of special distribution       —         —         (72,643 ) 
Repurchase of common stock       (58,297 )     —         —     

       
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities       (49,635 )     35,004       1,612   
       

  
      

  
      

  

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents       (29,375 )     38,109       8,519   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year       60,600       22,491       13,972   

       
  

      
  

      
  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year     $ 31,225     $ 60,600     $ 22,491   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information         

Interest paid     $ —       $ —       $ 24   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Income taxes paid     $ 7,455     $ 4,383     $ 5,433   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Noncash transactions:         

Purchase of equipment included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities     $ 351     $ 1,547     $ 2,078   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Issuance of common stock to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan     $ —       $ —       $ 1,241   
       

  

      

  

      

  

Reclassification of deferred initial public offering costs from prepaid expenses to equity     $ —       $ —       $ 1,512   
       

  

      

  

      

  



Table of Contents  

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

1. Nature of Business  

Capella Education Company (the Company) was incorporated on December 27, 1991. Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Capella 
University (the University), the Company manages its business on the basis of one operating segment. The University is an online postsecondary 
education services company that offers a variety of bachelor’s, master’s and doctoral degree programs primarily delivered to working adults. 
Capella University is accredited by The Higher Learning Commission and is a member of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools 
(NCA).  

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the University, after elimination of all intercompany 
accounts and transactions.  

Revenue Recognition  

The Company’s revenues consist of tuition, application and graduation fees and commissions we earn from bookstore and publication 
sales. Tuition revenue is deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over the period of instruction. Colloquia tuition revenue is recognized over 
the length of the colloquia, which ranges from two days to two weeks. Application fee revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the 
average expected term of a learner at the University. Learners are billed a graduation fee upon applying for graduation for services provided in 
connection with evaluating compliance with graduation requirements. Graduation fee revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the 
expected application assessment period for learners not expected to attend commencement ceremonies or over the period prior to the next 
commencement ceremony to account for learners who attend the ceremony. Deferred revenue represents the excess of tuition and fee payments 
received as compared to tuition and fees earned and is reflected as a current liability in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The 
Company also receives commissions from a third-party bookstore based on sales of textbooks and related school materials to the Company’s 
learners. Commission revenue is recognized as it is earned in conjunction with sales of textbooks and related materials to the Company’s 
learners.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

The Company considers all highly liquid marketable securities with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents are carried at market value.  

Marketable Securities  

The Company accounts for marketable securities in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (FAS 115). FAS 115 
addresses the accounting and reporting for marketable fixed maturity and equity securities. Management determines the appropriate designation 
of debt securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates such designation as of each balance sheet date. All of the Company’s marketable 
securities are classified as available-for-sale as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.  

Available-for-sale marketable securities are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices or other observable inputs that are 
either directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace for identical or similar assets, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as a 
separate component of shareholders’ equity.  
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Management reviews the fair value of the portfolio at least monthly, and evaluates individual securities for declines in fair value that may be 
other-than-temporary, considering factors such as current and expected future interest rates, external credit ratings, interest and dividend 
payments, the performance of underlying collateral, if any, the financial health of the issuer and other pertinent information, including current 
developments with respect to the issuer, as well as the duration of the decline and management’s intent and ability to hold the security. If 
declines are deemed other-than-temporary, an impairment loss is recognized and the current fair value becomes the new cost basis. Unrealized 
losses considered to be other-than-temporary are recognized in earnings.  

The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Amortization of premiums, accretion of discounts, interest and 
dividend income and realized gains and losses are included in investment income. Included in marketable securities at December 31, 2007 are 
certain tax-exempt auction rate securities that contain interest rate reset dates at regular intervals, allowing for the Company to liquidate the 
marketable securities within three months throughout the term of the contract. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $9.8 million in 
auction rate securities which matured in January 2008. At maturity, the funds from these auction rate securities were reinvested in variable rate 
demand notes. No losses were incurred on any investments in auction rate securities during 2007 or 2008. The Company classifies all marketable 
securities as current assets in accordance with Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 43, Restatement and Revision of Accounting Research 
Bulletins , because the assets are available to fund current operations.  

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  

The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability, failure or refusal of its learners 
to make required payments. The Company determines its allowance for doubtful accounts amount based on an analysis of the accounts 
receivable detail and historical write-off experience. Bad debt expense is recorded as a general and administrative expense in the consolidated 
statements of income. The Company generally writes off accounts receivable balances deemed uncollectible prior to sending the accounts to 
collection agencies.  

Concentration of Credit Risk  

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to credit risk, consist primarily of cash equivalents, marketable securities 
and accounts receivable.  

Management believes that the credit risk related to cash equivalents and marketable securities is limited due to the adherence to an 
investment policy that requires marketable securities to have a minimum Standard & Poor’s rating of A minus (or equivalent). All of the 
Company’s cash equivalents and marketable securities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of investments rated A minus or higher, 
further limiting the Company’s credit risk. In addition, we utilize money managers who conduct initial and ongoing credit analysis on our 
investment portfolio to monitor and minimize the potential impact of market risk associated with our cash equivalents and marketable securities.  

Management believes that the credit risk related to accounts receivable is limited due to the large number and diversity of learners that 
principally comprise the Company’s customer base. The Company’s credit risk with respect to these accounts receivable is mitigated through the 
participation of a majority of the learners in federally funded financial aid programs.  

Approximately 75%, 74% and 71% of the Company’s revenues (calculated on a cash basis) were collected from funds distributed under 
Title IV Programs of the Higher Education Act (Title IV Programs) for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The 
financial aid and assistance programs are subject to political and budgetary considerations. There is no assurance that such funding will be 
maintained at current levels.  
   

69  



Table of Contents  

Extensive and complex regulations govern the financial assistance programs in which the Company’s learners participate. The Company’s 
administration of these programs is periodically reviewed by various regulatory agencies. Any regulatory violation could be the basis for the 
initiation of potential adverse actions, including a suspension, limitation, or termination proceeding, which could have a material adverse effect 
on the Company.  

If the University were to lose its eligibility to participate in federal student financial aid programs, the learners at the University would lose 
access to funds derived from those programs and would have to seek alternative sources of funds to pay their tuition and fees. See Note 11 for 
further information on the regulatory environment in which the Company operates.  

Property and Equipment  

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Computer software is included in property and equipment and consists of purchased software, 
capitalized web site development costs and internally developed software. Capitalized web site development costs consist mainly of salaries and 
outside development fees directly related to web sites and various databases. Web site content development is expensed as incurred. Internally 
developed software represents qualifying salary and consulting costs for time spent on developing internal use software in accordance with 
Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use . Depreciation is provided 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:  
   

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the related lease term or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter.  

Income Taxes  

The Company accounts for income taxes as prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income 
Taxes (FAS 109). FAS 109 prescribes the use of the asset and liability method to compute the differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and the related financial amounts using currently enacted tax laws. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce 
deferred tax assets to the amount that more likely than not will be realized.  

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income 
Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). Accordingly, the Company records a liability for unrecognized tax benefits 
resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, 
related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying 
notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Contingencies  

The Company accrues for costs associated with contingencies including, but not limited to, regulatory compliance and legal matters when 
such costs are probable and reasonably estimable. Liabilities established to  
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Computer software     3-7 years 
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provide for contingencies are adjusted as further information develops, circumstances change, or contingencies are resolved. The Company bases 
these accruals on management’s estimate of such costs, which may vary from the ultimate cost and expenses associated with any such 
contingency.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets  

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset 
to undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be 
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company recorded 
impairment charges of $46 thousand, $33 thousand, and $63 thousand during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.  

The impairment charges primarily consist of the write-off of previously capitalized internal software development costs for software 
projects that were abandoned. These charges are recorded in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income.  

Advertising  

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs for 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $42.5 million, $35.1 million, and 
$30.3 million, respectively.  

Net Income Per Common Share  

Basic net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period 
and, since our preferred stock participated in receipt of dividends equally to common stockholders in 2006, also reflects the dilutive effects of the 
outstanding shares of our preferred stock. Dilutive shares are computed using the Treasury Stock method and include the incremental effect of 
shares that would be issued upon the assumed exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted stock.  

The table below is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator in the basic and diluted net income per common share calculation.  
   

Options to purchase 0.2 million, 47 thousand, and 0.7 million common shares, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the 
computation of diluted net income per common share in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, because their effect would be antidilutive.  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 

     
(in thousands, except  

per share data) 
Numerator:           

Net income     $ 28,788    $ 22,784    $ 13,411 
Denominator:           

Denominator for basic net income per common share—weighted average shares outstanding       16,835      16,396      12,271 
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock       487      745      358 

                     

Denominator for diluted net income per common share       17,322      17,141      12,629 
                     

Basic net income per common share     $ 1.71    $ 1.39    $ 1.09 
Diluted net income per common share     $ 1.66    $ 1.33    $ 1.06 
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Comprehensive Income  

Comprehensive income includes net income and all changes in the Company’s equity during a period from non-owner sources which 
consists exclusively of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale marketable securities, net of tax.  

Stock-Based Compensation  

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-based Payment (FAS 123(R)), 
which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for stock-based payment awards made to employees and directors, 
including employee stock options. FAS 123(R) eliminates the ability to account for stock-based compensation transactions using the footnote 
disclosure-only provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25), and instead 
requires that such transactions be recognized and reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial statements using a fair-value-based method. 
In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (SAB 107), relating to FAS 123(R). The 
Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of FAS 123(R).  

The Company adopted FAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method, which requires the application of the accounting standard as of 
January 1, 2006. The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of FAS 123(R).  

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company accounted for stock-based awards to employees and directors using the intrinsic value 
method in accordance with APB 25 as allowed under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation (FAS 123). Under the intrinsic value method, no stock-based compensation expense had been recognized in the Company’s 
consolidated statements of income because the exercise price of stock options granted to employees and directors equaled the fair market value 
of the underlying stock at the date of grant.  

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as 
operating cash flows in the consolidated statements of cash flows. FAS 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits resulting 
from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash 
flows.  

New Accounting Standards  

In June 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued FSP EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-
Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities” (“FSP EITF 03-6-1”). FSP EITF 03-6-1 clarifies unvested share-based payment 
awards that entitle holders to receive nonforfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are considered participating 
securities and should be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class method of computing EPS is an 
earnings allocation formula that determines EPS for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared (or 
accumulated) and participation rights in undistributed earnings. FSP EITF 03-6-1 requires retrospective application and is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those years. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for the Company on January 1, 
2009. The Company does not expect that the adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have a material impact on its calculation of EPS and related 
disclosures.  

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-2. This FSP defers the effective date in FASB Statement 
No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or 
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP FAS 157-2 will be effective for the Company 
beginning January 1, 2009. The Company does not expect that the adoption of FSP FAS 157-2 will have a material impact on its financial 
statements.  
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In October 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for 
That Asset is Not Active” (FSP 157-3). FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS 157, which the Company adopted as of January 1, 2008, in 
cases where a market is not active. The Company has considered the guidance provided by FSP 157-3 in its determination of estimated fair 
values as of December 31, 2008, and the impact was not material as the Company does not hold securities in inactive markets.  

3. Marketable Securities  

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities:  
   

The unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s investments in municipal securities were caused by changes in market values primarily 
due to interest rate changes. It is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of the Company’s 
marketable securities, as the Company’s management has the ability and intent to hold these securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for 
any anticipated recovery in fair value and, therefore, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired as 
of December 31, 2008.  

The remaining contractual maturities of the Company’s marketable securities are shown below:  
   

Gross realized gains and losses resulting from the sale of available-for-sale securities were $0.2 million and $0, respectively, in 2008. 
Gross realized gains and losses resulting from the sale of available-for-sale securities were $1 thousand and $15 thousand, respectively, in 2007, 
and $6 thousand and $5 thousand, respectively, in 2006.  

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 157 (FAS 157), Fair Value Measurements . FAS 157 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  
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     December 31, 2008 

     

Amortized 
 

Cost    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
Gains    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
(Losses)     

Estimated 
 

Fair  
Value 

     (in thousands) 
Tax-exempt municipal securities     $ 91,474    $ 957    $ (59 )   $ 92,372 

                     
  

      

Total     $ 91,474    $ 957    $ (59 )   $ 92,372 
                     

  

      

    

   December 31, 2007 

   

Amortized 
 

Cost    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
Gains    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
(Losses)     

Estimated 
 

Fair  
Value 

     (in thousands) 
Tax-exempt auction rate securities     $ 9,775    $ —      $ —       $ 9,775 
Tax-exempt municipal securities       73,080      313      (1 )     73,392 

                     
  

      

Total     $ 82,855    $ 313    $ (1 )   $ 83,167 
                     

  

      

     As of December 31, 
     2008    2007 
     (in thousands) 
Due within one year     $ 14,580    $ 24,790 
Due after one year through five years       48,378      24,889 
Due after six through ten years       9,545      6,901 
Due after ten years       19,869      26,587 

              

   $ 92,372    $ 83,167 
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FAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the 
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. FAS 157 also specifies a 
fair value hierarchy based upon the observability of inputs used in valuation techniques. Observable inputs (highest level) reflect market data 
obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs (lowest level) reflect internally developed market assumptions. In accordance 
with FAS 157, fair value measurements are classified under the following hierarchy:  
   

   

   

When available, the Company uses quoted market prices to determine fair value, and such measurements are classified within Level 1. In 
some cases where market prices are not available, the Company makes use of observable market based inputs to calculate fair value, in which 
case the measurements are classified within Level 2. Currently, the Company does not have any measurements that are classified within Level 3.  

The following table summarizes certain fair value information at December 31, 2008 for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis and are categorized using the fair value hierarchy:  
   

In accordance with FAS 157, the Company measures cash and cash equivalents at fair value primarily using real-time quotes for 
transactions in active exchange markets involving identical assets. The Company’s municipal bonds are classified within Level 2 and are valued 
using readily available pricing sources for comparable instruments utilizing market observable inputs. The Company does not hold securities in 
inactive markets.  

As of December 31, 2008, the Company does not have any liabilities that were required to be measured at fair value in accordance with 
FAS 157 on a recurring basis.  
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  •   Level 1 – Observable inputs that reflect quoted market prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in active markets;  

  
•   Level 2 – Observable inputs, other than quoted market prices, that are either directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace for 

identical or similar assets and liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets and liabilities; and  

  
•   Level 3   – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity that are significant to the fair value of assets or 

liabilities.  

       

Fair Value 

   Fair Value Measurements Using 

Description       

Quoted Prices 
 

in Active  
Markets for  

Identical  
Assets  

(Level 1)    

Significant 
Other  

Observable 
 

Inputs  
(Level 2)    

Significant  
Unobservable 

 
Inputs  

(Level 3) 
     (in thousands) 
Cash and cash equivalents     $ 31,225    $ 31,225    $ —      $ —   
Marketable securities – municipal bonds       92,372      —        92,372      —   

                            

   $ 123,597    $ 31,225    $ 92,372    $ —   
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4. Property and Equipment  

Property and equipment consist of the following:  
   

5. Accrued Liabilities  

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:  
   

6. Commitments and Contingencies  

The Company leases its office facilities and certain office equipment under various noncancelable operating leases. Effective March 17, 
2008, the Company entered into an amendment of its current lease with Minneapolis 225 Holdings, LLC pursuant to which the Company 
renewed and will expand its existing lease premises at 225 South Sixth Street in Minneapolis, Minnesota through 2015.  

Future minimum lease commitments under the leases as of December 31, 2008, are as follows:  
   

The Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, although the lease may include escalation clauses 
that provide for lower rent payments at the start of the lease term and higher lease payments at the end of the lease term. Cash or lease incentives 
received from lessors are recognized on a straight-line basis as a reduction to rent from the date the Company takes possession of the property 
through the end of the lease term. The Company records the unamortized portion of the incentive as a part of deferred rent, in accrued liabilities 
or long-term liabilities, as appropriate.  
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     As of December 31,   
     2008     2007   
     (in thousands)   

Computer software     $ 50,875     $ 43,966   
Computer equipment       17,771       14,486   
Furniture and office equipment       10,609       8,277   
Leasehold improvements       2,215       2,144   

       
  

      
  

     81,470       68,873   
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization       (46,121 )     (34,411 ) 

       
  

      
  

Property and equipment, net     $ 35,349     $ 34,462   
       

  

      

  

     As of December 31, 
     2008    2007 
     (in thousands) 
Accrued compensation and benefits     $ 6,903    $ 8,879 
Accrued instructional       2,526      4,767 
Accrued vacation       1,400      1,032 
Customer deposits       1,370      1,658 
Other       6,727      7,490 

              

   $ 18,926    $ 23,826 
              

     (in thousands) 

2009     $ 4,023 
2010       4,593 
2011       5,097 
2012       5,250 
2013       5,408 
2014 and thereafter       10,327 

       

Total     $ 34,698 
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Total rent expense and related taxes and operating expenses under operating leases for the years ended December 2008, 2007, and 2006 
were $7.0 million, $5.7 million, and $5.4 million, respectively.  

The Company maintains an unsecured $10.0 million line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The line of credit expires on June 30, 2009. 
There were no borrowings under this line of credit as of and during the years ended December 31, 2008 or 2007. An unsecured letter of credit in 
the amount of $1.1 million, which expires on July 31, 2009, was issued under the $10.0 million line of credit in favor of the Department of 
Education in connection with its annual review of student lending activities.  

7. Litigation  

In the ordinary conduct of business, the Company is subject to various lawsuits and claims covering a wide range of matters, including, but 
not limited to, claims involving learners or graduates and routine employment matters. The Company does not believe that the outcome of any 
pending claims will have a material adverse impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.  

8. Common Stock  

In March 2008, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the Company to repurchase up to $50.0 million of 
shares of common stock with no expiration date. As of June 30, 2008, the Company had repurchased 0.9 million shares for total consideration of 
$50.0 million.  

In July 2008, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the Company to repurchase up to an additional $60.0 
million of shares of common stock with no expiration date. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had repurchased 0.2 million shares under 
this program for total consideration of $8.3 million.  

In 2007, the Company sold 0.3 million shares of common stock including the underwriters’ over-allotment and the selling shareholders 
sold 3.2 million shares of common stock in a follow-on offering for $10.9 million in net cash proceeds, after deducting underwriting commission 
and offering expenses of $1.5 million.  

9. Stock-Based Compensation  

The Company has three stock-based compensation plans, which are described below. The compensation cost that was charged against 
income for those plans was $4.3 million and $3.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The compensation 
cost that was charged against income during the year ended December 31, 2006 for those plans was $2.6 million for service-based stock options 
and $1.6 million for performance-based stock options. The total income tax benefit recognized in the statement of income for stock-based 
compensation arrangements was $1.3 million and $0.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. The total income tax benefit 
recognized in the statement of income for stock-based compensation arrangements during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $0.5 million 
for service-based stock options and $0.6 million for performance-based stock options.  

Stock-based compensation plans  

During 2005, the Company implemented a stock option plan that includes both incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options to 
be granted to employees, directors, officers, and others (the 2005 Plan). On May 25, 2006 the Board of Directors approved a change to the 
Company’s stock option policy in which the Company will only issue non-qualified stock options for future grants. At December 31, 2008, the 
maximum number of shares of common stock reserved under the 2005 Plan is 3.0 million shares. The Board of Directors establishes the terms 
and conditions of all stock option grants, subject to the 2005 Plan and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code). Under the 
2005 Plan, options must be granted at an exercise price not less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. 
Prior to the initial public offering in November 2006, the valuation used to determine the fair market value of the Company’s common  
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stock at each grant date was performed internally and contemporaneously with the issuance of the options. The options expire on the date 
determined by the Board of Directors but may not extend more than ten years from the grant date for options granted prior to August 2, 2006. On 
August 2, 2006 the Board of Directors approved a change to the Company’s stock option policy to shorten the contractual term from ten years to 
seven years for future grants. The options generally become exercisable over a four-year period. Canceled options become available for 
reissuance under the 2005 Plan.  

The Company has also issued stock options under two discontinued plans (the 1993 and 1999 Plans). Stock options issued pursuant to the 
1993 and 1999 Plans are still outstanding; however, unexercised options that are canceled upon termination of employment are not available for 
reissuance.  

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company granted performance-based stock options to purchase 0.3 million shares of 
common stock in lieu of a portion of the cash bonus under the Company’s 2006 Annual Incentive Plan for Management Employees. On 
December 31, 2006, 74.5% of these stock options ultimately vested based on meeting certain performance thresholds related to planned revenue 
and operating income. The remaining 25.5% of these performance-based stock options were canceled.  

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of income during the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007 and 2006 included compensation expense for stock-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of December 31, 
2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of FAS 123 and compensation expense for the 
stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the 
provisions of FAS 123(R). As stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income is based on awards 
ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. FAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and 
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.  

The Company’s determination of fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected 
by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include, 
but are not limited to the Company’s expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards and actual and projected employee stock option 
exercise behaviors.  

Option activity is summarized as follows:  
   

The outstanding performance-based stock options had a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 7.1 years and an aggregate intrinsic 
value of $1.1 million at December 31, 2008.  
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Available 

 
for Grant   

  
Plan Options  
Outstanding     

Weighted-  
Average  

Exercise Price 
 

per Share      Incentive     
Non-

Qualified     
     (in thousands, except per share data) 
Service-based Stock Options           

Balance, December 31, 2007     1,795     505     768     $ 23.24 
Granted     (186 )   —       186       57.63 
Exercised     —       (166 )   (155 )     17.89 
Canceled     133     (29 )   (107 )     22.95 

     
  

    
  

    
  

      

Balance, December 31, 2008     1,742     310     692     $ 31.39 
     

  

    

  

    

  

      

Performance-based Stock Options           

Balance, December 31, 2007       —       50     $ 20.00 
Exercised       —       (20 )     20.00 

       
  

    
  

      

Balance, December 31, 2008       —       30     $ 20.00 
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company’s closing 
stock price on the last day of the year and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received 
by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2008. The amount of aggregate intrinsic value will change 
based on the fair market value of the Company’s stock.  

Restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 is summarized as follows:  
   

The following table summarizes information regarding all stock option exercises for the years presented:  
   

The table below reflects our stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income:  
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Number of 
 

Shares    

Weighted-
 

Average  
Exercise  

Price    

Weighted-  
Average  

Remaining 
Contractual 

 
Term    

Aggregate 
 

Intrinsic  
Value 

     (in thousands, except contractual term data) 
Service-based stock options              

Balance at December 31, 2008     1,002    $ 31.39    5.81    $ 28,205 
Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2008     969    $ 30.98    5.80    $ 27,667 
Exercisable, December 31, 2008     512    $ 22.47    5.41    $ 18,794 

       

Number of 
 

Shares     

Weighted- 
Average  

Grant Date 
 

Fair Value 
per Share 

     
(in thousands, except  

per share data)  
Restricted Stock       

Balance, December 31, 2007     1     $ 51.69 
Granted     4       53.69 
Vested     (1 )     51.69 
Forfeited     —         —   

     
  

      

Balance, December 31, 2008     4     $ 53.45 
     

  

      

     Year ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 
     (in thousands) 
Proceeds from stock options exercised     $ 6,156    $ 15,022    $ 798 
Tax benefits related to stock options exercised       2,647      10,813      166 
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised       11,103      35,082      1,357 

       Year ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 
     (in thousands) 
Instructional costs and services     $ 1,388    $ 1,120    $ 748 
Marketing and promotional       868      654      357 
General and administrative       2,042      1,618      3,074 

                     

Stock-based compensation expense included in operating income       4,298      3,392      4,179 
Tax benefit       1,271      837      1,075 

                     

Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax     $ 3,027    $ 2,555    $ 3,104 
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As of December 31, 2008, total compensation cost related to nonvested service-based stock options not yet recognized was $8.0 million, 
which is expected to be recognized over the next 28 months on a weighted-average basis.  

The fair value of our service-based stock options was estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with 
the following assumptions:  
   

   

   

   

The assumptions discussed above were also used to value the performance-based stock options granted during the year ended 
December 31, 2006 except for the expected life, which was four years. The expected option life for performance-based stock options was 
determined based on the evaluation of certain qualitative factors including the Company’s historical experience and the Company’s competitors’ 
historical experience. The weighted-average fair value of performance-based stock options granted was $8.22.  

10. Income Taxes  

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company recognized 
no adjustment in the liability for unrecognized income tax benefits. At the adoption date of January 1, 2007, the Company had $0.3 million of 
total gross unrecognized tax benefits. Of this total, $0.2 million (net of the federal benefit on state issues) represents the amount of unrecognized 
tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect its effective income tax rate in future periods. As of December 31, 2008, the Company 
had $0.4 million of total gross unrecognized tax benefits. Of this total, $0.3 million (net of the federal benefit on state issues) represents the 
amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect its effective income tax rate in future periods.  
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     Year Ended December 31, 
     2008    2007    2006 

Expected life (in years) (1)     4.75    4.25-4.75    4.25-6.25 
Expected volatility (2)     43.8%    45.3%-46.6%    45.6% 
Risk-free interest rate (3)     2.9-3.2%    4.0-4.7%    4.4-5.1% 
Dividend yield (4)     0.0%    0.0%    0.0% 
Weighted-average fair value of options granted     $23.85    $20.72    $9.84 
  
(1) For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the expected option life was determined using the simplified method for 

estimating expected option life for service-based stock options. 

(2) As the Company’s stock had not been publicly traded prior to November 2006, the expected volatility assumption for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 reflects a detailed evaluation of the stock price of the Company’s peer group of public postsecondary 
education companies for a period equal to the expected life of the options, starting from the date they went public. 

(3) The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon the U.S. Treasury zero coupon yield curve on the grant date for a maturity similar to 
the expected life of the options. 

(4) The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s history and expectation of regular dividend payments. 
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:  
   

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple state jurisdictions. During 2008, the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) commenced an income tax audit as well as an employment tax audit of Capella University. In addition, several states have 
commenced income tax audits.  

The Company continues to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. Upon adoption of FIN 
48, the Company had less than $1 thousand of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions. The Company recognized $0.1 million and $21 
thousand in interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  

For federal purposes, the statute of limitations remains open on tax years 2005-2007. In addition, for federal purposes, tax years 2000-2002 
remain open to examination as a result of earlier net operating losses being utilized in recent years. The statute of limitations remains open on the 
earlier years for three years subsequent to the utilization of net operating losses. For state purposes, the statute of limitations remains open in a 
similar manner for states that have generated net operating losses.  

The Company does not anticipate any significant increases or decreases in unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months. In 
September 2008, the statute of limitations expired on federal issues related to tax years 1998-1999 and tax years 2003-2004 with no material 
impact on the unrecognized tax benefits. In September 2009, the statute of limitations will expire on federal issues related to tax years 2000-2001 
and tax year 2005 with no material impact expected on the unrecognized tax benefits.  

The Company has deferred tax assets and liabilities that reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets are subject to periodic 
recoverability assessments. Realization of the deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities is principally dependent upon achievement of 
projected future taxable income.  

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company generated a federal net operating loss of approximately $4.5 million due to the large 
amount of stock option exercises that occurred in 2007. The Company will utilize this loss against current year taxable income. There is no 
remaining federal net operating loss as of December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008, the Company had a net operating loss carryforward of 
approximately $2.6 million for state income tax purposes that is available to offset future taxable income. The state net operating loss 
carryforwards expire at various dates through 2028.  
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       2008    2007   
     (in thousands)   

Balance at January 1     $ 314    $ 269   
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year       —        —     
Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year       —        —     
Additions for tax positions of prior years       68      125   
Reductions for tax positions of prior years       —        (80 ) 
Settlements       —        —     
Reductions due to lapse of the applicable statute of limitations       —        —     

              
  

Balance at December 31     $ 382    $ 314   
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The components of income tax expense are as follows:  
   

A reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. statutory rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows:  
   

Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, are as follows:  
   

During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company recorded tax benefits of approximately $2.6 million, $10.8 million and $0.2 million directly to 
additional paid-in capital related to the exercise of non-qualified stock options and disqualifying dispositions of incentive stock options.  
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       Year Ended December 31, 
     2008     2007    2006 
     (in thousands) 
Current:          

Federal     $ 15,109     $ 8,240    $ 5,670 
State       1,491       874      312 

Deferred:          

Federal       (1,273 )     2,688      1,245 
State       48       267      1,677 

       
  

             

   $ 15,375     $ 12,069    $ 8,904 
       

  

             

     Year Ended December 31,   
     2008     2007     2006   
Statutory rate     35.0 %   35.0 %   35.0 % 
State income taxes     2.4     2.7     2.6   
FAS 123R expense related to incentive stock options     0.7     1.2     2.0   
Tax-exempt interest     (3.1 )   (3.9 )   —     
Other     (0.2 )   (0.4 )   0.3   

     
  

    
  

    
  

   34.8 %   34.6 %   39.9 % 
     

  

    

  

    

  

     As of December 31,   
     2008     2007   
     (in thousands)   

Deferred tax assets:       

Net operating loss carryforwards     $ 91     $ 212   
Accounts receivable       669       498   
Alternative minimum tax credit       —         52   
Goodwill       49       62   
Accrued liabilities       3,345       2,080   
Nonqualified stock options       1,791       1,143   
FIN 48       147       100   

       
  

      
  

     6,092       4,147   
Deferred tax liabilities:       

Accumulated other comprehensive income       (332 )     (117 ) 
Property and equipment       (8,352 )     (7,642 ) 

       
  

      
  

     (8,684 )     (7,759 ) 
       

  
      

  

Net deferred tax liability     $ (2,592 )   $ (3,612 ) 
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11. Regulatory  

The University is subject to extensive regulation by federal and state governmental agencies and accrediting bodies. In particular, the 
Higher Education Act (HEA) and the regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Education (DOE) subject the University to 
significant regulatory scrutiny on the basis of numerous standards that schools must satisfy to participate in the various types of federal learner 
financial assistance under Title IV Programs.  

To participate in the Title IV Programs, an institution must be authorized to offer its programs of instruction by the relevant agencies of the 
state in which it is located, accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the DOE and certified as eligible by the DOE. The DOE will 
certify an institution to participate in the Title IV Programs only after the institution has demonstrated compliance with the HEA and the DOE’s 
extensive academic, administrative, and financial regulations regarding institutional eligibility. An institution must also demonstrate its 
compliance with these requirements to the DOE on an ongoing basis.  

The Company performs periodic reviews of its compliance with the various applicable regulatory requirements. We have not been notified 
by any of the various regulatory agencies of any significant noncompliance matters that would adversely impact its ability to participate in Title 
IV programs, however, the Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) has conducted a compliance audit of Capella University. The audit commenced 
on April 10, 2006 and we subsequently provided the OIG with periodic information, responded to follow up inquiries and facilitated site visits 
and access to the Company’s records. The OIG completed its field work in January 2007 and the Company received a draft audit report on 
August 23, 2007. Capella University provided written comments on the Draft Report to the OIG on September 25, 2007. On March 7, 2008, the 
OIG’s final report was issued to the Acting Chief Operating Officer (COO) for Federal Student Aid (FSA), which is responsible for primary 
oversight of the Title IV funding programs. The Company responded to the final report on April 8, 2008. Recently, the Company provided FSA 
staff with certain additional requested information for financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2006-2007. The FSA will subsequently issue final 
findings and requirements for Capella University. The FSA may take certain actions, including requiring that we refund certain federal student 
aid funds, requiring us to modify our Title IV administration procedures, and/or requiring us to pay fines or penalties.  

Based on the final audit report for the financial aid years 2002-2003 through 2004-2005, the most significant potential financial exposure 
from the audit pertains to repayments to the Department of Education that could be required if the OIG concludes that Capella University did not 
properly calculate the amount of Title IV funds required to be returned for learners that withdrew without providing an official notification of 
such withdrawal and without engaging in academic activity prior to such withdrawal. If it is determined that Capella University improperly 
withheld any portion of these funds, Capella University would be required to return the improperly withheld funds. The Company and the OIG 
have differing interpretations of the relevant regulations regarding what constitutes engagement in the unofficial withdrawal context. As the 
Company interprets the engagement requirement, it currently estimates that for the three year audit period, and for the subsequent aid years 
through 2007-2008, the total amount of Title IV funds not returned—for learners who withdrew without providing official notification and 
without engaging as required in the relevant regulations—was approximately $1.0 million including interest, but not including fines and 
penalties. If this difference of interpretation is ultimately resolved in a manner adverse to the Company, then the total amount of Title IV funds 
not returned for learners who withdrew without providing official notification would be greater than the amount the Company has currently 
estimated.  

Political and budgetary concerns significantly affect the Title IV Programs. Congress reauthorizes the HEA and other laws governing Title 
IV Programs approximately every five to eight years. The last reauthorization of the HEA was completed in August 2008. Additionally, 
Congress reviews and determines appropriations for Title IV programs on an annual basis through the budget and appropriations processes. As 
of December 31, 2008, programs in which the Company’s learners participate are operative and sufficiently funded.  
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12. Other Employee Benefit Plans  

The Company sponsors an employee retirement savings plan, which qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the 
Code). The plan provides eligible employees with an opportunity to make tax-deferred contributions into a long-term investment and savings 
program. All employees over the age of 18 are eligible to participate in the plan. The plan allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of 
their annual compensation. Contributions are subject to certain limitations. The plan allows the Company to consider making a discretionary 
contribution; however, there is no requirement that it do so. Effective July 1, 2006, the Company elected to match 100% on the first 2%, and 
50% on the next 4%, of the employee contributions. Employer contributions and related expense were $2.9 million, $2.3 million, and $1.5 
million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.  

In 1999, the Company adopted a qualified ESOP in which the Company may contribute to its employees, at its discretion, common stock 
of the Company. Contributions vest over three years, except in the event of retirement, disability, or death, in which case the participants’ shares 
become fully vested and nonforfeitable. Prior to the initial public offering in November 2006, the Company had an obligation to repurchase, at 
fair market value determined by annual independent valuation, the allocated shares in the above events, as the shares were not readily tradable on 
an established securities market. The Company recognized $0, $0, and $0.2 million of compensation expense in 2008, 2007, and 2006, 
respectively, related to the ESOP contributions.  

Upon completion of the Company’s initial public offering in November 2006, the Company paid a special distribution in the amount of 
$72.6 million to its shareholders, including the Company’s ESOP. The ESOP purchased shares of the Company’s common stock with the portion 
of the special distribution allocated to nonvested participants in the ESOP. Vested participants in the ESOP were given the right to elect to 
receive a cash payment of a portion of the special distribution allocated to their ESOP account. The ESOP purchased shares of the Company’s 
common stock in the open market with the remaining amounts it received from the special distribution. The total number of shares purchased by 
the ESOP with proceeds from the special distribution was 48 thousand shares.  

During 2006, the Company contributed 0.1 million shares to the plan related to 2005 compensation expense. During the year ended 
December 31, 2006, the Company elected to contribute common stock with a value equal to 1% of employee compensation for the six months 
ended June 30, 2006.  

During 2007, the Company contributed 2 thousand shares to the plan related to 2006 compensation expense. During the year ended 
December 31, 2007, the Company elected not to contribute to the ESOP plan due to the increase in the employer matching contributions for the 
401(k) plan. The ESOP was merged into the Company’s retirement savings plan effective December 31, 2007, and no further contributions will 
be made.  

In May 2005, the Company adopted the Capella Education Company Employee Stock Purchase Plan, referred to as the ESPP. The 
Company has reserved an aggregate of 0.5 million shares of its common stock for issuance under the ESPP. The ESPP permits eligible 
employees to utilize up to 10% of their compensation to purchase the Company’s common stock at price of no less than 85% of the fair market 
value per share of the Company’s common stock at the beginning or the end of the relevant offering period, whichever is less. The compensation 
committee of the Board of Directors will administer the ESPP. The Company had not implemented this plan as of December 31, 2008.  
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13. Quarterly Financial Summary (unaudited)  
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       First    Second    Third    Fourth    Total 
     (in thousands, except per share data) 
2008                 

Revenues     $ 65,251    $ 66,049    $ 65,239    $ 75,756    $ 272,295 
Operating income       7,112      8,664      7,936      16,390      40,102 
Net income       5,488      6,358      5,776      11,166      28,788 
Net income per common share                 

Basic     $ 0.32    $ 0.38    $ 0.35    $ 0.67    $ 1.71 
Diluted     $ 0.31    $ 0.37    $ 0.34    $ 0.66    $ 1.66 

     First    Second    Third    Fourth    Total 

2007                 

Revenues     $ 52,824    $ 53,918    $ 55,530    $ 63,964    $ 226,236 
Operating income       5,000      5,963      6,323      12,664      29,950 
Net income       3,844      4,783      5,062      9,095      22,784 
Net income per common share                 

Basic     $ 0.24    $ 0.29    $ 0.30    $ 0.53    $ 1.39 
Diluted     $ 0.23    $ 0.28    $ 0.29    $ 0.51    $ 1.33 
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None.  

   

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)). Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have 
concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.  

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 
13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
our Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2008. In conducting its evaluation, our management used the criteria set forth by the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, management believes our internal 
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008.  

Our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered 
public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of  
Capella Education Company  

We have audited Capella Education Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the 
COSO criteria). Capella Education Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and 
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, Capella Education Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets of Capella Education Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, of Capella Education Company 
and our report dated February 23, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP  

Minneapolis, Minnesota  
February 23, 2009  
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None.  
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Item 9B. Other Information 
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PART III  

Certain information required by Part III is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement for the our 2009 Annual Meeting 
of Shareholders (the “Proxy Statement”), which will be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 
2008. Except for those portions specifically incorporated in this Form 10-K by reference to our Proxy Statement, no other portions of the Proxy 
Statement are deemed to be filed as part of this Form 10-K.  

   

Incorporated into this item by reference is the information under “Election of Directors—Directors and Director Nominees,” “Election of 
Directors—Committees of Our Board of Directors,” “Election of Directors—Code of Business Conduct” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial 
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement. Information regarding our executive officers required by this item is set forth in Part 
I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  

   

Incorporated into this item by reference is the information under “Election of Directors—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider 
Participation” and “Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement.  

   

Incorporated into this item by reference is the information under “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Security Ownership of 
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement.  

   

Incorporated into this item by reference is the information under “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” and “Election of 
Directors—Director Independence” in our Proxy Statement.  

   

Incorporated into this item by reference is the information under “Ratification of Independent Public Accounting Firm—Fees” and 
“Ratification of Independent Public Accounting Firm—Approval of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Services and Fees” in our 
Proxy Statement.  
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
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PART IV  

   
   

   

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007  
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006  
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

   

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts  
Other schedules are omitted because they are not required.  
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule 

  (a) Documents filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K: 

  1. Consolidated Financial Statements: 

  2. Financial Statement Schedules: 

  (b) Exhibits 

Exhibit 
Number    Description    Method of Filing 

  3.1 

   

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 
11, 2006. 

  3.2 

   

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 
10, 2008. 

  4.1 

   

Specimen of common stock certificate. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 4 
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on October 19, 2006. 

  4.2 

   

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, 
dated as of January 22, 2003, by and among the Registrant and 
the shareholders named therein.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.1* 

   

Capella Education Company 2005 Stock Incentive Plan as 
amended. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on June 3, 2005. 

10.2* 

   

Forms of Option Agreements for the Capella Education 
Company 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No. 2 
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.3* 

   

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Capella Education 
Company 2005 Stock Incentive Plan 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2007. 

10.4* 

   

Capella Education Company 1999 Stock Option Plan, as 
amended. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2007. 
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Exhibit 
Number    Description    Method of Filing 

10.5* 

   

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Director) for 
the Capella Education Company 1999 Stock Option Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.6* 

   

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Employee) 
for the Capella Education Company 1999 Stock Option Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.7* 

   

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for the Capella 
Education Company 1999 Stock Option Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.8* 

   

Learning Ventures International, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan, 
as amended. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.9* 

   

Form of Option Agreement for the Learning Ventures 
International, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.10* 
   

Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan, as 
amended.    

Filed electronically. 

10.11* 

   

Capella Education Company Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. 
1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on June 3, 2005. 

10.12* 

   

Confidentiality, Non-Competition and Inventions Agreement, 
dated as of April 16, 2001, by and between the Registrant and 
Michael J. Offerman.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.13* 

   

Form of Confidentiality, Non-Competition and Inventions 
Agreement (executed by Scott M. Henkel). 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.14* 

   

Offer Letter, dated as of November 10, 2003, by and between 
the Registrant and Michael J. Offerman. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.15* 

   

Offer Letter, dated as of December 22, 2003, by and between 
the Registrant and Scott M. Henkel. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.16* 

   

Form of Nondisclosure Agreement (executed by Scott M. 
Henkel, Stephen G. Shank, Michael J. Offerman and Lois M. 
Martin).    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.17 

   

Office Lease, dated as of February 23, 2004, by and between 
the Registrant and 601 Second Avenue Limited Partnership. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.18 

   

Short Term Office Space Lease, dated as of February 23, 2004, 
by and between the Registrant and 601 Second Avenue Limited 
Partnership.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 



Table of Contents  

   
91  

Exhibit 
Number    Description    Method of Filing 

10.19 

   

Memorandum of Lease, dated as of March 10, 2004, by and 
between the Registrant and 601 Second Avenue Limited 
Partnership.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.20 

   

Office Lease, dated as of June 28, 2000, as amended, by and 
between the Registrant and 222 South Ninth Street Limited 
Partnership and ND Properties, Inc. as successor in interest to 
222 South Ninth Street Limited Partnership.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on 
April 18, 2005. 

10.21* 

   

Form of Performance Vesting Option Agreement (Annual 
Incentive Plan for Management Employees—2006) for the 
Capella Education Company 2005 Stock Incentive Plan.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.22* 

   

Offer Letter with addendum, dated October 20, 2004, by and 
between the Registrant and Lois M. Martin. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2007. 

10.23* 

   

Offer Letter, dated February 21, 2006, by and between the 
Registrant and Kenneth J. Sobaski. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.24* 

   

Confidentiality, Non-Competition and Inventions Agreement 
dated as of February 27, 2006, by and between the Registrant 
and Kenneth J. Sobaski.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.25* 

   

Offer Letter, dated June 6, 2006, by and between the Registrant 
and Reed Watson. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.26* 

   

Confidentiality, Non-Competition and Inventions Agreement 
dated as of June 20, 2006, by and between the Registrant and 
Reed Watson.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.27* 

   

Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-Competition and 
Inventions Agreement, dated June 16, 2005, by and between 
the Registrant and Michael J. Offerman.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.28 

   

First Amendment to Lease, dated as of May 16, 2006, by and 
between the Registrant and 601 Second Avenue Limited 
Partnership.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.29 

   

Letter Agreement, dated July 5, 2006, between the Registrant 
and ASB Minneapolis 225 Holdings, LLC 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 
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Exhibit 
Number    Description    Method of Filing 

10.30 

   

Amendment No. 3 to Lease Agreement, dated as of June 16, 
2005, by and between the Registrant and ND Properties, Inc. 
and ND Properties of Delaware, Inc.    

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Amendment No. 
2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on August 29, 2006. 

10.31 

   

Second Amendment to Lease, dates as of March 17, 2008, by 
and between the Registrant and Minneapolis 225 Holdings, Inc. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 
Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 
2008. 

10.32* 

   

Amendment No. 1 to Capella Education Company 2005 Stock 
Incentive Plan. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to Amendment No. 
3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 
with the SEC on October 6, 2006. 

10.33* 
   

Capella Education Company Senior Executive Severance Plan, 
as amended.    

Filed electronically. 

10.34* 

   

Annual Incentive Plan—Management Employees—2008 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 
28, 2008. 

10.35* 

   

Capella Education Company Annual Incentive Bonus Plan 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 
Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 
2008. 

10.36* 

   

Employment Agreement between Capella Education Company 
and J. Kevin Gilligan, dated January 20, 2009. 

   

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 23, 
2009. 

21    Subsidiaries of the Registrant.    Filed electronically. 

23    Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.    Filed electronically. 

31.1 
   

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.    

Filed electronically. 

31.2 
   

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.    

Filed electronically. 

32.1 

   

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.    

Filed electronically. 

32.2 

   

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.    

Filed electronically. 

  
* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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Beginning 
 

Balance    

Additions  
Charged to 

 
Expense    Deductions     

Ending 
Balance 

     (In thousands) 
Allowance accounts for the years ended:             

December 31, 2008  
Allowance for doubtful accounts     $ 951    $ 5,225    $ (4,757 ) (a)   $ 1,419 
December 31, 2007  
Allowance for doubtful accounts     $ 1,119    $ 3,604    $ (3,772 ) (a)   $ 951 
December 31, 2006  
Allowance for doubtful accounts     $ 1,299    $ 2,855    $ (3,035 ) (a)   $ 1,119 
  
(a) Write-off of accounts receivables. 
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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    CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY 
  (Registrant) 

Date: February 24, 2009   /s/    S TEPHEN G. S HANK          
  Stephen G. Shank 
  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

SIGNATURES    TITLE   DATE 

/s/    S TEPHEN G. S HANK          
Stephen G. Shank     

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  
(Principal Executive Officer)    

February 24, 2009 

/s/    L OIS M. M ARTIN          
Lois M. Martin  

   

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer  

(Principal Financial Officer)    

February 24, 2009 

/s/    A MY L. R ONNEBERG            
Amy L. Ronneberg     

Vice President and Controller  
(Principal Accounting Officer)    

February 24, 2009 

/s/    M ARK N. G REENE          
Mark N. Greene     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    J ODY G. M ILLER          
Jody G. Miller     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    J AMES A. M ITCHELL          
James A. Mitchell     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    A NDREW M. S LAVITT          
Andrew M. Slavitt     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    D AVID W. S MITH          
David W. Smith     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    J EFFREY W. T AYLOR          
Jeffrey W. Taylor     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    S ANDRA E. T AYLOR          
Sandra E. Taylor     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 

/s/    D ARRELL R. T UKUA          
Darrell R. Tukua     

Director 
  

February 24, 2009 
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CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN  

(As Originally Effective February 1, 2003 and as Amended  
May 11, 2005, May 25, 2006, September 11, 2006, December 13, 2007,  

and August 14, 2008)  
   

Capella Education Company (“CEC”) has established the Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan (the “Plan”) to provide 
severance pay and other benefits to eligible employees of CEC and its subsidiaries whose employment terminates under certain covered 
circumstances. CEC, in its complete and sole discretion, will determine who is an eligible employee, the requirements to receive severance 
benefits, and the amount of any benefits.  

The Plan was originally effective February 1, 2003. The Plan was amended effective May 11, 2005, May 25, 2006, September 11, 2006, 
and December 13, 2007. The Plan, as amended in this document, is effective for eligible employees who terminate on or after August 14, 
2008. This Plan supersedes and replaces any policy, plan or practice that may have existed in the past regarding the payment of severance 
benefits to eligible employees, with the exception of the Capella Education Company Senior Executive Severance Plan. However, any 
individual written employment contract or agreement between CEC (or a subsidiary) and an eligible employee that specifically provides 
for the payment of severance benefits remains in force, as detailed below.  

This document is both the “Plan document” and the “Summary Plan Description” for the Plan.  

Any reference in this Plan to “Capella” includes CEC and its subsidiaries.  

   

Only those employees who have been designated in writing by CEC’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) as eligible to participate in the 
Plan are eligible to become participants in the Plan. However, any employee who is a participant in the Capella Education Company Senior 
Executive Severance Plan is not eligible to participate in this Plan while participating in that plan, regardless of any designation to the 
contrary.  

The terms of the written designation by the CEO, not the employee’s job title or classification for other purposes, determine whether an 
employee is eligible for benefits under the Plan. The written designation for a particular employee may be changed from time to time at the 
discretion of the CEO.  

I. INTRODUCTION 

II. ELIGIBILITY 



If you are designated as an eligible employee, you must also complete 90 days of service with Capella, measured from your most recent 
date of hire, prior to becoming a participant in the Plan.  

You will cease to be a participant in this Plan when you cease to be designated by CEC as an eligible employee.  

   

In general, if you are an eligible participant in this Plan, and you comply with all provisions and requirements of the Plan, you will receive 
severance benefits if your employment with Capella is involuntarily terminated at the initiative of Capella other than for Cause. A 
termination by you for Good Reason within 24 months following a qualified Change in Control is also a severance eligible event. These 
concepts are described in detail below.  

“For Cause”. You will not be eligible for benefits under this Plan if your employment is terminated by Capella “for Cause.” “Cause” 
means 1) employee’s commission of a crime or other act that could materially damage the reputation of Capella; 2) employee’s theft, 
misappropriation, or embezzlement of Capella property; 3) employee’s falsification of records maintained by Capella; 4) employee’s 
failure substantially to comply with the written policies and procedures of Capella as they may be published or revised from time to time 
(in writing, on the Faculty Center website, or on the Stella intranet); 5) employee’s misconduct directed toward learners, employees, or 
adjunct faculty; or 6) employee’s failure substantially to perform the material duties of employee’s Capella employment, which failure is 
not cured within 30 days after written notice from Capella specifying the act of non-performance.  

“Good Reason”. If you initiate the termination of your employment with Capella, you will be eligible for Plan benefits only if you 
terminated with Good Reason following a qualified Change in Control, as defined below. “Good Reason” means 1) the material reduction 
of your job responsibilities upon or after a Change in Control; 2) the material diminution of your base compensation; or 3) a reassignment 
of your principal place of work, without your consent, to a location more than 50 miles from your principal place of work upon or after a 
Change of Control.  

To be eligible for Plan benefits, you must terminate employment for Good Reason within 24 months after the date of the qualified Change 
in Control. In addition, you must have provided written notice to CEC of the asserted Good Reason not later than 30 days after the 
occurrence of the event on which Good Reason is based and at least 30 days prior to your proposed termination date. CEC may take action 
to cure your stated Good Reason within this 30-day period. If CEC does so, you will not be eligible for Plan benefits if you voluntarily 
terminate.  
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III. SEVERANCE EVENTS 



Notwithstanding any individual agreement you may have with CEC to the contrary, a termination of employment for Good Reason under 
this Plan will be limited to such terminations as would qualify as an involuntary separation from service for good reason under Code 
Section 409A and the regulations thereunder.  

“Change in Control”. For purposes of this Plan, a qualifying “Change in Control” of CEC shall be deemed to occur if any of the 
following occur:  

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) 
acquires or becomes a “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 or any successor rule under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, 
of securities of CEC representing the following: (i) 50% or more of the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding securities 
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (“Voting Securities”) at any time prior to CEC selling any of its shares in a public 
offering pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or (ii) 35% or more 
of the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding Voting Securities at any time after CEC sells any of its shares in a public offering 
pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act. Provided, however, that the following shall not constitute a Change in 
Control:  

(A) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by CEC or a subsidiary;  

(B) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by CEC or 
one or more of its subsidiaries;  

(C) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any corporation with respect to which, immediately following such acquisition, 
more than 50% of both the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding Voting Securities and the Shares of CEC is then 
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the persons who beneficially owned Voting Securities and 
Shares of CEC immediately prior to such acquisition in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of such Voting 
Securities and Shares, as the case may be, immediately prior to such acquisitions;  

(D) any acquisition of Shares or Voting Securities in CEC’s initial public offering pursuant to a registration statement filed 
under the Securities Act.  

(2) A majority of the members of the Board of Directors of CEC shall not be Continuing Directors. “Continuing Directors” shall 
mean: (A) individuals who,  

   
-3-  



on the date hereof, are directors of CEC, (B) individuals elected as directors of CEC subsequent to the date hereof for whose election 
proxies shall have been solicited by the Board of Directors of CEC or (C) any individual elected or appointed by the Board of Directors of 
CEC to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors of CEC caused by death or resignation (but not by removal) or to fill newly-created 
directorships;  

(3) Approval by the stockholders of CEC of a reorganization, merger or consolidation of CEC or a statutory exchange of outstanding 
Voting Securities of CEC, unless, immediately following such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange, all or substantially all of 
the persons who were the beneficial owners, respectively, of Voting Securities and Shares of CEC immediately prior to such 
reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and the then outstanding shares 
of common stock, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange in 
substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange, of the 
Voting Securities and Shares of CEC as the case may be; or  

(4) Approval by the stockholders of CEC of (x) a complete liquidation or dissolution of CEC or (y) the sale or other disposition of all 
or substantially all of the assets of CEC (in one or a series of transactions), other than to a corporation with respect to which, immediately 
following such sale or other disposition, more than 50% of, respectively, the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and the then outstanding shares of common stock of 
such corporation is then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners, 
respectively, of the Voting Securities and Shares of CEC immediately prior to such sale or other disposition in substantially the same 
proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such sale or other disposition, of the Voting Securities and Shares of CEC, as the case 
may be.  

At all times after CEC sells any of its shares in a public offering pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act, the 
references to 50% in subsections (1)(C), (3) and (4) above shall be changed to 65%.  

Timely Release Required. Regardless of the reason for your termination, you will not be eligible for Plan benefits unless you sign an 
approved release form after your employment with CEC or a subsidiary actually terminates and timely deliver such signed release form to 
CEC. You may obtain a copy of the current release form at any time by contacting the CEC Human Resources Department. However, CEC 
will determine the contents of the release form, and may revise it from time to time as appropriate to deal with particular severance 
situations. As such, the release form you will be required to sign to receive benefits under the Plan may differ from any release form you 
previously received.  
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The release will generally include provisions regarding noncompetition with Capella for a period of time after your employment 
terminates, confidentiality, return of Capella property and other topics, including a release of all claims against Capella, its employees and 
its representatives. The release may also include other topics in a given situation, including non-solicitation of clients and/or employees 
and compliance with CEC policies (such as code of conduct, business ethics and insider trading, as applicable). Severance benefits will be 
paid only after any period for rescinding the release has expired. If you violate any provisions of the release, CEC will no longer be 
required to pay you any remaining severance benefits due to you under the Plan.  

Ineligibility for Benefits. Severance benefits will not be paid under this Plan in any of the following circumstances:  
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- You are offered another position with Capella (or the successor/purchasing entity) and you refuse to accept that 

position, other than for Good Reason in connection with a qualified Change in Control. 

  
- You voluntarily terminate your employment with Capella (or the successor/purchasing entity), other than for Good 

Reason in connection with a qualified Change in Control. 

  
- Your termination of employment does not qualify as a “separation from service”  under Internal Revenue Code 

Section 409A or any guidance issued thereunder. 

  
- Your employment is terminated by Capella (or the successor/purchasing entity) for Cause, whether or not in connection 

with a Change in Control. 

  - You are placed on a temporary layoff. 

  
- Your employment terminates due to death, disability, or failure to return to work for Capella following a leave of 

absence, layoff or any other period of authorized absence from Capella. 

  - You refuse to sign the release form prepared by CEC, or you rescind the release before it becomes final. 

  
- You are a participant in the Capella Education Company Senior Executive Severance Plan at the time of your 

termination. 

  
- You leave Capella under any other program in which management solicits and accepts voluntary terminations (in which 

case, severance pay will be determined and paid only under the other program). 

  
- You are covered by an individual written employment contract or agreement with Capella at the time your employment 

terminates that provides for severance pay or other benefits upon termination, except as described below. 



A Participant who experiences a qualifying severance event under Section III will be eligible to receive severance benefits under the Plan, 
including severance pay, outplacement assistance and continuation coverage under certain employee benefit plans.  

Severance Pay  

The amount and type of severance pay provided under the Plan depends on the severance event.  

Involuntary Termination. If your employment is involuntarily terminated by Capella, other than for Cause or within 24 months after a 
qualified Change in Control, you will be entitled to severance pay equal to six months of your base salary.  

Change in Control. If, within 24 months after a qualified Change in Control, you voluntarily terminate for Good Reason or if you are 
involuntarily terminated other than for Cause, you will be entitled to severance pay equal to twelve months of your base salary. You will 
also be entitled an amount that is equal to 80% of the targeted annual bonus under any annual bonus plan applicable to you for the year in 
which you terminate, prorated to the date of termination, without regard to performance.  

Your “base salary.” Severance pay under this Plan is calculated using your base salary at the time your employment terminates. Base 
salary excludes all bonuses (such as signing bonuses and incentive bonuses), stock options, profit sharing, benefits, taxable fringes, 
expenses allowances or reimbursements, imputed income, or any other special compensation.  

Limit on Severance Pay. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in no event will your severance pay under the Plan exceed two times 
the lesser of (i) your annualized compensation for the year immediately preceding the year in which your employment terminates; or 
(ii) the maximum amount that may be taken into account under a qualified pension plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) 
for the year in which your employment terminates. However, during the first calendar year you are employed with CEC, this limitation 
does not apply.  

Payment. Generally, you will receive any severance pay you are entitled to (including base salary and any amount based on targeted 
bonus) in bi-weekly payments, spread out over the number of months on which your base pay severance amount is based. Severance 
payments will begin as soon as administratively feasible after the date the release becomes irrevocable and will continue for the applicable 
period until fully paid.  
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IV. PLAN BENEFITS 



Special rule for first year of employment - Notwithstanding the above, if a qualifying severance event occurs in your first year of 
employment with CEC, your complete cash severance payments will be paid by March 15 of the calendar year following the year in which 
your employment terminates, even if bi-weekly payments would otherwise continue after that date.  

Outplacement Assistance  

Participants eligible for benefits under this Plan will be eligible for up to 6 months of outplacement assistance. Any outplacement 
assistance provided under this Plan will be paid directly to the outplacement agency. The outplacement assistance must be used by the end 
of the first calendar year following the calendar year in which you terminated employment (and in no event will CEC’s payment of such 
outplacement assistance occur later than the end of the third calendar year following the calendar year in which you terminated 
employment).  

Continuation Coverage  

Federal and state laws require CEC to offer certain departing employees (and where applicable, their dependents) the right to continue 
coverage, at their own expense, under our group health, dental and life insurance programs. For health and dental benefits, this 
continuation coverage is called COBRA. Upon termination of employment, you will receive information further describing how this 
continuation coverage works, its limitations, and your rights and duties to maintain coverage.  

If you are eligible for benefits under this Plan, CEC will pay the regular employer portion towards your continued coverage under CEC’s 
group health, dental and basic life insurance plans for the number of months upon which your severance pay is based. For example, if you 
are a entitled to six months of severance pay, CEC will contribute to your continuation coverage for up to six months, subject to the 
limitations described below. After that time, you must pay the entire cost of continuation coverage if it remains available and you wish to 
continue coverage.  

To receive this continuation coverage benefit, you must elect continuation coverage in accordance with the documents you receive. In 
addition, you must pay the remaining portion of the cost of your continued coverage. If CEC changes the portion it contributes toward 
benefit coverage for active employees, it may also change its employer portion for purposes of continuation coverage benefits under this 
Plan. Any continuation benefit provided under this Plan will be paid directly to the applicable health, dental and/or basic life insurance 
program. If you are not eligible for continuation coverage at the time of termination or if you do not properly elect continuation coverage, 
you will not receive any payments in lieu of this subsidized continuation coverage.  
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If you lose eligibility for COBRA or other continuation coverage, as described in the COBRA documents you will receive, CEC will 
stop paying its portion of the premiums for your continuation coverage.  

Reductions of Severance Benefits  

All severance benefits payable under this Plan will be reduced by the amount of any severance or similar payment required to be paid to 
you by CEC under applicable federal, state, and local laws. Cash severance payments are also subject to all applicable withholding, 
including state and federal income tax withholding and FICA and Medicare tax withholding.  

In addition, in no event will the severance amount you receive exceed two times your yearly salary for the twelve months preceding your 
termination (or the amount you would have earned had you worked a full year).  

Severance pay under this Plan will be reduced (offset) by the amount of any payment made by CEC to you pursuant to an employment 
contract, agreement or other severance arrangement, to the extent such payment is called a severance payment or otherwise becomes 
payable due to a termination of your employment with CEC. If such an agreement, contract or arrangement provides for severance 
payments in excess of those provided under this Plan, no severance pay will be due under this Plan. However, you may still be eligible for 
other benefits under the Plan, to the extent benefits are not duplicative of what you are receiving under the agreement, contract or 
arrangement.  

Termination of Severance Benefits  

All severance benefits payable under this Plan (including severance pay, outplacement assistance and continuation coverage premiums) 
will be terminated if CEC determines that you have violated the noncompetition or confidentiality provisions contained in your release 
form or any other agreement you have with CEC.  

   

Except as provided below, CEC reserves the right in its discretion to amend or terminate this Plan, or to alter, reduce, or eliminate any 
severance benefit, practice or policy hereunder, in whole or in part, at any time and for any reason without the consent of or notice to any 
employee or any other person having any beneficial interest in this Plan. Such action may be taken by the Board of Directors of CEC, by 
the Compensation Committee of the Board, by the Chief Executive Officer of CEC, or by any other individual or committee to whom such 
authority has been delegated by the Board of Directors.  
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V. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN 



However, during the 24-month period following a Change in Control, the Plan may not be amended, terminated or otherwise altered to 
reduce the amount (or negatively change the terms) of any severance benefit that becomes payable to a Participant who was a Participant in 
the Plan on the day prior to the Change in Control.  

In addition, if a Change in Control occurs within the 6-month period following the effective date of an amendment to terminate the Plan or 
otherwise reduce the amount (or negatively alter the terms) of any severance benefit under the Plan, such amendment (or portion of such 
amendment) will become null and void upon the Change in Control. Upon the Change in Control, the Plan will automatically revert to the 
terms in effect prior to the adoption of said amendment.  

Notwithstanding the above limitations, the Plan may be amended at any time (and such amendment will be given affect) if such 
amendment is required to bring the Plan into compliance with applicable law, including but not limited to Section 409A of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  

This Plan shall terminate immediately upon CEC’s filing for relief in bankruptcy or on such date as an order for relief in bankruptcy is 
entered against CEC. A Participant who experiences a severance event after such termination will not be eligible for benefits under this 
Plan.  

   

Normally, CEC will determine an employee’s eligibility and benefit amount on its own and without any action on the part of the 
terminating employee, other than returning the release form. The severance payments will begin as soon as administratively feasible after 
the date the release becomes irrevocable.  

Formal Claims for Benefits. If you think you are entitled to benefits but have not been so notified by CEC, if you disagree with a decision 
made by CEC, or if you have any other complaint regarding the Plan that is not resolved to your satisfaction, you or your authorized 
representative may submit a written claim for benefits. The claim must be submitted to CEC’s Human Resources Department in 
Minneapolis, Minnesota within six months after the date you terminated employment. Claims received after that time will not be 
considered.  

CEC will ordinarily respond to the claim within 90 days of the date on which it is received. However, if special circumstances require an 
extension of the period of time for processing a claim, the 90-day period can be extended for an additional 90 days by giving you written 
notice of the extension, the reason why the extension is necessary, and the date a decision is expected.  

CEC will give you a written notice of its decision if it denies your claim for benefits in whole or in part. The notice will explain the 
specific reasons for the decision,  
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VI. SUBMITTING CLAIMS FOR BENEFITS 



including references to the relevant plan provision upon which the decision is based, with a description of any additional material or 
information necessary for you to perfect your claim, and the procedures for appealing the decision.  

Appeals. If you disagree with the initial claim determination, in whole or in part, you or your authorized representative can request that the 
decision be reviewed by filing a written request for review with CEC’s Human Resources Department in Minneapolis, Minnesota within 
60 days after receiving notice that the claim has been denied. You or your representative may present written statements describing reasons 
why you believe the claim denial was in error, and should include copies of any documents you want us to consider in support of your 
appeal. Your claim will be decided based on the information submitted, so you should make sure that your submission is complete. Upon 
request to CEC, you may review all documents we considered or relied on in deciding your claim. (You may also receive copies of these 
documents free of charge.)  

Any appeal will be reviewed and decided by person(s) other than the person(s) who made the determination on your original claim. 
Generally, the decision will be reviewed within 60 days after CEC receives a request for review. However, if special circumstances require 
a delay, the review may take up to 120 days. (If a decision cannot be made within the 60-day period, you will be notified of this fact in 
writing.) You will receive a written notice of the decision on the appeal, which will explain the reasons for the decision by making specific 
reference to the Plan provisions on which the decision is based.  

Limitations Period . The claims procedure above is mandatory. If an employee has completed the entire claims procedure and still 
disagrees with the outcome of the employee’s claim, the employee may commence a civil action under § 502(a) of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”). The employee must commence such civil action within one year of the 
date of the final denial, or the employee will waive all rights to relief under ERISA.  

   

The following information relates to the administration of the Plan and the determination of Plan benefits.  

Name of Plan:  

Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan  

Type of Plan:  

The Plan is a “welfare benefits plan” that provides severance benefits in the event a participant’s employment with CEC or its subsidiaries 
terminates under certain circumstances. All benefits are paid from the general assets of CEC. No trust fund, insurance contract or other 
pool of assets is maintained to provide Plan benefits.  
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VII. PLAN ADMINISTRATION 



Plan Administrator/Plan Sponsor:  

CEC is the “Plan Sponsor” and “Plan Administrator” of this Plan. Communications to CEC regarding the Plan should be addressed to:  

Capella Education Company  
ATTN: Human Resources Department  
225 South Sixth Street, 8th Floor  
Minneapolis, MN 55402  

Telephone: (612) 977-5299  

As Plan Administrator, CEC has complete discretionary authority to interpret the provisions of the Plan and to determine which employees 
are eligible to participate and eligible for Plan benefits, the requirements to receive severance benefits, and the amount of those benefits. 
CEC also has authority to correct any errors that may occur in the administration of the Plan, including recovering any overpayment of 
benefits from the person who received it.  

Employer Identification Number: 41-1717955  

Plan Number: 506  

Plan Year: The calendar year.  

Agent for Service of Legal Process:  

Legal process regarding the Plan may be served on CEC at the address listed above.  

Assignment of Benefits:  

You cannot assign your benefits under this Plan to anyone else, and your benefits are not subject to attachment by your creditors. CEC will 
not pay Plan benefits to anyone other than you (or your estate, if you die after having a qualifying severance event but before receiving the 
complete severance amount payable to you up to the date of your death).  

Governing Law:  

This Plan, to the extent not preempted by ERISA or any other federal law shall be governed by and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the state of Minnesota.  
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Internal Revenue Code Section 409A:  

CEC intends this Plan, and the benefits provided hereunder, to qualify for the exceptions from coverage under Internal Revenue Code 
Section 409A (and the regulations or other applicable guidance thereunder), such as the exception for “short-term deferrals” under Treas. 
Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(4), “involuntary” separation pay plans under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9) and the payment of “reasonable 
outplacement” and “medical benefits” under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9). To the extent that any provision of this Plan does not qualify 
for such exceptions due to changes in the regulations, guidance or interpretation, such provision will be applied in a manner consistent with 
such requirements, regulations or guidance, notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary.  

Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, any severance benefits payable under the “involuntary” separation pay plan 
exception will be paid to the Participant no later than the last day of the second year following the year in which the Participant’s 
employment terminates.  

Employment Rights:  

Establishment of the Plan shall not be construed to in any way modify the parties’ at-will employment relationship, or to give any 
employee the right to be retained in CEC’s service or to any benefits not specifically provided by the Plan. The right of an employer to 
terminate the employment relationship of an employee (or to accelerate the termination date) will not in any way be affected by the terms 
of this Plan or any release.  

Statement of Rights of Participants:  

As a participant in this Plan, you are entitled to certain rights and protections under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 
(“ERISA”). ERISA provides that all Plan participants are entitled to:  
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1. Examine, without charge, at CEC’s Human Resources Department and at other specified locations, such as worksites, all documents 

governing the Plan and a copy of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) filed by the Plan with the U.S. Department of Labor and 
available at the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, if required. 

  
2. Obtain, upon written request to CEC’s Human Resources Department, copies of documents governing the operation of the Plan and 

copies of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series), if required, and updated summary plan description. CEC may make a 
reasonable charge for the copies. 



In addition to creating rights for Plan participants, ERISA imposes duties upon the people who are responsible for the operation of the 
Plan. The people who operate your Plan, called “fiduciaries” of the Plan, have a duty to do so prudently and in the interest of you and other 
Plan participants and beneficiaries. No one may fire you or otherwise discriminate against you in any way to prevent you from obtaining a 
welfare benefit or exercising your rights under ERISA.  

If your claim for a welfare benefit is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you have the right to know why this was done, to obtain copies 
of documents relating to the decision without charge, and to appeal any denial, all with certain time schedules.  

Under ERISA there are steps you can take to enforce the above rights. For instance, if you request a copy of plan documents or the latest 
annual report from the Plan and do not receive them within 30 days, you may file suit in a federal court. In such a case, the court may 
require CEC to provide the materials and pay you up to $110 a day until you receive the materials, unless the materials were not sent 
because of reasons beyond its control. If you have a claim for benefits which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, and you have 
exhausted your appeal rights under the Plan’s claims procedure, you may file suit in a state or federal court. If you are discriminated 
against for asserting your rights, you may seek assistance from the U.S. Department of Labor, or you may file suit in federal court. The 
court will decide who should pay costs and legal fees. If you are successful, the court may order the person you have sued to pay these 
costs and fees. If you lose, the court may order you to pay these costs and fees, for example, if it finds your claim is frivolous.  

If you have any questions about the Plan, you should contact CEC’s Human Resources Department. If you have any questions about this 
statement or about your rights under ERISA, or if you need assistance in obtaining documents from CEC, you should contact the nearest 
office of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, listed in your telephone directory or the Division of 
Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue 
N.W., Washington, D.C., 20210. You may also obtain certain publications about your rights and responsibilities under ERISA by calling 
the publications hotline of the Employee Benefits Security Administration.  
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3. Receive a summary of the Plan’s annual financial report (if the Plan is required to file such a report). CEC is required by law to 

furnish each participant with a copy of this summary financial report. 



Exhibit 10.33 

CAPELLA EDUCATION COMPANY  
SENIOR EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN  

(As Originally Effective September 11, 2006,  
and as Amended December 13, 2007 and August 14, 2008)  

   

Capella Education Company (“CEC”) has established the Capella Education Company Senior Executive Severance Plan (the “Plan”) to 
provide severance pay and other benefits to eligible employees of CEC and its subsidiaries whose employment terminates under certain 
covered circumstances. CEC, in its complete and sole discretion, will determine who is an eligible employee, the requirements to receive 
severance benefits, and the amount of any benefits.  

The Plan was originally effective September 11, 2006. Prior to that date, severance benefits for certain eligible employees were provided 
under the Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan. The Plan was amended effective December 13, 2007. The Plan, as 
amended in this document, is effective for eligible employees who terminate on or after August 14, 2008. This Plan supersedes and 
replaces any policy, plan or practice that may have existed in the past regarding the payment of severance benefits to eligible employees, 
with the exception of the Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan. However, any individual written employment contract or 
agreement between CEC (or a subsidiary) and an eligible employee that specifically provides for the payment of severance benefits 
remains in force, as detailed below.  

This document is both the “Plan document” and the “Summary Plan Description” for the Plan.  

Any reference in this Plan to “Capella” includes CEC and its subsidiaries.  

   

Only those employees who have been designated in writing by CEC’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) as eligible to participate in the 
Plan are eligible to become participants in the Plan. However, any employee who was designated as a Level 2 Participant under the Capella 
Education Company Executive Severance Plan as of September 11, 2006 shall automatically become a Participant in this Plan on such 
date.  

The terms of the written designation by the CEO, not the employee’s job title or classification for other purposes, determine whether an 
employee is eligible for benefits under the Plan. The written designation for a particular employee may be changed from time to time at the 
discretion of the CEO.  

I. INTRODUCTION 

II. ELIGIBILITY 



However, the Plan is intended to cover only employees who are in a select group of management or highly compensated employees within 
the meaning of ERISA §§ 201(2), 301(a)(3) and 401(a)(1); and, accordingly, if any interpretation is issued by the Department of Labor that 
would exclude any employee from satisfying that requirement, such employee immediately will cease to be a participant in this Plan and 
will instead become a participant in the Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan.  

If you are designated as an eligible employee under this Plan, you must also complete 90 days of service with Capella, measured from your 
most recent date of hire, prior to becoming a participant in the Plan.  

You will cease to be a participant in this Plan when you cease to be designated by CEC as an eligible employee.  

   

In general, if you are an eligible participant in this Plan, and you comply with all provisions and requirements of the Plan, you will receive 
severance benefits if your employment with Capella is involuntarily terminated at the initiative of Capella other than for Cause. A 
termination by you for Good Reason within 24 months following a qualified Change in Control is also a severance eligible event. These 
concepts are described in detail below.  

“For Cause”. You will not be eligible for benefits under this Plan if your employment is terminated by Capella “for Cause.” “Cause” 
means 1) employee’s commission of a crime or other act that could materially damage the reputation of Capella; 2) employee’s theft, 
misappropriation, or embezzlement of Capella property; 3) employee’s falsification of records maintained by Capella; 4) employee’s 
failure substantially to comply with the written policies and procedures of Capella as they may be published or revised from time to time 
(in writing, on the Faculty Center website, or on the Stella intranet); 5) employee’s misconduct directed toward learners, employees, or 
adjunct faculty; or 6) employee’s failure substantially to perform the material duties of employee’s Capella employment, which failure is 
not cured within 30 days after written notice from Capella specifying the act of non-performance.  

“Good Reason”. If you initiate the termination of your employment with Capella, you will be eligible for Plan benefits only if you 
terminated with Good Reason following a qualified Change in Control, as defined below. “Good Reason” means 1) the material reduction 
of your job responsibilities upon or after a Change in Control; 2) the material diminution of your base compensation; or 3) a reassignment 
of your principal place of work, without your consent, to a location more than 50 miles from your principal place of work upon or after a 
Change of Control.  
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III. SEVERANCE EVENTS 



To be eligible for Plan benefits, you must terminate employment for Good Reason within 24 months after the date of the qualified Change 
in Control. In addition, you must have provided written notice to CEC of the asserted Good Reason not later than 30 days after the 
occurrence of the event on which Good Reason is based and at least 30 days prior to your proposed termination date. CEC may take action 
to cure your stated Good Reason within this 30-day period. If CEC does so, you will not be eligible for Plan benefits if you voluntarily 
terminate.  

Notwithstanding any individual agreement you may have with CEC to the contrary, a termination of employment for Good Reason under 
this Plan will be limited to such terminations as would qualify as an involuntary separation from service for good reason under Code 
Section 409A and the regulations thereunder.  

“Change in Control”. For purposes of this Plan, a qualifying “Change in Control” of CEC shall be deemed to occur if any of the 
following occur:  

(1) Any “person” (as such term is used in Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) 
acquires or becomes a “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 or any successor rule under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, 
of securities of CEC representing the following: (i) 50% or more of the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding securities 
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (“Voting Securities”) at any time prior to CEC selling any of its shares in a public 
offering pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or (ii) 35% or more 
of the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding Voting Securities at any time after CEC sells any of its shares in a public offering 
pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act. Provided, however, that the following shall not constitute a Change in 
Control:  

(A) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by CEC or a subsidiary;  

(B) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by CEC or 
one or more of its subsidiaries;  

(C) any acquisition or beneficial ownership by any corporation with respect to which, immediately following such acquisition, 
more than 50% of both the combined voting power of CEC’s then outstanding Voting Securities and the Shares of CEC is then 
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the persons who beneficially owned Voting Securities and 
Shares of CEC immediately prior to such acquisition in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of such Voting 
Securities and Shares, as the case may be, immediately prior to such acquisitions;  
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(D) any acquisition of Shares or Voting Securities in CEC’s initial public offering pursuant to a registration statement filed 
under the Securities Act.  

(2) A majority of the members of the Board of Directors of CEC shall not be Continuing Directors. “Continuing Directors” shall 
mean: (A) individuals who, on the date hereof, are directors of CEC, (B) individuals elected as directors of CEC subsequent to the date 
hereof for whose election proxies shall have been solicited by the Board of Directors of CEC or (C) any individual elected or appointed by 
the Board of Directors of CEC to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors of CEC caused by death or resignation (but not by removal) or to 
fill newly-created directorships;  

(3) Approval by the stockholders of CEC of a reorganization, merger or consolidation of CEC or a statutory exchange of outstanding 
Voting Securities of CEC, unless, immediately following such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange, all or substantially all of 
the persons who were the beneficial owners, respectively, of Voting Securities and Shares of CEC immediately prior to such 
reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and the then outstanding shares 
of common stock, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange in 
substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such reorganization, merger, consolidation or exchange, of the 
Voting Securities and Shares of CEC as the case may be; or  

(4) Approval by the stockholders of CEC of (x) a complete liquidation or dissolution of CEC or (y) the sale or other disposition of all 
or substantially all of the assets of CEC (in one or a series of transactions), other than to a corporation with respect to which, immediately 
following such sale or other disposition, more than 50% of, respectively, the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and the then outstanding shares of common stock of 
such corporation is then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the persons who were the beneficial owners, 
respectively, of the Voting Securities and Shares of CEC immediately prior to such sale or other disposition in substantially the same 
proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such sale or other disposition, of the Voting Securities and Shares of CEC, as the case 
may be.  

At all times after CEC sells any of its shares in a public offering pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act, the 
references to 50% in subsections (1)(C), (3) and (4) above shall be changed to 65%.  
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Timely Release Required. Regardless of the reason for your termination, you will not be eligible for Plan benefits unless you sign an 
approved release form after your employment with CEC or a subsidiary actually terminates and timely deliver such signed release form to 
CEC. You may obtain a copy of the current release form at any time by contacting the CEC Human Resources Department. However, CEC 
will determine the contents of the release form, and may revise it from time to time as appropriate to deal with particular severance 
situations. As such, the release form you will be required to sign to receive benefits under the Plan may differ from any release form you 
previously received.  

The release will generally include provisions regarding noncompetition with Capella for a period of time after your employment 
terminates, confidentiality, return of Capella property and other topics, including a release of all claims against Capella, its employees and 
its representatives. The release may also include other topics in a given situation, including non-solicitation of clients and/or employees 
and compliance with CEC policies (such as code of conduct, business ethics and insider trading, as applicable). Severance benefits will be 
paid only after any period for rescinding the release has expired. If you violate any provisions of the release, CEC will no longer be 
required to pay you any remaining severance benefits due to you under the Plan.  

Ineligibility for Benefits. Severance benefits will not be paid under this Plan in any of the following circumstances:  
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- You are offered another position with Capella (or the successor/ purchasing entity) and you refuse to accept that 

position, other than for Good Reason in connection with a qualified Change in Control. 

  
- You voluntarily terminate your employment with Capella (or the successor/purchasing entity), other than for Good 

Reason in connection with a qualified Change in Control. 

  
- Your termination of employment does not qualify as a “separation from service” under Internal Revenue Code 

Section 409A or any guidance issued thereunder. 

  
- Your employment is terminated by Capella (or the successor/ purchasing entity) for Cause, whether or not in connection 

with a Change in Control. 

  - You are placed on a temporary layoff. 

  
- Your employment terminates due to death, disability, or failure to return to work for Capella following a leave of 

absence, layoff or any other period of authorized absence from Capella. 

  - You refuse to sign the release form prepared by CEC, or you rescind the release before it becomes final. 

  - You are a participant in the Capella Education Company Executive Severance Plan at the time of your termination. 



   

   

A Participant who experiences a qualifying severance event under Section III while a Participant will be eligible to receive severance 
benefits under the Plan, including severance pay, outplacement assistance and continuation coverage under certain employee benefit plans.  

   

First Six Months. During the first six months after your employment terminates, you will be entitled to payments equal to six months of 
base salary.  

In Connection with a Change in Control for Participants Other than Initial CEO . In addition, if your qualifying severance event occurs 
upon or within 24 months following a Change in Control, you will also be entitled during the first six months after your employment 
terminates to an amount equal to 50% of the targeted annual bonus applicable to you for the year in which you terminate, without regard to 
performance.  

In Connection with a Change in Control for Initial CEO . However, if CEC’s Chief Executive Officer as of the original effective date of 
this Plan (the “Initial CEO”) voluntarily terminates for Good Reason or if he is involuntarily terminated other than for Cause, within 24 
months after a qualified Change in Control, the previous paragraph will not apply and he will instead be entitled during the first six months 
after his employment terminates to an amount equal to 30% of any targeted annual bonus for the year in which he terminates, prorated to 
the date of termination, without regard to performance.  

Generally, you will receive any severance pay you are entitled to during the first six months after your employment terminates in bi-
weekly payments, spread out over the six month period. The payments will begin as soon as administrative feasible after the date the 
release becomes irrevocable. Any payments that would otherwise be made before the release becomes irrevocable will be held and paid on 
the first pay date after the release becomes irrevocable.  

Limits on Payments in First Six Months - Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in no event will your severance pay under the Plan 
payable in the first six months  
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- You leave Capella under any other program in which management solicits and accepts voluntary terminations (in which 

case, severance pay will be determined and paid only under the other program). 

  
- You are covered by an individual written employment contract or agreement with Capella at the time your employment 

terminates that provides for severance pay or other benefits upon termination, except as described below. 

IV. PLAN BENEFITS 

     Severance Pay 



after your employment terminates exceed two times the lesser of (i) your annualized compensation for the year immediately preceding the 
year in which your employment terminates; or (ii) the maximum amount that may be taken into account under a qualified pension plan 
under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) for the year in which your employment terminates. If six months base salary (plus any 
bonus amount, if applicable) exceeds this limit, such excess amount will not be paid at any time. However, if your termination of 
employment occurs during the first calendar year you are employed with CEC, this limitation does not apply.  

Special Rule for First Year of Employment - Notwithstanding the above, if your qualifying severance event occurs in your first year of 
employment with CEC, the cash severance payments due to you in the first six months after your employment terminates will be paid by 
March 15 of the calendar year following the year in which your employment terminates, even if bi-weekly payments would otherwise 
continue after that date.  

Additional Severance Amounts. As of the first day of the seventh month following your termination of employment, additional severance 
amounts are available to you, depending on your severance event.  

Not in Connection with a Change in Control . If your employment is involuntarily terminated by Capella, other than for Cause (but not 
upon or within 24 months after a qualified Change in Control), you will be entitled to additional severance pay equal to six months of your 
base salary.  

In Connection with a Change in Control for Participants Other than Initial CEO . If your qualifying severance event occurs upon or within 
24 months following a Change in Control, you will be entitled to additional severance pay equal to 18 months of your base salary. You will 
also be entitled to an amount equal to 1.5 times any targeted annual bonus applicable to you for the year in which you terminate, without 
regard to performance.  

In Connection with a Change in Control for Initial CEO . However, if CEC’s Chief Executive Officer as of the original effective date of 
this Plan voluntarily terminates for Good Reason or if he is involuntarily terminated other than for Cause, within 24 months after a 
qualified Change in Control, the previous paragraph will not apply and he will instead be entitled to additional severance pay equal to 6 
months of his base salary and 30% of any targeted annual bonus for the year in which he terminates, prorated to the date of termination, 
without regard to performance.  

Generally, you will receive any additional severance pay you are entitled to (including base salary and any amount based on targeted 
bonus) in bi-weekly payments, spread out over the number of months on which your additional severance amount is based. The additional 
severance payments will begin during the seventh calendar month following your termination of employment and will continue for the 
applicable period until fully paid.  
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Your “base salary.” Severance pay under this Plan is calculated using your base salary at the time your employment terminates. Base 
salary excludes all bonuses (such as signing bonuses and incentive bonuses), stock options, profit sharing, benefits, taxable fringes, 
expenses allowances or reimbursements, imputed income, or any other special compensation.  

Outplacement Assistance  

Participants eligible for benefits under this Plan will also be eligible for up to 12 months of outplacement assistance. Any outplacement 
assistance provided under this Plan will be paid directly to the outplacement agency. The outplacement assistance must be used by the end 
of the second calendar year following the calendar year in which you terminated employment (and in no event will CEC’s payment of such 
outplacement assistance occur later than the end of the third calendar year following the calendar year in which you terminated 
employment).  

Continuation Coverage  

Federal and state laws require CEC to offer certain departing employees (and where applicable, their dependents) the right to continue 
coverage, at their own expense, under our group health, dental and life insurance programs. For health and dental benefits, this 
continuation coverage is called COBRA. Upon termination of employment, you will receive information further describing how this 
continuation coverage works, its limitations, and your rights and duties to maintain coverage.  

If you are eligible for benefits under this Plan, CEC will pay the regular employer portion towards your continued coverage under CEC’s 
group health, dental and basic life insurance plans for the total number of months upon which your severance pay is based, up to a 
maximum of 18 months. For example, if you are entitled to twelve months of severance pay, CEC will contribute to your continuation 
coverage for up to twelve months, subject to the limitations described below. However, if you are entitled to twenty-four months of 
severance pay, CEC will contributed to your continuation coverage for up to eighteen months, subject to the limitations described below. 
After that time, you must pay the entire cost of continuation coverage, if it remains available and you wish to continue coverage.  

To receive this continuation coverage benefit, you must elect continuation coverage in accordance with the documents you receive. In 
addition, you must pay the remaining portion of the cost of your continued coverage. If CEC changes the portion it contributes toward 
benefit coverage for active employees, it may also change its employer portion for purposes of continuation coverage benefits under this 
Plan. Any continuation benefit provided under this Plan will be paid directly to the applicable  
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health, dental and/or basic life insurance program. If you are not eligible for continuation coverage at the time of termination or if you do 
not properly elect continuation coverage, you will not receive any payments in lieu of this subsidized continuation coverage.  

If you lose eligibility for COBRA or other continuation coverage, as described in the COBRA documents you will receive, CEC will 
stop paying its portion of the premiums for your continuation coverage.  

Reductions of Severance Benefits  

All severance benefits payable under this Plan will be reduced, as and when it is otherwise payable, by the amount of any severance or 
similar payment required to be paid to you by CEC under applicable federal, state, and local laws. Cash severance payments are also 
subject to all applicable withholding, including state and federal income tax withholding and FICA and Medicare tax withholding.  

Severance pay under this Plan will be reduced (offset), as and when it is otherwise payable, by the amount of any payment made by CEC 
to you pursuant to an employment contract, agreement or other severance arrangement, to the extent such payment is called a severance 
payment or otherwise becomes payable due to a termination of your employment with CEC. If such an agreement, contract or arrangement 
provides for severance payments in excess of those provided under this Plan, no severance pay will be due under this Plan. However, you 
may still be eligible for other benefits under the Plan, to the extent benefits are not duplicative of what you are receiving under the 
agreement, contract or arrangement.  

Termination of Severance Benefits  

All severance benefits payable under this Plan (including severance pay, outplacement assistance and continuation coverage premiums) 
will be terminated if CEC determines that you have violated the noncompetition or confidentiality provisions contained in your release 
form or any other agreement you have with CEC.  

   

Except as provided below, CEC reserves the right in its discretion to amend or terminate this Plan, or to alter, reduce, or eliminate any 
severance benefit, practice or policy hereunder, in whole or in part, at any time and for any reason without the consent of or notice to any 
employee or any other person having any beneficial interest in this Plan. Such action may be taken by the Board of Directors of CEC, the 
Compensation Committee of the Board, by the Chief Executive Officer of CEC (except to the extent such amendments materially change 
the benefits, terms and/or conditions applicable to executive officers of CEC), or by any other individual or committee to whom such 
authority has been delegated by the Board of Directors.  
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V. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE PLAN 



However, during the 24-month period following a Change in Control, the Plan may not be amended, terminated or otherwise altered to 
reduce the amount (or negatively change the terms) of any severance benefit that becomes payable to a Participant who was a Participant in 
the Plan on the day prior to the Change in Control.  

In addition, if a Change in Control occurs within the 6-month period following the effective date of an amendment to terminate the Plan or 
otherwise reduce the amount (or negatively alter the terms) of any severance benefit under the Plan, such amendment (or portion of such 
amendment) will become null and void upon the Change in Control. Upon the Change in Control, the Plan will automatically revert to the 
terms in effect prior to the adoption of said amendment.  

Notwithstanding the above limitations, the Plan may be amended at any time (and such amendment will be given affect) if such 
amendment is required to bring the Plan into compliance with applicable law, including but not limited to Section 409A of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  

This Plan shall terminate immediately upon CEC’s filing for relief in bankruptcy or on such date as an order for relief in bankruptcy is 
entered against CEC. A Participant who experiences a severance event after such termination will not be eligible for benefits under this 
Plan.  

   

Normally, CEC will determine an employee’s eligibility and benefit amount on its own and without any action on the part of the 
terminating employee, other than returning the release form. The severance payments will begin as soon as administratively feasible after 
the date the release becomes irrevocable.  

Formal Claims for Benefits. If you think you are entitled to benefits but have not been so notified by CEC, if you disagree with a decision 
made by CEC, or if you have any other complaint regarding the Plan that is not resolved to your satisfaction, you or your authorized 
representative may submit a written claim for benefits. The claim must be submitted to CEC’s Human Resources Department in 
Minneapolis, Minnesota within six months after the date you terminated employment. Claims received after that time will not be 
considered.  

CEC will ordinarily respond to the claim within 90 days of the date on which it is received. However, if special circumstances require an 
extension of the period of time for processing a claim, the 90-day period can be extended for an additional 90 days by giving you written 
notice of the extension, the reason why the extension is necessary, and the date a decision is expected.  
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VI. SUBMITTING CLAIMS FOR BENEFITS 



CEC will give you a written notice of its decision if it denies your claim for benefits in whole or in part. The notice will explain the 
specific reasons for the decision, including references to the relevant plan provision upon which the decision is based, with a description of 
any additional material or information necessary for you to perfect your claim, and the procedures for appealing the decision.  

Appeals. If you disagree with the initial claim determination, in whole or in part, you or your authorized representative can request that the 
decision be reviewed by filing a written request for review with CEC’s Human Resources Department in Minneapolis, Minnesota within 
60 days after receiving notice that the claim has been denied. You or your representative may present written statements describing reasons 
why you believe the claim denial was in error, and should include copies of any documents you want us to consider in support of your 
appeal. Your claim will be decided based on the information submitted, so you should make sure that your submission is complete. Upon 
request to CEC, you may review all documents we considered or relied on in deciding your claim. (You may also receive copies of these 
documents free of charge.)  

Any appeal will be reviewed and decided by person(s) other than the person(s) who made the determination on your original claim. 
Generally, the decision will be reviewed within 60 days after CEC receives a request for review. However, if special circumstances require 
a delay, the review may take up to 120 days. (If a decision cannot be made within the 60-day period, you will be notified of this fact in 
writing.) You will receive a written notice of the decision on the appeal, which will explain the reasons for the decision by making specific 
reference to the Plan provisions on which the decision is based.  

Limitations Period . The claims procedure above is mandatory. If an employee has completed the entire claims procedure and still 
disagrees with the outcome of the employee’s claim, the employee may commence a civil action under § 502(a) of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”). The employee must commence such civil action within one year of the 
date of the final denial, or the employee will waive all rights to relief under ERISA.  

   

The following information relates to the administration of the Plan and the determination of Plan benefits.  

   

Capella Education Company Senior Executive Severance Plan  
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VII. PLAN ADMINISTRATION 

     Name of Plan: 



Type of Plan:  

The Plan is a “top-hat” plan – that is, an unfunded plan maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation/severance 
benefits for a select group of management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of ERISA §§ 201(2), 301(a)(3) and 401
(a)(1), and therefore is exempt from Parts 2, 3 and 4 of Title I of ERISA.  

Plan Administrator/Plan Sponsor:  

CEC is the “Plan Sponsor” and “Plan Administrator” of this Plan. Communications to CEC regarding the Plan should be addressed to:  

Capella Education Company  
ATTN: Human Resources Department  
225 South Sixth Street, 8th Floor  
Minneapolis, MN 55402  

Telephone: (612) 977-5299  

As Plan Administrator, CEC has complete discretionary authority to interpret the provisions of the Plan and to determine which employees 
are eligible to participate and eligible for Plan benefits, the requirements to receive severance benefits, and the amount of those benefits. 
CEC also has authority to correct any errors that may occur in the administration of the Plan, including recovering any overpayment of 
benefits from the person who received it.  

Employer Identification Number: 41-1717955  

Plan Year: The calendar year.  

Agent for Service of Legal Process:  

Legal process regarding the Plan may be served on CEC at the address listed above.  

Assignment of Benefits:  

You cannot assign your benefits under this Plan to anyone else, and your benefits are not subject to attachment by your creditors. CEC will 
not pay Plan benefits to anyone other than you (or your estate, if you die after having a qualifying severance event but before receiving the 
complete severance amount payable to you up to the date of your death).  

Governing Law:  

This Plan, to the extent not preempted by ERISA or any other federal law shall be governed by and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the state of Minnesota.  
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Internal Revenue Code Section 409A:  

CEC intends that certain benefits provided hereunder qualify for the exceptions from coverage under Internal Revenue Code Section 409A 
(and the regulations or other applicable guidance thereunder), such as the exception for “short-term deferrals” under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-
1(b)(4) and “involuntary” or “window program” separation pay plans under Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(b)(9). To the extent that the provisions 
for severance payment during the first six months following termination of employment do not qualify for such exceptions due to changes 
in the regulations, guidance or interpretation, such provision will be applied in a manner consistent with such requirements, regulations or 
guidance, notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary.  

It is the intention of CEC that the benefits provided under this Plan that are subject to Code Section 409A meet the requirements of 
paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) of Code Section 409A, and the terms and provisions of the Plan should be interpreted and applied in a manner 
consistent with such requirements, including the regulations and other guidance issued under Code Section 409A.  

Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, any severance benefits payable under the “involuntary” or “window program” 
separation pay plan exception will be paid to the Participant no later than the last day of the second year following the year in which the 
Participant’s employment with the Company terminates.  

Employment Rights:  

Establishment of the Plan shall not be construed to in any way modify the parties’ at-will employment relationship, or to give any 
employee the right to be retained in CEC’s service or to any benefits not specifically provided by the Plan. The right of an employer to 
terminate the employment relationship of an employee (or to accelerate the termination date) will not in any way be affected by the terms 
of this Plan or any release.  
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Exhibit 21 
   

Subsidiaries of Registrant  
   

Capella University, Inc.  



Exhibit 23 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-138742) pertaining to the Learning Ventures, Inc. 
1993 Stock Option Plan, the Capella Education Company 1999 Stock Option Plan and the Capella Education Company 2005 Stock Incentive 
Plan of our reports dated February 23, 2009, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Capella Education Company, 
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Capella Education Company, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for 
the year ended December 31, 2008.  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP  

Minneapolis, Minnesota  
February 23, 2009  



Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 302 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

I, Stephen G. Shank, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Capella Education Company; 

  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report; 

  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report; 

  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting 

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 24, 2009    /s/    S TEPHEN G. S HANK          
  Stephen G. Shank 
  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 302 OF  

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

I, Lois M. Martin, certify that:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Capella Education Company; 

  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report; 

  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report; 

  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and 

  
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

  
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions): 

  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting 

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and 

  
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 24, 2009    /s/    L OIS M. M ARTIN          
  Lois M. Martin 
  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.1 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350  

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)  

In connection with the Annual Report of Capella Education Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Stephen G. Shank, Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

   

February 24, 2009  

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed to be 
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the 
Company specifically incorporates it by reference.  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the 
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

/s/    S TEPHEN G. S HANK          
Stephen G. Shank 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 32.2 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350  

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)  

In connection with the Annual Report of Capella Education Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Lois M. Martin, Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 
that:  

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

   

February 24, 2009  

This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed to be 
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the 
Company specifically incorporates it by reference.  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the 
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.  

/s/    L OIS M. M ARTIN          
Lois M. Martin 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 


